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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Kidztech Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
it is my pleasure to present to you the annual report of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (“FY2022").

In 2022, the world economic recovery remained weak and
the regional trend was somewhat differentiated. Due to the
spread of the new variant of COVID-19, and the war between
Russia and Ukraine which disrupted the international energy
supply and caused the shortage of energy supply as well as
the spike in energy prices, global inflation gradually intensified,
and the energy demand shrunk due to the consequent decline
of consumption power. The economic downturn led to a
worsening business environment. Moreover, the recurring
domestic epidemic led to the increasing pressure of production
suspension. In view of this, the Group adjusted its business
strategy and outsourced part of the production process to
suppliers/subcontractors located in the areas less affected
by the epidemic to ensure the timely delivery of products. As
a result, the production costs increased and the gross profit
decreased accordingly. The Group monitored and assessed
market changes, actively explored emerging markets and their
importers, and reduced the number of customers who rely on
European and American markets for a long time.

We believe that we should always pay close attention to
the market and optimize our sales strategy, so as to achieve
growth in the existing market and make breakthroughs in the
market with growth potential. We will promote innovation-
driven product diversification and optimize additional production
capacities. The Group will improve the plan for talent team
building in terms of product development and production,
and intensify the quality control standards and licensing of
intellectual property rights in different fields of product design,
including smart toy vehicles, toy vehicles non-fungible token,
animation themes, metaverse, virtual reality and augmented
reality, etc., so as to add new elements to innovative smart toy
cars and drive the market to a new turning point.
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Looking forward to 2023, the impact of the COVID-19 epidemic
on the world economy has gradually receded. However, due to
the continued war between Russia and Ukraine, soaring food
and energy prices, supply chain stagnation, inflation and other
multiple shocks that have put pressure on the global economy,
global commodity trade is predicted to slow down next year,
thus increasing the risk of global economic recession with high
level of uncertainty on the economic conditions.

The Group grasps the development opportunities of the
“Twentieth National Congress”. The central government
prioritizes the enlargement of the domestic demand economy,
speeds up the growth of the urban economy and revitalizes
the confidence of market consumers. Employment rates and
prices will stabilize to promote the overall improvement of
economic performance. Taking this into consideration, the Group
foresees the recovery of domestic consumption, explores the
development of the domestic toy retail market, and introduces
the physical store management ideas of combining its own
brand and foreign brand products.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my deepest gratitude to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”), customers, business partners
and suppliers for their consistent support. In addition, | would
like to express my sincere gratitude to the management and
staff of the Group for their commitment, contribution and
dedication over the years.

Yu Huang
Chairman
7 July 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group has a vision of becoming a smart interactive
entertainment product provider. The Group is principally engaged
in the design, development, manufacture and sale of high-quality
smart toy vehicles, smart interactive toys and traditional toys
and the sale of smart hardware products.

Revenue

The Group's total revenue decreased by approximately 40.3%
from approximately RMB283.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 ("FY2021") to approximately RMB169.4 million
for FY2022. The decrease of revenue mainly attributable to
impact caused by COVID-19, our offices in the PRC were forced
to close when COVID-19 swept across the PRC in 2022, leading
to substantial decrease in revenue from sales in the PRC. In
addition, certain stockpiled raw materials and electronic parts
were sold to clients at low gross profit during the period in order
to speed up the inventory turnover to reduce the risk.

Analysis of revenue by product type is as follows:
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Smart toys
Smart toy vehicles

The Group’s smart toy vehicles mainly comprise of full function
radio controlled toy vehicles, which are manufactured in different
scales. During FY2022, the Group's smart toy vehicles were
mostly “kidztech” brand products and co-branded products
collectively released by the Company and renowned automobile
manufacturers. The Group also manufactures under overseas
customers’ brands on original equipment manufacturing
("OEM") and original design manufacturing (“ODM") bases.

Smart interactive toys

The Group’s smart interactive toys mainly comprise of smart
interactive playsets, activity toys and musical toys, and some
of these toys which play music and contain playable features
are intended to stimulate the sensory development of children.
During FY2022, most of these toys were not produced and
sold for the category of co-branded with popular entertainment
characters featured in animated television series or motion
pictures or toy brand owner.

Traditional toys

Traditional toys include traditional toy vehicles, traditional
educational toys, dolls and other traditional toys such as outdoor
toys and sport toys as well as infant toys. During FY2022, (i) the
majority of revenue from traditional toys were derived from sale
of traditional toy vehicles, which include pull back toy vehicles
and inertia toy vehicles which are mainly designed for children
aged one to three years or above; and (i) most of these toys
were sold under the “kidztech” brand.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Brands

The Group’s smart toys, traditional toy and smart hardware
products are (i) branded with its “kidztech” brand; (ii)
cobranded with renowned automobile manufacturers, popular
entertainment characters featured in animated television series
or motion pictures or toy brand owner; or (iii) branded under
its overseas customers’ brands, which mainly represent the
products manufactured by the Group on ODM and OEM bases
and the products sold to its customers branded under their
respective brands.

The Group believes that co-branding with other famous brands
allows the Group to leverage on the marketing benefits of the
internationally renowned brands to expediently gain consumer
awareness, and recognition of authenticity, and to establish
creditability and market acceptance from the mass market.
The Group will continue to look for collaboration opportunities
with other well-known brands and apply for licensed rights of
renowned toy and entertainment character in due course to
improve the marketability of our products.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2023, the impact of the COVID-19 epidemic
on the world economy has gradually receded. However, due to
the continued war between Russia and Ukraine, soaring food
and energy prices, supply chain stagnation, inflation and other
multiple shocks that have put pressure on the global economy,
global commodity trade is predicted to slow down this year, thus
increasing the risk of global economic recession with high level
of uncertainty on the economic conditions.

The Group grasps the development opportunities of the
“Twentieth National Congress”. The central government of
the PRC prioritizes the enlargement of the domestic demand
economy, speeds up the growth of the urban economy, and
revitalizes the confidence of market consumers. Employment
rates and prices will stabilize to promote the overall improvement
of economic performance. Taking this into consideration,
the Group foresees the recovery of domestic consumption,
explores the development of the domestic toy retail market, and
introduces the physical store management ideas of combining
its own brand and foreign brand products.
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group's gross profit decreased from approximately
RMB80.8 million for FY2021 to approximately RMB28.3 million
for FY2022, representing a decrease of approximately 65.0%.
The Group's gross profit margin decreased by approximately
11.8% from approximately 28.5% in FY2021 to approximately
16.7% in FY2022. It was mainly attributable to the increase in
material and the increase in production costs due to outsourced
part of production progress to suppliers/subcontractors, and in
addition, in order to speed up the inventory turnover to reduce
the risk, certain raw materials were sold to suppliers at low
gross profit.

Loss for the year

The Group’'s net profit decreased significantly from
approximately RMB26.1 million for FY2021 to a net loss of
approximately RMB76.7 million for FY2022. It was mainly
attributable to (i) an increase in administrative expenses mainly
due to the recognition of share-based payments of approximately

RMB29.4 million; (ii) an increase in net impairment losses on
trade and other receivables of approximately RMB18.6 million;
and (iii) a decrease in other income of approximately RMB15.7

million mainly due to the decrease in interest income and
government grants.

Selling expenses

The Group's selling expenses decreased by approximately
88.6% from approximately RMB7.9 million for FY2021 to
approximately RMBO0.9 million for FY2022, which was primarily
due to the decrease in freight expenses and market expenses,
which was mainly because the Group took the initiative to
reduce the number of orders in the European and American
markets due to uncertainty caused by the spread of the new
variant of COVID-19, and the war between Russia and Ukraine,
shifting its sales to the Chinese market.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses significantly increased by
approximately 80.8% from approximately RMB42.1 million in
FY2021 to approximately RMB76.1 million in FY2022, which was
mainly attributable to the recognition of share-based payments
of approximately RMB29.4 million during the period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Net impairment losses on trade and other
receivable

The Group’s net impairment losses on trade and other receivable
increased significantly from approximately RMB5.4 million
for FY2021 to approximately RMB24.0 million for FY2022,
representing an increase of approximately 3.4 times. It was
mainly the lifetime expected loss provision was increased
during the period. For details, please refer to note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Taxation credit/expenses

Income tax expenses decreased to receiving taxation credit of
approximately RMB5.4 million in FY2022 from approximately
RMB5.6 million in FY2021, which was mainly due to the change
of deferred taxation during the period.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2022, the gearing ratio, which represents
the Group's total borrowings divided by total equity, was
approximately 35.1% as at 31 December 2022 (31 December
2021: 35.1%). As at 31 December 2022, the Group's total
borrowings were approximately RMB139.8 million (31 December
2021: approximately RMB155.3 million) and the total equity
was approximately RMB398.4 million (31 December 2021:
approximately RMB441.8 million). The total borrowings represent
the outstanding loans of the Group. The gearing ratio of the
Group had been stabilised.

The current ratio, which is calculated based on the total current
assets at the respective dates divided by the total current
liabilities at the respective dates, was approximately 1.6 as at
31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: approximately 1.6);
whereas the quick ratio, which is calculated based on the total
current assets (excluding inventories) at the respective dates
divided by the total current liabilities at the respective dates,
was approximately 1.5 as at 31 December 2022 (31 December
2021: approximately 1.5).
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately RMB6.2 million (31 December
2021: approximately RMB286.5 million). The decrease in bank
balance was mainly due to the deployment of working capital of
approximately RMB210.0 million for sales of raw materials and
electronic parts business.

Working capital

The average inventory turnover period of the Group was
approximately 44.1 days in FY2022 (FY2021: approximately 66.1
days), which was primarily due to the fact that the Group was
committed to enhancing its control over the production as a
result of the lingering impact of the COVID-19 pandemic in China
to accelerate the turnover of its inventories, leading to a lower
risk exposure while decreasing its inventory level in 2023.

The Group’s trade receivables increased from approximately
RMB117.0 million as at 31 December 20271 to approximately
RMB327.5 million as at 31 December 2022, as the payment by
customers was affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, as well
as the global economic downturn and capital constraints. The
Group's average turnover days of trade receivables increased
from approximately 125.3 days in FY2021 to approximately
273.2 days in FY2022, generally remaining stable.

The Group's trade and other payables increased by
approximately RMB24.2 million or approximately 16.7% from
approximately RMB144.6 million as at 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB168.8 million as at 31 December 2022. The
Group's average trade payable turnover days increased from
approximately 90.4 days in FY2021 to approximately 184.4
days in FY2022. The change was mainly due to the impact
of COVID-19 in China and the Group had delayed part of the
payment progress accordingly.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Bank and other borrowings

As at 31 December 2022, all the bank and other borrowings,
amounting to approximately RMB139.8 million (31 December
2021: approximately RMB155.3 million), were repayable on
demand and with fixed interest rate 2.25% to 18.00%. The bank
and other borrowings are predominantly denominated in RMB.

The weighted average effective interest rate as at 31
December 2022 was approximately 7.9% (31 December 2021:
approximately 5.2%).

Significant investments, material acquisitions
and disposal of subsidiaries

On 19 August 2022, Kidztech Investment (BVI) Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and True Colour
Development Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CA
Cultural Technology Group Limited (stock code: 1566), entered
into a joint venture agreement to engage in the establishment
and operation of digital parent-child children’s theme parks
(involving Metaverse elements) in the PRC. For details, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 22 August 2022.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any significant
investments, material acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during FY2022.

Future plans for material investments and capital
assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any other
plans for material investments and capital assets except for
those disclosed in the sections headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” of the prospectus of the Company dated 28 February
2020 (the "Prospectus”) and “Impact of the Epidemic and
Outlook™ in this report.
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Capital structure

The capital structure of the Group is mainly based on the
equity attributable to shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) (including share capital and reserves). As at
31 December 2022, the total number of issued ordinary Shares
of the Company was 520,886,000 with a par value of HK$0.001
each (31 December 2021: 520,886,000 Shares).

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2022, certain bank and other borrowings
of the Group were secured by property, plant and equipment
and restricted cash. Details of which are set out in note 27 to
the consolidated financial statements as set out in this annual
report.

Contingent liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liability as at
31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil).

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had an aggregate capital
commitment of approximately RMB17.4 million (31 December
2021: approximately RMB17.5 million).

Financial management and treasury policy

The financial risk management of the Group is the responsibility
of the Group’'s treasury function at its head office. The Group
adopted prudent funding and treasury management policies
while maintaining an overall healthy financial position. The
Group's source of funding was raised by cash generated from
operating activities and bank borrowings. The Group's treasury
policies mainly include managing capital liquidity and vyield to
safeguard the healthy development of the principal businesses
of the Group. The Group regularly reviews its major funding
positions to ensure that it has adequate financial resources
in meeting its financial obligations. The Group is from time to
time considering various alternatives including but not limited
to financial institution borrowings, non-financial institution
borrowings, bonds issuance, etc.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Foreign exchange exposure

The Group’s operating subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong
operates with most transactions being settled in US dollars
("USD"), except for certain transactions which are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") or other currencies. The functional
currency of these subsidiaries is USD. The Group’s operating
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC operate in the PRC
and their functional currency is Renminbi (“RMB"”). As at 31
December 2022, foreign exchange risk arose mainly from certain
balances of the operating subsidiaries in Hong Kong which are
denominated in USD. The Directors consider that no significant
foreign exchange risk exists for the Group. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of
foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group
did not use any financial instruments for hedging purposes.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events after the reporting period up to
the date of this report.

LISTING AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The Shares were successfully listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 18 March 2020 (the “Listing Date"”). The
net proceeds (after deducting related underwriting fees and
commissions and expenses payable in connection with the
global offering) raised by the Company from the Listing and
prior to the partial exercise of the over-allotment option were
approximately HK$81.2 million (based on the final offer price of
HK$1.38 per Share). Due to the issue and allotment of Shares
pursuant to the partial exercise of the over-allotment option on 3
April 2020, an additional net proceeds of approximately HK$1.2
million were raised.
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For FY2022, the proceeds were utilised consistent with that R-ZT - —HHBFE ISR ERZ
disclosed in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of EBEFEREZRIAK K2 KM B KIER
Proceeds” of the Prospectus, details of which are set out below: % |—&iEEEHET  FBEWO T

Unutilised Unutilised
Intended use of proceeds as at31  Amount utilised proceeds as at 31
net proceeds December 2021 during the year December 2022

RZBZ-F RZBZZ%
t=A=t-8H +T=A=t+-H
FERERE HABA RER HABA
fERR fEmE EHASHE METE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
AEBATL ABAT BEAT BEBTL
Funding the planned expansion of the ENEEBRRRER 58.4 97 97 S
new production plant FEREES
Maintaining and strengthening ERTEES 15.8 14.8 14.8 -
relationship with existing customers, REEXPHBERF
and acquiring or investing in AR B oK
downstream companies RERTHAR
General replenishment of working capital — T4 EE ¢ R E 8.2 = 8.2 S
and other corporate purpose f—RARR®R

Total @zt 82.4 24.5 245 -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 95 (2021: 535) full-time
employees, of which, 20 of them were in Hong Kong and the
rest of them were stationed in Shantou and Shenzhen, the PRC.
The significantly decrease of employees was mainly due to the
Company outsourced part of production progress to suppliers/
subcontractors.

The remuneration packages offered by the Group to its
employees include salaries, accidental insurance and allowances,
depending on their job nature. Bonuses are generally
discretionary and based in part on employee performance and in
part on the overall performance of the Group's business.

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme to reward,
among others, its employees for their contribution to the Group,
details of which are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” in this annual report.

The Group has implemented training programmes for its
employees to meet different job requirements, such as
training on production procedures for its staff at its production
department. It is believed that these initiatives have contributed
to the increased productivity of employees of the Group.

IMPACT OF THE EPIDEMIC AND OUTLOOK

Due to the continuous outbreak of COVID-19, the Group's
operations were being affected. The Directors will continue to
assess the impact of the epidemic on the Group's operation
and financial performance and closely monitor and manage the
Group's exposure to the risks and uncertainties in connection
therewith. The Group will take appropriate measures and inform
the Shareholders and potential investors of the Company as and
when necessary.

EEEFWE DT

BERFME R

RZZE-_—_F+—-_A=+—H &%
EHSBEEHBEE(ZE-_—9F:535
Z)  EF0BNREE EHESR
Az AR B EE &R - B B KIER
'EIEEK$QEWM%%/ﬁ@
AmINBIDEERRE -

AEBRFIELERETREREN
FHSBREREFE  BIREIR -

EABERRRE  MOERESR
B B ERAKEEEBOER

ARABERM—EBAIHE B AER
(AP B BEUAKSEFLNE
Bl EREBEHNAFRIBRE

g —#f -

AEBERERESEEEIGE N
METRMIEER kL E
MABERBETEERF TEN
gl - HEZFEHFAPRERAE
SEEBNEEME -

RRERNERRE

BRIFLECOVID-19EE  KREER
aﬁxﬂ%% EEQREBTHE
@?X“ﬁ$%.%i&§ﬁﬁ§¥%ﬁ'ﬂ
%;’ VERKEBRASEEER
EAEBEHNEEBRBRETETER -
AEBCEEAFTERENBEERG
ﬁﬁ$@ﬁ%ﬁi$&igﬁﬁ;§%¥?
A o




Kidztech Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR D

On the other hand, with the aim of further developing its
business and continuing its growth and also due to the material
changes in the global geopolitics environment as well as the
international order, the Group will implement the following
strategies:

° continue to prioritise and focus on the Chinese market by (i)
maintaining and strengthening relationship with its existing
direct overseas customers; and (ii) expanding the customer
base;

° continue to strengthen, expand and diversify its
customer base by focusing on (i) the PRC export-oriented
wholesalers; and (ii) the PRC retailers;

o diversify its product offerings through continuous
development of new products and global licensing strategy;

o expand its production capacity and improve its production
efficiency; and

o allocate more resources to expand sales of domestic and
Asian markets.

Looking forward to 2023, the impact of COVID-19 on the
global economy has gradually diminished. However, due to the
continuing Russian-Ukraine war, soaring food and energy prices,
stagnant supply chains, inflation and other multiple shocks that
have put pressure on the global economy, global commodity
trade is expected to slow down next year, thereby increasing the
risk of a global economic recession, and slowing down global
economic recovery.

The Group grasps the development opportunities arising
from the “the 20th CPC National Congress” in China. Taking
expansion of the domestic demand economy as its top priority,
the central government rapidly raises the high-growth points
of the urban economy and revitalizes the market consumer
confidence, so as to achieve stable employment rates and prices
as well as the overall improvement of economic operation.
As such, the Group expects strong domestic consumption,
explores the development of the domestic toy retail market, and
combines the operating concept of its own brand with foreign
brand for physical stores.
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GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Directors and the management of the Group recognise the
importance of sound corporate governance to the long-term
success and continuing development of the Group. Therefore,
the Board is committed to upholding good corporate standards
and procedures, so as to improve the accountability system and
transparency of the Group, protect the interests and create value
for Shareholders.

During FY2022, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with all applicable code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) in Part 2 of Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), save and except the deviation
as follows:

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. Yu Huang is currently
the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of
the Group. Mr. Yu Huang has been responsible for the overall
management of the Group since the establishment of the
Group. The Board believes that the current structure enables the
Group to make and implement business decisions swiftly and
effectively which promotes the Group’s development in line with
other strategies and business direction. The Board considers
that the balance of power and authority, accountability and
independent decision-making under the present arrangement
will not be impaired because of the diverse background and
experience of the executive Directors, non-executive Director
and independent non-executive Directors. Further, the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), which consists of
independent non-executive Directors, has free and direct access
to the Company's external auditors and independent professional
advisers when it considers necessary. Therefore, the Directors
consider that the deviation from the code provision C.2.1 of
the CG Code is appropriate in such circumstance. In order to
maintain good corporate governance and to fully comply with
the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the Board will regularly
review the need to appoint different individuals to perform
the roles of chairman of the Board and chief executive officer
separately.

The Company will continue to review its corporate governance
practices in order to enhance its corporate governance
standard, to comply with the increasingly tightened regulatory
requirements and to meet the rising expectations of the
shareholders and investors.
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Board of Directors

The Board is directly, and indirectly through its various
committees (the “"Board Committees”), responsible for the
overall management of the business of the Group, formulating
the Group’s overall strategic direction and maintaining
appropriate levels of supervision, challenge and guidance in
its relationship with the management. The management is
delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for
the day-to-day management and administration of the Group.
The Board is provided with updates from the management to
give a balanced and easily understandable assessment of the
performance, recent development and prospects of the Group
on a regular basis.

The Board is the ultimate decision-making body for all
matters considered material to the Group and discharge its
responsibilities on corporate governance either by itself or the
Board Committees set out in the code provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code which include the following:

1.  to develop and review the policies and practice
on corporate governance of the Group and make
recommendations;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

3.  to review and monitor the Group's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to the Directors and
employees; and

5. to review the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report of the
Company.
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Composition of The Board

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises six Directors,
including two executive Directors, one non-executive Director
and three independent non-executive Directors as set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Huang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhu Qiang
(appointed on 23 March 2022)
Ms. He Minhua
(resigned on 31 May 2022)
Mr. Pui Lik Leung Kenny
(resigned on 23 March 2022)

Non-executive Director

Ms. Zheng Jingyun

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. He Weidong
Ms. Wang Shiling
Mr. Gong Lan
(appointed on 23 March 2022)
Ms. Zhao Wei Wei
(resigned on 23 March 2022)

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 35 to 37 of this annual report.

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) and Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three independent
non-executive Directors representing not less than one-third
of the Board and at least one of whom has the appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Company has received from each
independent non-executive Director an annual confirmation of
his/her independence, and the Company considers that as at
the date of this annual report such Directors are independent in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

To the best knowledge of the Board, there are no other
relationship (including financial, business, family, and other
material/relevant relationships) among the members of the
Board as of the date of this report.
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Board Diversity

The Board admits that board diversity is increasingly important
as a factor to enhance corporate governance and promote
board effectiveness. The current Board composition is well
balanced with each Director having skills, experience and
expertise relevant to the business operations, development
and strategy of the Group and from a variety of backgrounds.
Furthermore, as at the date of this report, the Board has a wide
range of age, ranging from 35 years old to 60 years old, and
has achieved gender diversity by having four male Directors and
two female Directors. The Board is well balanced and diversified
in education, professional background, functional expertise,
gender, age, culture and industrial experience.

The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy which sets
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board and the
factors (including but not limited to skills, regional and industry
experience, professional experience, background, education,
race, gender, age, culture and other qualities, etc.) to be
considered in determining the composition of the Board so
as to ensure the Board has the appropriate balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives that are required to
support the execution of its business strategy and to maximise
the Board’'s effectiveness. The Board will review the Board
diversity policy on a regular basis to ensure its continued
effectiveness.

After reviewing the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy, the Company considers that it has been effectively
implemented. As of 31 December 2022, the Company has
achieved the following measurable objectives set out in the
Board Diversity Policy:

o There is at least one female member in the Board: As of 31
December 2022, the Board has two female members and
four male members, allowing the Company to achieve the
gender diversity of the Board at 33.3%.

o There should be a reasonable age structure among
members of the Board: As of 31 December 2022, members
of the Board have a reasonable age structure, with four
directors aged 35 to 50 and two directors aged 51 to 60.

o Members of the Board should possess relevant
professional experience: As of 31 December 2022,
members of the Board possess wide range of professional
experience, including but not limited to corporate strategic
planning, corporate management, finance and financial
affairs.

22

ExeZnit

%%A%a ES AR | A - PIE:]

NRAlREBE N REESEUNRN — @
l? HBEZ - SEFABHAE
EXKLEE BELEBEEBOR
B MNERARETASE  HE
w%%%ﬁWELﬁE%$®°%
Gy RAREBE  EEENFRE

B EE N T35 260 WA
m%%%%&ﬁ%ﬁ%% & IR 1E Rl
Zult - BEEeRHUE BESS

BEEEE M 8 XERTE
@5 & TR -

EXECRMEFTEZLIEHER B
TEINEFEREZKESZT/ILM

KRBT hEBETEFEAKNMNE
BRZBRETRERRKE R R

(TERE . ﬁ%k«%ﬁ\ib%\#yﬁ\
Bk MR Fik XEREMEE
Z) KEMEREZSABEETY
TRAEBRERRNONATRSESS
BREENREE KBREZTLHE
HoEFERTHEEEEE ST
LR AREFBER

ERETESEZTLBRENERIS
NE - ARBREZHEREEBI AR
B - BHE2_E_—_F+-_A=+—
B ARREBEREESZ TLILERER
iz AT Azt 2R

e EFgRELE—BUMUENE:
HE-_ZE-_—_F+=-_A=+—8"
BEECOEMBERMERE RNE
EEKE FEARAESS
M B %t # £133.3% ©

e EEXEeXNEBHEBAGEMNT
BEE B2+
=t+t— B BFeNKNEBFKE
BEIE 35250 ESFMH A
B1E6OFEEMA ©

e EExgNEREAEBHEBEZIEE
&% HE_ZT-_—_F+=A
=+—H EEgXEEHBE
wHBEEKER  BEEASRR
TEBBERE - CEEE - B

ENPBEH-



—E-FH FLEERRBRAIA

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is committed to further improving gender diversity as
and when suitable candidates are identified. For further details,
please refer to our ESG Report.

The Company is also committed to a work environment that is
both diverse and inclusive, where all colleagues feel respected
and empowered to bring their authentic selves to work every
day. Similar considerations are applied when recruiting and
selecting member of the senior management and other
personnel across the Group’s operations. As at 31 December
2022, 43% of our colleagues are female. For details, please
refer to our ESG Report.

Board Process and Meetings

The Board meets regularly to determine overall strategies,
receive management updates, approve business plans as well
as interim and annual results and to consider other significant
matters. Special Board meetings are convened as and when
needed. The management also provides updates to the Board
with respect to the business activities and development of the
Group at these meetings on a regular basis.

Each Director ensures that he/she can give sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Company and contribute to the
Group’s development through his/her constructive and informed
comments. All the members of the Board disclose and update
their number and nature of offices held and time involved on a
regular basis.
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The Board held 12 meetings during FY2022 for discussing ZEEE@R TS HRFEHMEH
and approving the operation and business development of 12X @&l Wit /&R RQR A & E
the Company, including without limitation, change in auditors, KR EFHE BREETREREHLZ
financial budget and financial statements of the Company. The &iff - Bf 5 78 & & A R 7 &9 B 7% )
attendance of each Director at Board and committee meetings X - SEESHFEARAEETEREE
of the Company, whether in person or by means of electronic &&€&#(TwmBESHIUNESFBEAR)

communication, is detailed in the table below: MIBERFHNRTR:

Attendance/No. of meetings held during FY2022
HEAB /R-B-__HREENEEBERY

Annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting

EExe® FKZEEE HFWZEE REZEE RREFAS

Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Yu Huang REXE 12/12 2/2 11
Ms. He Minhua Mg ELL

(resigned on 31 May (R=ZZ=-%%A

2022) =+—HEf) 5/5
Mr. Zhu Qiang KRB KA

(appointed on 23 March (h=2=-=%=H

2022) “T-BEZMA) 1nm 11 1 1/1
Mr. Pui Lik Leung Kenny BRlmEE

(resigned on 23 March (R=—B--%=A8

2022) ZT=HEE) 0/1 0/1 0N
Non-executive Director EHTES
Ms. Zheng Jingyun BHEuL 12/12 ”n
Independent Non- BYHTES

executive Directors
Mr. He Weidong o] 87 3R 5 A 1212 3/3 2/2 2/2
Ms. Wang Shiling TRzt 1212 3/3 2/2 2/2
Mr.Gong Lan ERELE

(appointed on 23 March (R=ZZ==%F=R

2022) ZT-REZM) nm 3/3 2/2 2/2 1/1
Ms. Zhao Weiwei BEHZL

(resigned on 23 March (R=—Z-—%=8

2022) = + Ag ) 0/1 01
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Terms of Appointment and Re-Election of
Directors

Each of the executive Directors entered into a service contract
with the Company and each independent non-executive
Director and the non-executive Director has signed a letter
of appointment. The said service contracts and letters of
appointment are for an initial term of three years commencing
from the Listing Date, subject to re-election in accordance with
the Articles of Association of the Company (the “Articles”) and
termination in accordance with their respective terms.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, one-third of the Directors
shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general
meeting and every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least every three years. However, a retiring Director
shall be eligible for re-election. Any Director who is appointed by
the Board to fill the casual vacancy and any Director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the first general meeting after his appointment
and the next following annual general meeting of the Company
respectively and shall be eligible for re-election pursuant to
Article 83(3) of the Articles.

As such, Ms. Zheng Jingyun and Mr. He Weidong will retire
from office as Director and being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to be held on Friday, 28 July 2023 in accordance with
the Articles.

Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions
by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as its code of conduct regarding dealings in the securities
of the Company by the Directors and the Group's senior
management who, because of his/her office or employment,
is likely to possess inside information in relation to the Group
or the Company’s securities. Having made specific enquiry, all
Directors confirmed that they had complied with the Model
Code during FY2022. In addition, the Company is not aware
of any non-compliance of the Model Code by the senior
management of the Group during FY2022.
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Directors’ Training and Professional
Development

The Group acknowledges the importance of continuing $%@/”ﬁﬁf$%§m§ﬂ§$%
professional development for the Directors to extend and BREBANMBREENERN - &
refresh their knowledge and skills. Each Director keeps abreast %%fﬂ’l‘%?{’ﬁ%K’&ﬁT%%E@ﬁ{{ '
of responsibilities as a Director and of the conduct, business TRARBARBNRT - RBEEY
activities and development of the Company. REE -

Pursuant to the requirements of the CG Code, all Directors REBEEXERTURE MEES
should participate in continuous professional development to B2 HBEE Er XUuR O ERYLEH
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills, and should OB & oee jf)«@rﬂ$@aﬁjf#
provide their training records to the Company. According to the Hipjlisk REEFRHENEI
training records provided by the Directors, the trainings attended =0 &% ’fﬁ%m:;ﬁ::/ﬁz BFEM2
by them during FY2022 are summarised as follows: SIS T

Corporate Governance,
Regulatory
Development

and Trainings on

other relevant topics
TEER ETRRK

Directors = H {th 16 B 2 B RV 3T A
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Yu Huang RIEXAE v
Ms. He Minhua f] By ZE 42+

(resigned on 31 May 2022) (RZFEZZFRA=+—HET) v
Mr. Zhu Qiang Kog

(appointed on 23 March 2022) (RZFEZ_ZF=ZA=Z+=HEZH) v
Mr. Pui Lik Leung Kenny Bal=nsE

(resigned on 23 March 2022) (RZE-_—_F=ZA=-+=ZHE1E)
Non-executive Director FHITES
Ms. Zheng Jingyun =T v
Independent Non-executive BUKHITES

Directors
Mr. He Weidong IR L& v
Ms. Wang Shiling Fe L v
Mr. Gong Lan BRI E

(appointed on 23 March 2022) (R—E-_—_F=ZFA-_+=BHEZT) v
Ms. Zhao Wei Wei KK

(resigned on 23 March 2022) (R —_F#=ZA_-+=H#& M)
Board Committees BEEZES

The Board has established three Board Committees, namely & =& g
the Audit Committee, the remuneration committee (the =L E= . : @
“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee & | )R IELZZEe((EZEE2E]) "
(the “Nomination Committee”), for overseeing particular [} Et¢§$§@%7£$ﬁ o ﬁﬁﬁg%
aspects of the Group's affairs. All Board Committees were
established with written terms of reference in compliance with

Z

57 Al f X8R - I*ﬁiﬁﬂ‘éﬂzﬁéﬁul (&
the relevant code provisions of the CG Code, which are available  pA
K
i

& s BT 48 uh (www.hkexnews.hk)
N

at the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and a1 48 3k (www .kidztech.net) &

the Company (www.kidztech.net). i

\:%&E)ﬂﬂuﬁ
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Audit Committee EVEE®
The Audit Committee consists of the following members: BERZEGHUTKEMAN:
Independent non-executive Directors: BYFRTES:
Mr. Gong Lan* (Chairman) BRRELE(XE) )
(appointed on 23 March 2022) (R-_B-_—_F=A-+=HEZMF)
Ms. Zhao Wei Wei (Chairlady) BEELE(EE)

(resigned on 23 March 2022) RZEZZF=ZF=+=HFI)

2

(=
Mr. He Weidong Al AR e AE
Ms. Wang Shiling Fiig i+
The primary duties of the Audit Committee are, among others, TR ZEENTIEHEA(HP )
to make recommendation to the Board on appointment or re- BN X BEOEZE  EFHEER
appointment and removal of external auditor; review financial BEHRMEESRMHES  EHAQA
statements of the Company and judgments in respect of FHYBIFEIRE N A A 75 ME Ry H &
financial reporting; review the effectiveness of the Company's & & /K £= [ (A 30 28 5 Bt 68 &9 Ak &5 A
internal audit function; and oversee the effectiveness of the N ERANEERNIFE T LA K EE
internal control and risk management systems of the Group. GIIER IV
As disclosed above, during FY2022, three Audit Committee 0 X Frii R - — 8 B &F
meetings were held to review and discuss with the management [ @ BHZRZEB RTINS - UF
and the external auditor in respect of the accounting principles B & £ & I2 B K &b 36 #% £ 60 5 78 4N
and practices adopted by the Group, reviewing the results for EBHE MV R REH - B
FY2021 and unaudited interim results for the six months ended —“ZE-—HHBEENESE HE_-FT
30 June 2022, reviewing the effectiveness of the Company's Z—Z—EXA=1+tHIEXEAHKRKEE
internal audit function, as well as the reviewing the effectiveness % f Bl 2 48 - 4@ &1 AN 2 &) A 20 & &t
of the internal control and risk management systems of the M 82 A9 B 3K LA I 4 5 7K 62 [ (A & B4
Group. R [ B R B R AR AR e
Remuneration Committee FMEES

The Remuneration Committee consists of the following HMZEE&mIUTHKEHAMK:

members:
Independent non-executive Directors: BIUERITESE:
Ms. Wang Shiling (Chairlady) FHRLE(ZE)
Mr. He Weidong B
Mr. Gong Lan BmTAE
(appointed on 23 March 2022) (R-ZZE-_—_F=ZA-+=HEZMT)
Executive Directors: MITES:
Mr. Zhu Qiang ENE s )
(appointed on 23 March 2022) (RZB-_—F=ZA-+=HEZMT)
Mr. Pui Lik Leung Kenny BRI AE .
(resigned on 23 March 2022) (RZEZZF=ZA=Z+=ZB#M
The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to ¥ MZE@NIEBREARLE
make recommendation to the Board on the overall remuneration 2R &% SHEEEBL —RET
policy, on reviewing and/or approving matters relating to share M ZEEHF B X - EHA & St #E
schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and structure < M #2 Rl > % 4+ & frift A B ik 1
relating to all Directors, senior management and general staff of B REBMEESRPZZ @ #
the Group and ensure that none of the Directors or any of their REFHHFMBEATFL2HEE
associates determine their own remuneration. EECHEMN -
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As disclosed above, during FY2022, two Remuneration
Committee meetings were held to determining the policy for
the remuneration of executive Directors, assessing performance
of executive Directors and approving the terms of executive
Directors' service contracts, and reviewing and/or approving
matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17.

The Remuneration Committee determined the annual
remuneration of executive Directors and member of the senior
management based on the economic situation, the prevailing
market condition, the responsibilities and duties assumed by
each executive Director and member of the senior management
as well as their individual performance. The Remuneration
Committee subsequently made recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of executive Directors
and member of the senior management. Pursuant to the code
provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of the
member of senior management by band for FY2022 is set out
below:

B EX P R —BHEE
%MiAaﬁﬂﬁmﬁﬁ'ugﬁ
HRITEENFMMBE FHBTE
EMRBIHERATEERBEAY
MiEZH URBREFI7TEERE/
st EER DTS BREEE -

FMZEe@RELHEMNRNR
BN BHTEERSRE
ANEBEAENBRENLKRSHE
RETHTESELRRREEE
MEH - FMZEHRH
ERERREEREABNH A
ExeRbEZ REBELEE
WMﬂﬂM%Y%E1H%'
PRFERERE NS
BOFEFHFWT:

E

iz e

<

wwmwﬁiimm
eI DK O > >
> |1 4}3}}&&1,@;}1&15&

%H

Number of individuals

AE
Emolument bands B & & &
Nil to HKD1,000,000 = %1,000,000/% 7T 1
Nomination Committee REZEE
The Nomination Committee consists of the following members: IEZZE & H AT EHK :
Independent non-executive Directors: BUENITESE:
Mr. He Weidong (Chairman) B REE(EE)
Ms. Wang Shiling Fiig i+
Mr. Gong Lan BERL A

(appointed on 23 March 2022)
Ms. Zhao Wei Wei
(resigned on 23 March 2022)

Executive Directors:

Mr. Yu Huang
Mr. Zhu Qiang
(appointed on 23 March 2022)
Mr. Pui Lik Leung Kenny
(resigned on 23 March 2022)

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board annually,
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members;
assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and make recommendations to the Board on matters
relating to appointment and reappointment of Directors.
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To enhance the nomination process for a Director candidate, a
nomination policy was adopted during FY2022 as a guidance
on the selection process and Board succession planning.
The Nomination Committee will utilise various methods for
identifying Director candidates, including recommendations
from the Board members, management, and professional
search firms and may review resume and job history, conduct
personal interviews and verification of professional and personal
references or perform the background checks, etc. On evaluation
of the Director candidates including incumbents and candidates
nominated by the Shareholders, the Board and the Nomination
Committee will take into account whether a candidate has the
qualifications, skills and experience, gender diversity, etc. that
can add to and complement the range of skills, experience
and background of the existing Directors and may consider the
following qualifications are at a minimum to be required of a
Director candidate for recommendation to the Board, or the
continued service of the existing Director:

o the highest personal and professional ethics and integrity;

o proven achievement and competence in the nominee’s field
and the ability to exercise sound business judgment;

o skills that are complementary to those of the existing
Board;

° the ability to assist and support management and make
significant contributions to the Company’s success;

o an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities that is
required of a member of the Board and the commitment
of time and energy necessary to diligently carry out those
responsibilities; and

o independence as required by the Listing Rules.

The Board and the Nomination Committee will also make
reference to the Board diversity policy, details of which are set
out in the section headed “Board Diversity” above.

As disclosed above, during FY2022, two Nomination Committee
meetings were held to review the structure of the Board and
assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and proposed appointment and re-appointment of
Directors.
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Company Secretaries

Ms. Koo Ching Fan and Ms. Cao Xuelian resigned as the
company secretary and joint company secretary of the Company
on 21 July 2022 and 31 May 2022, respectively. Mr. Hong Kam
Le was appointed as the company secretary of the Company
on 21 July 2022, and subsequently resigned on 24 February
2023. Mr. Chan Pak Lun was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 24 February 2023. Please refer
to the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report for their biographical
information. Ms. Koo, Ms. Cao, Mr. Hong and Mr. Chan have
confirmed that they have attended no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules in FY2022.

Mr. Yu Huang, an executive director of the Company, is the

primary corporate contact person of the Company.

Directors’ and External Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of
the financial statements which give a true and fair of the state of
affairs of the Group. In preparing the financial statements which
give a true and fair view, it is fundamental that appropriate
accounting policies should be selected and applied consistently.

This statement of the external auditors of the Company
acknowledging their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the
contained in this annual report.

“Independent Auditor's Report”
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is ultimately responsible for the risk management
of the Group and has full authority to maintain the soundness
and effectiveness of the internal control system and risk
management procedures of the Group to ensure efficient and
effective use of the Group’s resources to assist the Group in
achieving its operation objectives, safeguarding the Group's
assets and ensuring compliance with laws and regulations.

The Group emphasizes the importance of a sound internal
control system which is also indispensable for mitigating the
Group’s key risk exposures. The Group’'s system of internal
control is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage and eliminate risks of failure in operational systems
and fulfillment of the business objectives. The internal control
system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by the Board in order to
make it practical and effective in providing reasonable assurance
in relation to protection of material assets and Shareholders’
interests. During the year under review, an external independent
consultant has reviewed the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group. The Group has adopted a
three-tier risk management approach to identify, assess and
manage different types of risks. At the first line of defence,
business units are responsible for identifying, assessing and
monitoring risk associated with each business or transaction.
The management, as the second line of defence, defines rule
sets and models, provides technical support, develops new
system and oversees portfolio management. It ensures risks are
within an acceptable range and that the first line of defence is
effective. As the third line of defense, the external independent
consultant assists the review of the first and second lines of
defence. The Group is committed to the identification, evaluation
and management of risks associated with its business activities
through ongoing assessment of a risk register, by considering
the likelihood and impact of each identified risk. The Group
has implemented an effective control system which includes
a defined management structure with limits of authority, a
sound management system and periodic review of the Group’s
performance by the Audit Committee and the Board.

For FY2022, the external independent consultant, engaged to
review the Group's internal control systems and recommend
actions to improve our internal controls, has provided written
reports to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has
also reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience, training and budget of the accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions on an annual basis. Based on
the review, the Audit Committee is of the view that the Group’s
internal control system was generally effective.
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Based on the above, the Board has conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
system of the Group pursuant to D.2.1 of the CG Code, covering
the material financial, operational and compliance controls, and
considers them generally effective and adequate in all material
respects. With a view of further enhancing the Group’s internal
control system on an ongoing basis, the Group will continue to
engage external professional advisers to conduct reviews and
consider to establish a formal in-house internal audit department
where necessary from time to time, taking into account the
development of the business and the scale and complexity of
our operation in the future.

Auditor’'s Remuneration

For FY2022, the fee paid or payable in respect of the services
provided by the auditors, McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA
Limited, is as follows:

%%iL
SR TR ED2 MG H A K B /R R
%E&W*Bw*I/H/LE’]ﬁ)&ﬁLTT
T MEERYE 2EREHR
EXE UTRAZZFEREEZEEARS
E%$ﬁ§ﬁ(&?ﬁ o BEEE—F
MABEAEBNRNPEZTRE A&
ERERBEEBNZEREINREKM
EEBEMAERERE EEIER
¥EMETRFSEITNREEERAMLE
BEZIEXNMAIPEREI -

N BEFGCREBELEE

RBET &

R-ZB__UREE EBOESE
(BE)EHAMEBAARAAMIE
HRFEHRENERNOT

Amount
&8
RMB'000
ARET T

= 2R

Audit services

1,000

Interim report review service

FHREEBRS 100

Total BT

1,100

Shareholders’ Rights and Investor Relations

The Board values the importance of communications with
the Shareholders. As one of the measures to safeguard the
Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions will
be proposed at Shareholders’ meeting on each substantial
issue including the re-election of individual Directors. All
resolutions put forward at the Shareholders’ meeting will be
conducted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll
results will be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.kidztech.net).

The next annual general meeting of the Company will be held on
Friday, 28 July 2023, and notice of the meeting will be sent to
the Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the said
meeting.
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Procedures and Right for Shareholders to
Convene Extraordinary General Meeting

The following procedures for Shareholders to convene an

extraordinary general meeting (the

"EGM") are subject to

the Articles, and the applicable legislation and regulations, in
particular the Listing Rules:

1.

if any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company submit a written
requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company
by post to the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong at Room 802, 8/F, Inter-Continental Plaza, 94
Granville Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong
with full name, contact details and identification provided
to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
(2) months after the deposit of such requisition; and

the Board should within 21 days from the date of the
deposit for the requisition proceed duly to convene the
EGM to be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If the Board fails to do so, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Shareholders may also make reference to Article 58 of the

Articles for further details.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meetings by shareholders

There are no provisions under the Articles of Association or
the Companies Act, Cap 22 (Act 3 of 1961,

as consolidated

and revised) of the Cayman Islands regarding procedures for
shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings other
than a proposal of a person for election as director. Shareholders
may follow the procedures set out above to convene an
extraordinary general meeting for any business specified in such
written requisition.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person
for Election as a Director of the Company

If a Shareholder, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at
the general meeting convened to deal with the appointment or
election of Director(s), wishes to propose a person for election as
a Director at that meeting, he/she may lodge a written notice at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Room
802, 8/F, Inter-Continental Plaza, 94 Granville Road, Tsim Sha
Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the company
secretary of the Company. Detailed procedures for Shareholders
to propose a person for election as a Director of the Company can
be found on the Company’s website (www.kidztech.net).

Investors Relations

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining an ongoing
dialogue with the Shareholders through various channels
including general meetings, press releases, announcements and
corporate communications such as the annual report, interim
report and circulars. Latest news and updates of the Group's
business and operation are also available on the Company's
website (www.kidztech.net).

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’ communication
policy. Enquiries and proposals from Shareholders, investors
and all stakeholders of the Company are welcomed. Enquiries
to the Board or the Company must be deposited at or sent by
post to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Room 802, 8/F, Inter-Continental Plaza, 94 Granville Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong with full name, contact
details and identification provided.

Any person having any enquiries in relation to the shareholdings,
share transfer or registration of the Company may contact the
Company's share registrar. Their contact details can be found on
the Company’s website (www.kidztech.net).

During FY2022, the Company considers that the Shareholders
communication policy was effectively implemented with the
above measures in place.

Constitutional Documents

During FY2022, there was no change in the Company's
constitutional documents. The Articles are available at the
websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the
Company (www.kidztech.net).
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Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Huang (RJ&), aged 42, founded the Group through
the establishment of Shantou Chenghai Jinjun Toys Co., Ltd.*
(LEmEEEBEITABRAA) in June 2009. Mr. Yu is
the chairman, executive Director, chief executive officer and
controlling shareholder of the Company. He was appointed as a
Director in October 2019 and was re-designated as an executive
Director in November 2019.

Mr. Yu has over 12 years of experience in the toy manufacturing
and sale industry. Prior to the establishment of the Group, Mr. Yu
worked as the deputy general manager of Shantou Chenghai
Changxing Paper Foil Co., Ltd.* CLEME SEE B K BEEGR
A 7)) from July 2004 to March 2007 and the general manager
of Shantou Chenghai Jinjun Toys Factory* (|38 % /& [& 8% 5%
It B B ), which is primarily engaged in toy manufacturing, from
March 2007 to June 2009. Mr. Yu graduated from the Guangdong
Justice Police Vocational College* (ERAIAZEEBEER) in
the PRC and was awarded a professional diploma in law.

Mr. Zhu Qiang (% #), aged 35, was appointed as an executive
Director, a member of each of the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee of the Company 23 March 2022.
Mr. Zhu is majoring in information security and management at
The Open University of China. Mr. Zhu has extensive experience
in financial leasing and industrial investment and financing
management, and is experienced in employing financial tools in
combination with traditional businesses. Mr. Zhu was the deputy

general manager of Zhongyue International Financial Leasing
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.* (FEHFE@EHRECRINER QA from

July 2016 to September 2018, primarily responsible for risk
management of finance lease assets, and the general manager
of Wing Hang International Capital Holdings (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ltd.* Gk = BB EARZER ORI BR AR
January 2022.
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Non-executive Director

Ms. Zheng Jingyun (B&ZE) aged 48, was appointed as a
non-executive Director in November 2019. Ms. Zheng is mainly
responsible for advising on business strategy of the Group. She
joined the Group in April 2016 and was a director of Kidztech
Intelligent from April 2016 to October 2019.

Ms. Zheng has been an executive director and a general
manager of various private companies.

Ms. Zheng graduated from Chengcheng Vocational and Technical

School* (% ¥ Bk 2 £ 9l 7 2) in the PRC.
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. He Weidong ({1 & &) (formerly known as He Jinghui ({i] &
#£)), aged 60, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in February 2020. He was an independent director of
Kidztech Intelligent from September 2017 to October 2019.

Mr. He has over 20 years of experience in corporate and
investment management. He held management positions at China
Network Communications Co., Ltd. (FE @4 Bz H R A a)
(which was merged with China United Network Communications
Group Co., Ltd. later) and CNC Kuandai Network Co., Ltd.* (43
BERE ZH%%BETEE He is currently a shareholder, an
executive director and a general manager of various private
companies.

Mr. He obtained a Bachelor of Radio Engineering degree from
the Beijing University of Posts and Telecommunications (3t %
#EAEZ) in the PRC, and an Executive Master of Business
Administration diploma from the Tsinghua University ()& % X
&) in the PRC. He obtained the “qualification as an independent
director of listed companies” from the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
in 2018.

Ms. Wang Shiling (Et#8), aged 39, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, the chairlady of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company
on 31 August 2021. She has over 10 years of experience
in financial management of risk control. Prior to joining the
Group, Ms. Wang has worked in a number of investment and
financial industry companies. She has been the director of risk
management of Shenzhen City Guoan Yitong Investment Co.,
Ltd.* ORI B =8 @& & B R A A since August 2017.
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Ms. Wang obtained a Bachelor's degree in International Trade
from the Guangdong University of Foreign Studies in the
Guangdong Province of the PRC in December 2007.

Mr. Gong Lan (887%), aged 54, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee,
and a member of each of the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company on 23 March 2022.
Mr. Gong graduated from Shanghai Lixin University of Accounting
and Finance (formerly known as Lixin Accounting College) in
1994, majoring in foreign-related accounting, and obtained the
qualification of Chinese certified public accountant in 1999.

Mr. Gong has over 20 years of financial management experience in
various industries including trading, industrial and investment. From
1990 to 2005, he served as the internal audit and taxation officer
of Donghao Lansheng Exhibition Group Co., Ltd.* (R&EE S
BREBERMARALT) (@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange with stock code: 600826, formerly known as Shanghai
Lansheng Co., Ltd.* (E /8B4 MK M AR A F)) and the financial
manager of its subsidiary, Datang Lansheng Communication and
Navigation Technology Co., Ltd* (KE B A BREEM T MTAE
fR A 7]). Mr. Gong served as the financial manager of Shanghai
Shanshan Xinmingda Industrial Co., Ltd.* (b8 FBAEET XS
BR /A ®]) from January 2006 to May 2012 and the financial manager
of Shanghai Ganyuan Trading Co., Ltd.* (L B2 BRESER A
A]) from May 2012 to January 2021. He has been serving as the
financial manager of Shanghai Ruiyixiang Industrial Co., Ltd.* (k&
BEZZFEE AR AT (formerly known as Shanghai Ruiyixiang

=

Trading Co., Ltd.* (E /B EFZZ & 5 B R A 7)) since March 2021.

Senior Management

Mr. Yu Huang (R 8), aged 42, is currently the chief executive
officer of the Company. For his biographical details, please refer
to the section headed “Executive Directors” above.
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Company Secretary

Mr. Chan Pak Lun (BR#H ), is currently a solicitor at the law
firm of DeHeng Law Offices (Hong Kong) LLP in Hong Kong,
specialising in corporate finance work including initial public
offerings, mergers and acquisitions and restructuring. Mr.
Chan is a practising solicitor in the field of commercial and
corporate finance and was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong
in December 2018. He completed the bachelor of laws degree
programme at The University of Hong Kong in December
2015. He is also serving as the company secretary of GT Steel
Construction Group Limited (stock code: 8402), whose shares
are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors hereby present their report and audited
consolidated financial statements for FY2022.

Principal Activities and Business Review

The Group is principally engaged in the design, development,
manufacture and sale of high-quality smart toy vehicles,
smart interactive toys and traditional toys. The products of the
Group are manufactured on an original brand manufacturing,
ODM and OEM bases, and are (i) branded with the Group's
"kidztech” brand; (ii) cobranded with (a) renowned automobile
manufacturers, (b) popular entertainment characters featured in
animated television series or motions pictures or (c) toy brand
owner; and (iii) branded under the Group’s overseas customers’
brands, which mainly represent the products the Group
manufactures on an ODM and OEM bases and the products sold
to the Group's customers branded under their respective brands.
Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

For discussion and analysis of these activities as required
by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), including a fair review of business,
important events to the business and an indication of likely
future developments in the Group's business, can be found in
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 7 to 18 of this annual report.

Segment Information

An analysis of the Group’s performance for FY2022 by operating
segment is set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for FY2022 are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 97 of
this annual report.

Declaration of dividends was subject to the discretion of the
Directors, depending on the results of operation, working
capital and cash position, future business and earnings, capital
requirements, contractual restrictions under the bank loan
agreements, if any, as well as any other factors which the
Directors might consider relevant. In addition, any declaration

and payment as well as the amount of the dividends would be
subject to the provisions of the Articles and the applicable laws
of the Cayman Islands.
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The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for FY2022 (FY2021: NIL).

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 25 July 2023 to Friday, 28 July 2023, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be
registered. In order to determine the identity of the Shareholders
who are entitled to attend and vote at the AGM, all duly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’'s Hong Kong
share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/F Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 24 July 2023.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five years, as extracted from the consolidated
financial statements, is set out on page 180 of this annual
report.

An analysis using key financial performance indicators can be
found in section headed "Management Discussion and Analysis"
on pages 7 to 18 of this annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements during FY2022 in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements during FY2022 in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Reserves

As at 31 December 2022, the Company's reserve available for
distribution to the Shareholders, calculated in accordance with
the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands and the Articles
amounted to approximately RMB358,153,000. Details of the
movements in the reserves of the Group during FY2022 are set
out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Equity Linked Agreement

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” below, no equity-linked agreement was entered into
by the Group, or existed during FY2022.

Share Option Scheme

The Company conditionally adopted the Share Option Scheme
on 13 February 2020, so as to grant options to selected
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to
the Group. Given that the Directors are entitled to determine
any performance targets to be achieved as well as the minimum
period that an option must be held before an option can be
exercised on a case by case basis, and that the exercise price
of an option cannot in any event fall below the price stipulated
in the Listing Rules or such higher price as may be fixed by the
Directors, it is expected that grantees of an option will make
an effort to contribute to the development of the Group to
bring about an increased market price of the Shares in order to
capitalise on the benefits of the options granted.

The Directors may, at its absolute discretion, grant options to
any of the following classes of participants: (a) any employee
(whether full-time or part-time including any executive director
but excluding any non-executive director) of the Company,
any of the subsidiaries or any entity (the “Invested Entity")
in which any member of the Group holds an equity interest
("Eligible Employee”); (b) any non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors of the Company,
any of the subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; (c) any supplier of
goods or services to any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; (d) any customer of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (e) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity; (f) any shareholder of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any
securities issued by any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; (g) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of the business or business development of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; and (h) any other
group or classes of participants who have contributed or may
contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance or other
business arrangement to the development and growth of the
Group.
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The total number of the Shares which may be allotted and issued
upon the exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose,
options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company) to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Company must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the number of Shares in issue on
the Listing Date, being 52,000,000 Shares, which represented
approximately 9.98% of the Shares in issue as at the date of this
annual report. The total number of Shares issued and which may
fall to be issued upon the exercise of the options granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company (including both exercised or outstanding options)
to each grantee in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the number of Shares in issue for the time being. Any further
grant of options in excess of the 1% limit shall be subject to
Shareholders’ approval in general meeting with such grantee and
his associates abstaining from voting.

The subscription price for the Shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined at the discretion of the
Directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
guotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots of the
Shares on the date of the offer for the grant, which must be a
business day; (ii) the average closing price of Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of the offer for the grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of a Share. A nominal consideration of
HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of an option within
21 days from the date of the offer of grant of the option.

Unless there is an early termination of the Share Option Scheme
pursuant to the rules of the Share Option Scheme, the Share
Option Scheme will remain in force for a period which may
not expire later than of 10 years commencing on the date on
which the Share Option Scheme is adopted and shall expire on
12 February 2030. The period during which an option may be
exercised will be determined by the Directors in their absolute
discretion, save that no option shall be exercised later than 10
years from the date of grant, subject to early termination of the
Share Option Scheme pursuant to the rules of the Share Option
Scheme. Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and
stated in the offer for the grant of options to a grantee, there is
no minimum period required under the Share Option Scheme for
the holding of an option before it can be exercised.
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On 21 June 2022, the Board granted 52,000,000 options to
certain employees of the Group at an exercise price of HK$1.17
per share under the Share Option Scheme.

As at 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022, the total number
of options available for grant under the scheme limit of the
Share Option Scheme were 52,000,000 shares and 0 share
respectively, representing 9.98% and 0% of the Shares in issue
as at the date of this annual report respectively. The number of
Shares that may be issued in respect of options granted under
the Share Option Scheme represented approximately 9.98% of
the issued Shares of FY2022.

During FY2022, movements of options granted under the Share
Option Scheme are set out below:
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Note: (1)

The options were granted on 21 June 2022 by the Company
and are exercisable for 10 years from the date of grant (i.e.
21 June 2022 to 20 June 2032 (both days inclusive)). The
options granted were vested immediately upon grantees’
acceptance of such options. These options are exercisable
at HK$1.17. The closing price of the Shares immediately
before the date on which the options were granted was
HK$1.17. The options were granted after the market closed
on 21 June 2022 on which the closing price was HK$1.15.
The average closing price of five trading days preceding the
vesting of the options was HK$1.17 per share. The options
granted were not subject to satisfaction of any performance
target. Please refer to note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for FY2022 for the fair value
of such options at the date of grant and the accounting
standard and policy adopted. No options were exercised
during FY2022 and 52,000,000 options were vested. There
were no cancellation or lapse of the options during FY2022.
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Disclosure of Interests

n

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying
Shares or Debentures

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company in
the shares, the underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including the
interest or short positions which any such Director or
chief executive was taken or deemed to have under such
provision of the SFO) or which, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, have been entered in the register referred to
therein, or have been, pursuant to the Model Code, notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:
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Notes:

(1) Top Synergy Y&C Limited is owned as to approximately
94.79% by Mr. Yu Huang and as to approximately 5.21%
by Ms. Chen Cheng, respectively. Therefore, Mr. Yu Huang
is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Top
Synergy Y&C Limited pursuant to the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none
of the Directors nor chief executive of the Company had
registered an interest and short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, have been entered in the register referred to
therein, or have been, pursuant to the Model Code, notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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() Substantial Shareholders’ and Other ()
Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2022,
the following persons/entities (other than the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company) had an interest or
short position in the Shares and underlying Shares which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or otherwise
notified to the Company were as follows:
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Notes:

(1) Ms. Chen Cheng is the spouse of Mr. Yu Huang. Therefore,
Ms. Chen Cheng is deemed to be interested in all the
Shares that Mr. Yu Huang is interested in pursuant to the
SFO.

(2)  Motivational Mathematics Limited is owned as to 100% by
Mr. Wu Xiongbin, who is deemed to be interested in all the
Shares held by Motivational Mathematics Limited pursuant
to the SFO.

(3)  As security for a loan provided by Gold-Face Finance Limited
to the Company, each of Top Synergy Y&C Limited and Keen
Pacemaker Limited, as chargor has charged 100,000,000
shares and 21,080,000 shares respectively in favour of
Gold-Face Finance Limited. Gold-Face Finance Limited
is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Upbest Group
Limited. For details, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 23 December 2021 and 16 September
2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no
person other than the Directors and chief executive of
the Company whose interests are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests and
Short Positions in the Shares, the Underlying Shares
or Debentures” above, had notified the Company of
an interest or short position in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debenture of the Company that was required
to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO or which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During FY2022, so far as the Company is aware, the aggregate
revenue attributable to the five largest customers and the
largest customer accounted for approximately 76% (2021: 36%)
and 29% (2021: 8%), respectively, of the Group's total revenue
for FY2022. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 76% (2021: 70%) of the Group's
total purchase for FY2022 and the purchase from the largest
supplier included therein amounted to approximately 44% (2021:
21%), respectively, of the Group's total purchase for FY2022.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, or any
of their close associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) or
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital), had
any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers or
suppliers during FY2022.

Directors

The Directors during FY2022 and up to the date of this annual
report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Huang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. He Minhua
(resigned on 31 May 2022)
Mr. Zhu Qiang
(appointed on 23 March 2022)
Mr. Pui Lik Leung Kenny
(resigned on 23 March 2022)

Non-executive Director
Ms. Zheng Jingyun

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. He Weidong
Ms. Wang Shiling
Mr. Gong Lan
(appointed on 23 March 2022)
Ms. Zhao Wei Wei
(resigned on 23 March 2022)
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In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Articles, Ms. Zheng
Jingyun and Mr. He Weidong will retire by rotation at the next
annual general meeting and eligible for re-election.

Information regarding Directors’ emoluments is set out in note
12 to the consolidated financial statements.

Biographical Details of Directors and
Changes in Information of Directors

Brief biographical details of the Directors including the changes
in the Directors’ information if any subsequent to the interim
report are included in the biographical details as set out on
pages 35 to 37 of this annual report.

Directors’ services Contracts

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial term of three years
and will continue thereafter unless and until terminated by the
Company or the Director or the Director has not been re-elected
as a Director or has been removed by Shareholders at any of
its general meeting or is disqualified from acting as a Director
in accordance with the Articles. Each non-executive Director
and independent non-executive Director was appointed under
a letter of appointment for a fixed term of three years unless
terminated by the Company or the Director in accordance with
the terms as set out in the letter of appointment.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has or is
proposed to have a service agreement with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than the
statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements, Contracts of Significance

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to
the Group's business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which the Director or a
connected entity of the Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted as at, or at any time during
FY2022.
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Controlling Shareholders’ Interests

No contract of significance has been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries during FY2022.

Emoluments of the Directors and Five
Highest Paid Individuals

Details of the emoluments of Directors and the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Emolument Policy

The Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing
the Group’s emolument policy and structure for making
recommendation to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure relating to all Directors, senior management
and general staff of the Group. The remunerations of the
Directors are determined by reference to the economic
situation, the prevailing market condition, the responsibilities
and duties assumed by each Director as well as their individual
performance.

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme, details of
which are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
in this annual report.

Competing Interests

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of
Directors nor the controlling Shareholder nor any of their
respective close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) that
compete or may compete with the business of the Group and
any conflicts of interests which any such person has or may
have with the Group during FY2022.

—E-FH FLEERRBRAIA

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
ExERS

ERRRERS

RZZEZZBBRFEE AR EE
o] B BB & =) 3 42 A% PR BR =l H T {A] B
BRBMETLERAY -

EEROAREHFMALH
B <=

EMHRBEARNE AR
12 -

H R

ARRERIFMEZECGHAKE
MBFMERRRRBEETEN UY
He2REF AKESAETEER
—RETHBENEBEBHFMEE LR
BRESSFELEBRZZ -EFH
FEM L2 RBEEMMR - BB EN
N BESFAENBREARNETH
BAXRBRAEE -

<

ARBCRMN—ABEBRESS  AH
FHBHERNAFRIBRAESS ]

mEMEERS

RZEZ_MBREFEE EFEHTA
BEELRERBREREIMAREE SRS
MEMEZHBHEA(ERR EWHEL)
CHEMERKEREAEBNER
RS HERSE  TTAMET
MZEALTODERATEEAER R
IR E ] B 25 BT 38 o




Kidztech Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHS

Non-Competition Undertaking

The Company confirms that the non-competition undertaking of
Mr. Yu Huang, Ms. Chen Cheng and Top Synergy Y&C Limited,
details of which were set out in the Prospectus, has been fully
complied and enforced during FY2022. The Board also confirms
that there are no other matters in relation to the aforesaid
undertaking which should be brought to the attention of the
Shareholders and the potential investors of the Company.

Legal Proceedings and Compliance

To the best knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 December
2022, there were no legal proceedings or claims currently
existing, pending or threatened against any member of the
Group that the Directors consider will have a material adverse
effect on the financial conditions or results of operation of the
Group.

During FY2022, the Group’s business operations had complied
with applicable laws, rules and regulations in the places where
the Group operates in all material respects save for (i) failure
to make social insurance contributions in full compliance
with the Social Insurance Law of the PRC; (i) failure to make
housing provident fund contributions in full compliance with the
Regulations on the Administration of Housing Provident Fund
of the PRC; and (iii) failure in completing the (a) environmental
impact assessment before construction; and (b) construction
of the matching environmental protection facilities and the
inspection and acceptance formalities before the operation of
a production plant. Please refer to the subparagraph headed
“Non-compliance Incidents” under the paragraph headed “Legal
Proceedings and Compliance” in the section headed “Business”
of the Prospectus.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The following is a list of principal risks and uncertainties
that may affect the business, financial condition, results of
operations and growth prospects of the Company. However,
this list is not exhaustive as there may be other risks and
uncertainties resulting from changes in economic condition and
operating environment over time:

1. Economic and political risk: the Sino-US trade war may
further affect the Group’s business, financial conditions
and results of operations; and the continuous outbreak of
the contagious COVID-19 in the PRC and worldwide may
continue to have a material adverse effect on the Group's
business, results of operations, financial condition and
prospects.

2. Business risk: the Group's sale of co-branded products
relies on the popularity and market acceptance of
intellectual properties used in the co-branded products,
which depends largely on the public reception on the car
models and the entertainment characters of the intellectual
properties licensors and the marketing and promotional
activities of the intellectual properties licensors. The Group
also does not maintain long term purchase contracts
with most of the Group's customers, any disruption or
termination of the business relationships with the major
customers or fluctuations in their demand for the Group's
products may have a material adverse effect on the
Group's business, results of operation, financial condition
and prospect.

3. Compliance risk: Non-compliance with product safety
and laws and regulations may lead to financial loss and
reputational damage. Product safety is the Group's
number one priority. The Group has robust processes
and procedures in place to ensure compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations. Changes in related laws
and regulations may lead to increased compliance costs.

4.  Financial risk: The Group is exposed to financial risks
related to currency, pricing, credit and liquidity in the
normal course of business. For details of such financial
risks, please refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group has developed a risk management and internal control
system to identify current risks and has undertaken necessary
measures to mitigate the risks identified. Details of the Group's
risk management and internal control system are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report of this annual report.
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Key Relationship with the Stakeholders

The Company recognises that employees are its valuable assets.
Thus, the Group provides competitive remuneration packages to
attract and motivate the employees, and regularly reviews the
remuneration package of the employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard. For further
details of the benefits of the employees, please refer to the
section headed “Employees and Remuneration Policies” in this
annual report.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with its business partners to achieve its long-term
goals. Accordingly, the Directors and senior management have
kept good communication, promptly exchanged ideas and shared
business updates with its business partners when appropriate.
During FY2022, there was no material and significant dispute
between the Group and any of its business partners.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

Every Director shall be entitled under the Articles to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all actions,
costs, charges, losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/
her as a Director in the execution or discharge of his/her duty.
The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and
costs associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against the Directors since the Listing Date.

Connected and Related Party Transactions

For FY2022, there were no connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions of the Company which
require compliance with any of the reporting, announcement or
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

Neither the Company nor any member of the Group had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Shares during FY2022.

Sufficiency of Public Float

To the best knowledge of the Directors and based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company, at least
25% of the Company’s issued capital were held by public during
FY2022 and up to the date of this annual report.

Auditor

Following the resignation of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the
auditor of the Company on 11 January 2021, Zhonghui Anda CPA
Limited (“Zhonghui Anda”) was appointed as the auditor of
the Company on 13 January 2021 to fill the vacancy. For further
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
13 January 2021.

Following the resignation of Zhonghui Anda as the auditor of the
Company on 24 February 2023, McMillan Woods (Hong Kong)
CPA Limited ("McMillan Woods (Hong Kong)") was appointed
as the auditor of the Company on 24 February 2023 to fill the
vacancy. For further details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 24 February 2023.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other changes in
auditors of the Company during the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements for FY2022 have been
audited by McMillan Woods (Hong Kong), who shall retire in the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and, being
eligible, offer itself for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) as the auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance of the Company are set out
in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report”
annual report.
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Taxation relief

According to the laws of the Cayman Islands, there are currently
no taxes levied on individuals or corporations by reason
of holding of Shares based upon profits, income, gains or
appreciations and there is no taxation in the nature of inheritance
tax or estate duty.

Environmental Policy

The Group’'s commitment to protecting the environment is
well reflected by the continuous efforts in promoting green
measures and awareness in its daily business operations. The
Group encourages environmental protection and promotes
awareness towards environmental protection to the employees.
The Group reviews its environmental practices from time to time
and will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures
and practices in the operation of the Group’s businesses and
enhancing environmental sustainability.

Details of the Group’s environmental, social and governance
policies and performance during FY2022 shall be disclosed in a
standalone environmental, social and governance report, which
will be published in due course.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company is incorporated, which oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

Management Contracts
No contracts concerning management and administration of the

whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or in existence during FY2022.

Charitable Donations

During FY2022, no charitable and other donations was made by
the Group (FY2021: approximately RMB12,000).
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Continuing disclosure requirement under rule
13.21 of the Listing Rules

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 23
December 2022, on 23 December 2022, the Company entered
into a loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with a licensed
money lender in Hong Kong under the Money Lenders Ordinance
(the “Lender”) for the principal amount of HK$30,000,000 (the
“Loan”). The Loan has a term of one year from its drawdown
date subject to the terms of the Loan Agreement. To the best
of the knowledge, information and belief of the Directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, the Lender is a third party
independent of the Company and its connected persons (as
defined in the Listing Rules).

Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the Company has covenanted
that it will procure Mr. Yu Huang, a controlling shareholder of
the Company, among others, not to sell, transfer or otherwise
dispose of his equity interests in the Company and its
subsidiaries or associated companies or any part thereof or
create any encumbrance over his equity interests or any part
thereof unless with the prior written consent of the Lender. A
breach of such covenant will constitute an event of default, upon
the occurrence of which, all outstanding amounts under the
Loan Agreement shall become immediately due and payable.

As at 31 December 2022, Top Synergy Y&C Limited held
approximately 39.69% of the total issued share capital of
the Company. Top Synergy Y&C Limited was owned as to
approximately 94.79% by Mr. Yu Huang and as to approximately
5.21% by Ms. Chen Cheng, the spouse of Mr. Yu Huang,
respectively.

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount of
HK$30,000,000 had been drawn and became due and payable
on 22 December 2022. Pursuant to the new loan supplement
agreement was signed with the lender on 16 December 2022,
the repayment of the loan was extended to 23 March 2023.
Subsequently, the Company continued to negotiate with
the Lender to extend the repayment arrangements and no
agreement was reached as at the date of this annual report. In
addition, the Company has not received demand for repayment
from the Lender as at the date of this annual report.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Company
did not have other disclosure obligations under Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board
Kidztech Holdings Limited
Yu Huang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 7 July 2023
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT
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report ]E
The Board (the “Board”) of directors of Kidztech Holdings aTtEZERBR 2R
Limited (the "Company”) is pleased to present the ANEEe((ES %J)ﬁh@"ﬁ
environmental, social and governance (“ESG") report EXARARERNBARTXRE
(the “Report”) of the Company and its subsidiaries (the =) # 12022$12)5131E| Ik &
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the J*(rzozzﬁgj)zg;,%\ Hten
“Year 2022"), which aims to provide details of policies and ER(THIRE HERESRD
performance of the Group on sustainable developments to WETEXBE]) EERMAZBR

both internal and external stakeholders.

The Report, which was prepared in accordance with
the ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("HKEx ESG Reporting
Guide"), highlights the environmental and social measures
and activities of the Group for the Year 2022. For details
regarding the Group's compliance with the requirements
for corporate governance, please refer to the Corporate
Governance Report.

Governance Structure

The Board’s oversight of ESG issues

The Board plays a key role in overseeing the ESG aspects
of the Group. The Board and management assess the
impact of ESG-related risks on operations from time to
time, and set the development direction of the Group's
ESG strategy and formulate relevant policies to address
the risks. The Board ensures that the management has
all appropriate tools and resources to check and evaluate
the performance of the Group in different aspects such
as environment, health and safety, labor standards and
product liability in the context of environment, society and
governance.
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The Board’s ESG management approach and
strategy on material ESG-related issues

The Group conducts materiality assessment annually, to
better understand the views and expectations of different
stakeholders on ESG matters. The Group ensures that
it uses various platforms and communication channels
to reach, listen and respond to its key stakeholders.
Through comprehensive communication with stakeholders,
the Group is able to understand their expectations and
concerns. The feedback received enables the Group to
make more informed decisions and to better assess and
manage the impacts of those business decisions.

The Group has assessed the materiality of ESG issues
through the following steps: (i) the Group identifies ESG
issues; (ii) prioritizes key ESG areas with stakeholder
engagement; and (iii) checks and determines material
ESG issues based on communication outcome with
stakeholders.

These steps enhance the understanding of the importance
attached to each ESG issue by the Group’'s stakeholders
and enable the Board to plan more comprehensively for the
sustainable development.

Board’s reviews progress made against
ESG-related goals and targets

The progress of implementation and the performance of
the ESG-related goals and targets will be closely reviewed
by the Group from time to time. If the progress falls short
of expectation or the business operations change, it may
be necessary to make changes and communicate the goals
and targets with key stakeholders.

The Board has set future strategic goals to enable the
Group to develop a realistic path with the focus on
achieving its visions. The management will carefully
examine the attainability of the targets which should be
weighed against the Group's philosophy and goals.
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Reporting Principles

This Report complies with four reporting principles outlined
in the ESG Reporting Guide, which include (i) Materiality:
The Group has identified a number of issues covering
environment, society and governance, and has invited
stakeholders to assess the importance of these issues
for the Year 2022. For details, please refer to the section
“Materiality Matrix” in this Report; (ii) Quantitative: This
report details the criteria, methodologies and sources of
conversion factors used for key performance indicators
on emissions and energy consumption; (iii) Balance:
The positive and negative impacts of the business are
presented with high transparency; and (iv) Consistency:
Unless otherwise specified, this Report adopted consistent
statistical methodologies and key performance indicators
with those in previous ESG Reports to facilitate ready
comparisons.

Reporting scope

The Group is mainly engaged in manufacturing and sales
of toys. This Report will focus on disclosure of policies and
key performance indicators on four environmental aspects
and eight social aspects for the Group's production facilities
located in the People’'s Republic of China (the “PRC") and
the business in Hong Kong. The Group will continue to
collect information mainly regarding environment, society
and governance so as to disclose information in relation to
the sustainable development when applicable.

Stakeholder engagement

The Group is committed to maintaining long-term
sustainable development of its business, while improving
environmental protection and providing support to the
community where it operates. The Group also carefully
manages its business and provides customers with quality
products and services in accordance with reasonable
decision-making procedures.

B - 4@ RERERE

&5 F A

BEERRE HERER
WEESIPTA A Y ERERA -
BRENEEH - AEEE#7%
EHRERE H2REARNZ
B UEBEEBEMAETGZE
ERBR202FEMNEZ N - &
MELMAREPIES 2B ME]
MEH: (N2 ARECHFH
R AE B R EEIR BN E
BEBIEBEMRANIZE . FE
RFTE AR s R R RR ¢ (i)
T EBERAERNER K
BEFEYUSERERYN &
(VI — B BRISBEHRBEIN K
WEHYFEAEANEBNUFIRE
HERERRE —BHOHTH
&&@ﬁiﬂhﬁ LA {2 B B
EITHLE o

s E

AEBT2RETANRER
HE ABREZERBEAKHE
RPEARKMBE(RED D
FEREBENRBENEHEN
ERREEE R N\ELEEREN
BERMBREVER AKH
BEBREITERE HEk
ERTEWNER  ABERK
BREAHASEERNER -

K ESH

AEBRIEREBNRET
FREZRZH RABRESYHIR
HEREY HEHEEMRE R
HEERESE AEETEE
EEHEEY UREBEAEMNR
REFREFPRHEBENER
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The Group maintains close contact with its stakeholders AEFHBMHEBEERE K
(including shareholders, government, employees, F‘T EBEE -®F - T/\ﬁéf\?uﬁ - ft
customers, suppliers, society and the public) and strives ’D\%r'f)f%?—ri% THR R W B
to hear dissenting views from stakeholders through ,\@ux MEER  ZHER
constructive communication and to balance the interests BHENTRER X F&HRE
between them so as to determine the long-term direction ECHOMNE EHEERR

of business development. The Board is responsible for
assessing the ESG risks of the Group, and ensuring that
the relevant risk management and internal monitoring
system operates properly and effectively.

The Group discusses with stakeholders through various
channels for their expectations and concerns, and provides
the stakeholders with the following feedback:

Stakeholders Expectation and concerns

MEBERIA -EFEEER
FEAEENRE HELE
AR - WHERAMERREE
FABEERREBENARE
X & A o

AEBEEBEBRBERNE
AT AT AR R B B AR R
RTHOENHBRENT:

Communication and responses

BHE HA S B AR R B iE B e
Shareholders . Financial result o Improving financial performance
. Corporate transparency through Expanding production
. Sound risk control capacity and improving
production efficiency
o Daily information disclosure
. Optimization of risk
management and internal
control
& R o HUIBEE s EREERNRRSEENE
o DBEFEHE AR AT B RE
e TERREH e HEGFEER
e BEREREKRABEZE
Government . Compliance with laws and o Operation in compliance with
regulations the law
. Tax payment in accordance ° Tax payment in full and on time
with laws . Compliance with all applicable
° Compliance with product laws and regulations
safety and relevant laws and
regulations
B AF s EBTAEL e AMKE
s RIEMTH e HEREMN

s BIFEMTEMBEBERER

BIRMEEBANEREER
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Stakeholders Expectation and concerns Communication and responses
B0 E HREE B SR R BB EE e
Employees ° Career development platform e Promotion mechanism

° Remuneration and benefit ° Provision of attractive

. Safe working environment remuneration packages

° Provision of training to staff
and enhancing their safety

awareness
’E s BEEERTA o B FFHH
o HEREA e RHERSIMMEHMTSE
e LTARIERIE e REIRMHIFZI mMEEIZXR
2 EEH
Customers ° Customer information security e Customer privacy protection
° Customer interest protection ° Marketing in compliance with
° Joint brand products the law
o Obtaining concession of
famous toys and entertainment
characters
g s EFEFERE%LZR e REEPLE
e EPEHRRE o HHEH
e WMEmEME®R e ERAEMANRREMERE
B 7 AT
Suppliers . Collaboration integrity ° Building a responsible supply
. Business ethics and chain
creditworthiness o Performing the contract
according to law
fpEn s WEAIE e THEBEHER
s WHEBEFHEFEE e KERBITEME
The society and the public o Environment friendliness ° Measures for Eco Office
. Employment opportunities o Provision of employment
opportunities
HERAR s BEeRR e BEWMAEEN

e BEKE o RHtHMEMM
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Materiality Matrix

In the Year, the Group conducted materiality assessment
on various ESG issues to identify which issues are the
most significant towards the Group’s business and attract
most concerns from the stakeholders. Such assessment is
helpful to align its business practices with the expectations
of the stakeholders. The Group has identified 21 issues,
which cover environmental, social and operating, and
invited internal and external stakeholders to assess the
materiality of the ESG issues through scoring tools and
interviews. The management of the Group has reviewed
the ranking of materiality of ESG issues, and disclosed
the results subsequently in this Report. The materiality
assessment results can rank the significance of the
opinions of the stakeholders, so that the Group can report
and act on those with a high priority.

EEMER

RAFE  ANEBHZEIRIE -
HEekEraEdETEEZHF
B LB EAEBRERRE
ENEOHESRBEINGEE - %
FEBEASEBREERE
BERFEFHENHE - XEHE
BEEVIERERRE LTk
BEMEE UEBABBRI
BEOHEEBF»TAREH#
FHER HLEhEREERN
EZUH - AEBEETEEEESH
REBE HEERZEMNEEN
P | I - N =l N 5
R - ZEEZUFTHNEREHF
HENERETEZHEERF -
FAEEUTHEREENZEE
S ETER I RINITE -




—EoFH SLRERARAT \

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - gRERRSE

During the Year, the Group has evaluated a number of REFEAN  AEBHZIHEIR
environmental, social and operation related issues, and B ottegkEBR@EREENT
assessed their importance to stakeholders and the Group T WBBATNRREFNGHE
through various channels. This assessment helps to HEMDELAEBENEZ K -
ensure the Group’s business development is in line with ZAHEDRRAEENER
the expectations and requirements of its stakeholders. EEFAFOHENBHEREK -
The Group’s and its stakeholders’ matters of concern are AEEERBNHEBRINETERE
presented in the following materiality matrix: WTEEHEBE5:

Importance to the Group

HEAEEWNEENS
Low Medium High
& i =
Importance to  High € Engagement with € Greenhouse gas
Stakeholder customers on emission
HEHED environmental €  Customer privacy
BEH issues € Environmental
L 2 Labor standards in impact created by
supply chain our business
¢ \Waste €  Occupational
€ Talent attraction health and safety
and retention € Use of chemicals
€ Anti-corruption
€ Corporate
governance
€  Green building
certificate
= & REZENEF, € BREREHEW
2 ¢ EFPHLE
& HESELTHEE & EBEKOIERER
® FEEY A
& RSIKBBAST € BEERKIZR
® FHRIEER
® ES
® GEEAR
® KEREERE
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Importance to the Group

HEAEENEEM
Low Medium High
& i =
Medium ¢ Community ¢ Energy
investment consumption
€ Employee benefit € Inclusion and
€  Supply chain equal opportunity
management ¢ Water
€ Economic value consumption
generated
& Customer
satisfaction
€  Training and
development
H ¢ HERKRHE ® BRER
¢ EEBA ® HEERTEHE
& (HEEERE ® HFEKk=E
® ELENKEEE
® EFPWMEE
® EIkER
Low
&
Based on the participation of the stakeholders, the Group ERFHELE AXEB2H
has identified issues with material environmental and social FMEEERREREETZEDN

impacts and matters concerned by stakeholders. ERERENEBRINEIA -
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TRBRESGHEI R ARFFME
BT B%FESGRH B H A
SEMEREKN-

The table underneath showed the aspects on the ESG
Guide to be assessed and those ESG issues were
determined to be material to the Group.

ESG Aspects as set forth in the ESG Guide Material ESG issues for the Group

ESGIESIFH I WESGH |

RNE B E KESGR &

(A)  Environmental

(A) IR

A1 Emissions Emission from town gas, electricity or vehicle

Al BERY) PR - B sk B8 e HE R

A2 Use of Resources Use of energy and paper

A2 EBIREH CER N & a0k -l

A3  Environment and Natural Resources

A3 RERKAEBR

A4 Climate Change

A4 RIiEEL

(B)  Social

(B) &

B1  Employment and Labour Practices Labour practices

Bl EBRSBIFEHR BITER

B2 Health and Safety Workplace health and safety

B2 EHEZAE TiEMBENERERL S

B3 Development and Training Employee development and training

B3 HEE RFI EEERRE

B4  Labour Standards Anti-child and forced labour

B4 HBIEAE REIR®GST

B5 Supply Chain Management Supply chain management

Bs ME#HEIR HEEER

B6 Product Responsibility Product responsibility

B6 EmEIE EmEE

B7  Anti-corruption Anti-corruption, fraud prevention and anti-money
laundering

B7 REAEA REFG BIERFERERE

B8 Community Investment Community programs, employee volunteering and
donation

B8 w#EKAE MEFE - BEIEEEHREHE
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Environmental

The Group is committed to minimizing its environmental
impact and complying with the evolving laws and
regulations on environmental protection of the PRC and
Hong Kong. The Group approaches its environmental
management in a systematic and comprehensive manner
to review and update its environmental policies periodically,
to comply with the latest requirements of the applicable
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group.

The Group has developed procedures for the management
of environmental health and safety and established a
healthy and safe working environment, to minimize the
security risks at work and the environmental impact of
production activities. Every year, the Group conducts water
quality testing and air quality testing for employees in the
production and living areas of the plant.

Fully aware of the importance of environmental protection,
the Group has adopted regular measures to manage
emissions and wastes.

Emissions Data from Gaseous Fuel
Consumption

The Group's exhaust gas emissions are mainly from the
combustion of gasoline by motor vehicles. The exhaust
gases emitted from the combustion of relevant fossil fuels
mainly include nitrogen oxides (NOy), sulphur oxides (SOy)
and particulate matters (PM).

a) Since the Company did not have town fuel and
town gas consumption during the Year, therefore
no emissions data from gaseous fuel consumption
applied.

A1

BE

$%@‘§%ﬁﬂy LEBY
RENFE YETHERE
%TM&MMhﬁ£¢&£E°
AEERRAGEZENRREE
BhE BMARREHRERSIE
HigdMEH UFAaHAE
BAEEATENEZIRRERZ
RIENR -

AEECHERERELEE

mRF Ry ARERZ2
BT ER B MR D T

FEENSEL2ERUALRE
LEBEEFTHHRENTE -
TEBESFTHEBRELEEK
AERBME THRAKETK

EARREHEESHERES
EITRIR -
AEEBRSPRANEBEERENE

EM YEEHRERIRER
EERMAMERY -

REREEROERRE
AEBBERFREIBEELAS

WA B T Om o AR BR AL B MR R IR
BEREEMMERIEZECREASA

ﬂZfF@(NO) uughﬂﬁgf@ SO)&%E

*JW(PM —r/’ﬁ L) o

a) HBHRARFRANFEEILE
HERHRRRERE A
It 37 % E AR R 88 BB
RO BEMEE -
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b) the Company owned some motor vehicles during the
Year, the emissions data from the vehicles is set out

RE - gRERRSE

b ARBNRAFEEESRT
B ZFEWOHERK

below: BHEHINWMT
Key performance indicator (“KPI1")
BARENEE(EREREEZD
2022 Unit %

2022%F Efy %
NO, 955 Kg 91.0%
RE1D Fr
SO, 01 Kg 0.1%
HEALD F
PM 9.4 Kg 8.9%
KLY Fr
Total 105.0 Kg 100%
=Xl F7
Looking forward the Group will continue to improve REARR  ANEEBBEE
the efficiency of usage of vehicles by better planning BLLITEERE 28
of the travelling routes, so as to better control its air B AMRE - WL
emissions. 2Rl HBE ROBERL o

A1.2 Greenhouse Gas Emission A2 BERBHR

The Group’s greenhouse gas emissions are mainly from
the combustion of gasoline by motor vehicles and the use
of electricity. The emissions of greenhouse gases include
direct and indirect emissions.

AEBEANBRERBEIENR
BEEHERETIHERBE - RE
REFMERERFRAERE
PEPR -
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The following table sets out the key performance indicators REAFE XEBAEREN
of the Group’s greenhouse gases for the Year: FREMIEEHINT X
KPI
BRENIEE
2022 Unit %
2022F Efy %
Scope 1
& E —
Direct Emission 16.2 tonnes 4.6%
HEER 1A
Scope 2
HE—
Indirect Emission 339.3 tonnes 95.4%
] # Bk 1K i
Scope 3
HE=
Other Indirect Emission — tonnes -
H R B R i
Total 355.5 tonnes 100%
&5t A
Scope 1: Direct emissions of greenhouse gases from #HE— BAASEEMESRE
the business owned or controlled by the Group FMEBKEEELED
including emissions of greenhouse gases from BEIBEENR BIE
the use of motor vehicles by the Company. REARBIERAE
HORZERBBHEN -
Scope 2: Indirect emissions of greenhouse gases from HE—-: BAAEEEEEINL
electricity purchased and gas consumed. BEEMRREEEED
MERBHNR -
During the Year, there was 355.5 (2021: 815.9) tonnes of REAFE AEENKZETEE

carbon dioxide equivalent greenhouse gases (mainly the
usage of vehicles for transportation of petrol and gasoline)
emitted from the Group's operation.

HE 7 355.50F (20214F - 815.9M )
—HEtMmEENEETRE(EE
R REFHER O MR TA) -
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The Group's long term plan is to, by the Year 2026, reduce A& B/ KEBIZEEN20264%F
the intensity of the exhaust gas emission and greenhouse ERTRE2021F E R E E G E
gas emissions by 5% based on the benchmark of the Year RUEREEEREHREBED
2021. Al 5% o
Benchmark

Environmental KPIs Emission reduction target target on 2021 Status
REBMBENER B HE B R 2021FEEBE K&
Scope 1
& E—
Direct Emission 5% reduction by Year 2026 70.6 tonnes In progress
BEHER 720264 E BT 2 5% 70.6M8 #E1TH
Scope 2
gE=
Indirect Emission 5% reduction by Year 2026 745.3 tonnes In progress
il # BE 7 20264 E RIRK 2 5% 745.3WF HE 1T
Scope 3
HE=
Other indirect Emission 5% reduction by Year 2026 — In progress
H th A 82 HE AR #2026 %F & Bl B 5% HEATH
Total Greenhouse Gas 5% reduction by Year 2026 815.9 tonnes In progress

Emission

BREREBHEREE K 2026 F E AR 2 5% 815.9MF # 17
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A1.3 Hazardous Waste and Non-hazardous Waste
Waste Management

Hazardous waste is generated in toy manufacturing.
The hazardous waste mainly includes pollutants such as
hydrocarbons (CxHx). The following table sets out the key
performance indicators of hazardous wastes of the Group
for the Year:

A13 BEBRRNKEERREY

BERMEE

AEBEDAREBREPELE
BEEEZEY TEREHIL
AW (CxHX)F 54 Y - KN & B
RAFEEEANEEEEZEDD
MREERIEZEINTE:

KPI
BENER
2022 Unit %
2022 E B Bt
Hazardous Waste 44.45 kg 100.0%
BEEEED Fr
Non-hazardous Waste - kg 0%
BEEZED Fr
Total 44.45 kg 100%
we T

The Group has specific measures for the discharge of
hazardous waste. For instance, paint suppliers must
comply with (i) regulations regarding Polycyclic Aromatic
Hydrocarbons (PAHs) and other substances in paint and
(ii) Toy Paint Regulations issued by the United States
and European countries. Suppliers must also perform
pre-production inspections for hazardous substances
before beginning mass production. All post-production
volatilization resulting from paint spraying and the pad
printing process must be filtered before being discharged
into the environment, thus minimizing the potential
risk to human health. All wastewater must be filtered
and converted for reuse. Hazardous pollutants are only
discharged after purification and filtration, conforming
to national regulations on the discharge of atmospheric
pollutants.

AEBEHBEEEEMHR
MERBBHREETEHESE -2
AEEHAETOEBEBERF
e %5 E(PAH)ME b ¥ &
RO SE R R (i) 32 BB RROM B =X
BHOIMARER - EEE I
AERBRtEEEZAEAE
VMEETEENRE -BE2R
EBExEETES|EBNMEE
EREBEEHATEEMRIRES
ZHATETRE MMy
AERENBEETZRR - 1A RE
kﬁ\1ﬁﬂﬁﬁw%béuéﬁ
FH BEEEEMEILBREF
fEMBBEEBER T HFEER
BEARNR[EEMHEBRNRT
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To better manage the Group’s major issues and their
performance on environmental aspects, the Group
proposes the following five-year target on waste reduction
by the Year 2026:

Environmental KPIs Emission reduction target

REHEBEARER w5 B AR

B - 4@ RERERE

BEHEBRAEENE K&
MEERBEFTEORE K
Bl /R F H B IZ R R20264F
A

BRI

&
S
54

Benchmark
target on 2021 Status
01FEEXBERE R

5% reduction by Year 2026
2026 % E BB 2 5%

Hazardous Waste

BEREY

5% reduction by Year 2026
720264 E B 25%

Non-hazardous Waste

BEEEEY

The Group will continue to assess, record and disclose
its greenhouse gas emissions and other environmental
data annually, and evaluate the effectiveness of existing
measures to further draw targets and work up plans for
greenhouse gas and hazardous waste reduction.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations including the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China, Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law
of the People’'s Republic of China, Law of the People's
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution, and Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter
311 of the Laws of Hong Kong) relating to its air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharging into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste
during the Year. In addition, the Group did not receive any
material fines or sanctions for non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations in the Year.

1,431 In progress
EATH

0.005 In progress
#H T

AEBBBEFNMG THREK
EEFRERBHFRIEMER
B8R YARFERERERE
B R R - DA — 2 1 E R BE R
ERBEBIEEVWERERT
tEET &

}m

S

H

=1
B

RAFE AEELTTMEE
MEBERER R BT EH
W mAkE L HMEAESARE
ENBEEEYNELETAEAE
HMEEERERATEEANEKRE
RIBER BEFEARKENER
RBREZ) (PEARHEM
Bl ARG EBAE  -(PEA
R ERMB KSR EE) R(E
RSEESGOIEBEME

SNE) e ko RAFEAREH
WEERKRETHEBERZEZRM
BZIMERSHREE -
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A2.1 Use of resource A2.1 ERfEH
The Group is committed to minimizing the impact of its REBKERERBEHIRED
manufacturing process on the environment to conserve the YERER)N A —EBAR
environment. The Group strives to improve the efficient use RERE - AEEHNRESX
of natural resources, such as minimizing waste/emissions RERMNERAR=E IR =
and implementing a recycling program. Measures are WABEEY PR EE KE K
detailed as follows: FHE - AEEAREEAT
e Switch off lights and turn off unnecessary e UHTNFEAR BHABEER
energy-consuming devices when they are not in use; T BHFERERE
e Promote environmental protection such as saving e EERR PIHNAEHRAE
water and electricity by slogan or poster in office; KA EEEHNKENIREE
B
e Encourage printing or photocopying on both sides of e EEEMmMITHRFT (R
paper, where applicable; HWA)
e Regular maintenance of vehicles to ensure good e THRES®H WREH
condition of such vehicles for operational efficiency; MARMG  RIEEETH
& ;
e Adopt the use of electric cars; and s FEREHE: R
e  Focus on quality management so as to reduce e ITEHEEER RIRE

wastage and scrap for less pollution resulted. REER - WM IR -
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The following table sets out the key performance indicators
for the Group’s use of resources in the Year:

RE - gRERRSE

FE-AEBEERERN
RIBEMIEREII N TR :

KPI
BREMIER
% increase/
2022 2021 Unit (decrease)
G 2)

2022F & 20216 E E{u Bt
Electricity consumed 405,512 1,464,781  MWh (72%)
BEOEE TR E
Gasoline and petrol consumed 69,780 269,106 MWh (74.%)
MR T E B
Total energy consumed 475,292 1,733,887 MWh (73%)
BEREMEE TR B
Water consumed 16,006 44,525  tonnes (64%)
KiEE g
Packaging material consumed 295 9,500 tonnes (97 %)
BRINES I

KPI (intensity)
HRENEZE(BE)
2022 2021 Unit

2022F E 2021 E Efy
Total energy consumption intensity 2.94 6.11  MWh/thousand of revenue
EREETELS TRE/ Tz
Water consumption intensity 0.10 0.16  Tonnes/thousand of revenue
HKREE W8/ F o ik &
Packaging material consumption 0.002 0.03 Tonnes/thousand of revenue

intensity

BRMEERRE

LD e
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To better manage the Group’s major issues and their AEFHEEBARESENE K&
performance on environmental aspects, the Group BREERRIFTEMNRIR K
proposes the following five-year target on savings by the SEMATFHBZZER2026%F
Year 2026: ERIERAI AT

Environmental KPIs

REHEBEARER

Emission reduction target

w5 B =

Benchmark

target on 2021 Status
2021 EERE MKE

Energy consumption 5% reduction by Year 2026

6.11 In progress

intensity
BEREEEE 20264 & A Bk 2 5% HEATH
Water consumption 5% reduction by Year 2026 0.16 In progress

intensity
RKEE F20264F [ AR 2 5% E 1T
The Group has taken several measures to increase resource AEBEHEMEZERAERK
efficiency. For instance, the Group installed LED lights EHEE fln REBBE X
to increase illumination more efficiently in the production EIEDE UEBRRESEE
line area. Also, the Group has utilized hot runner systems MEIEHWBAEE - $’§

within injection molding machines to reduce waste.

The Group obtained suitable water sources in compliance
with the Regulations on the Administration of the License
for Water Drawing and the Levy of Water Resource Fees
of the PRC (2017 Revision) in the Year. In the Year, there
was no issue in sourcing water that was fit for purpose. All
water supplies were acquired from public water pipes.

Environmental and Natural Resources

The Group conducts its business operations in compliance
with the relevant provisions of the Catalog of Classified
Management of Pollutant Discharge Permits for Stationary
Pollution Sources and the Law of the People's Republic
of China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste, and appropriately treats the
generated emissions and pollutants. All emissions and
pollutants are tested and recorded in a detailed manner,
and meet the requirements of national environmental
protection regulations and emission standards without
adversely affecting the environment and natural resources.

BEITBHEANFEFRARERSD
WORE -

$§%E€$¢f§1&ﬁ’é<qﬂ§/\ﬁ

fDHWkE‘fFT?FWkﬁ}J?;%?%Z
H&afiﬂﬂﬁﬂ —EFEFThR))
EEEE E’J7}<§/)§ RAFEE -
AR B Y B E R & & BUK
BROEE - TEH KGR
HKEEER o

A3 BERRXRER

Zl»‘%@ﬁ??ﬁ((fﬁﬁ%ﬁ?#ﬁﬁ?
DHEEBESIRPFEAR
%ﬂ.ﬁ?ﬂ?%fﬁ RS RBRE)
*ﬁ?&aﬁmi‘“%%i‘“ I # &R
EAMEARNPEBRMSEY - B
BHEA S 21 5B R &
MRS UFEBERRBRE
HRBERMBEEER WAKRBY
RENMBAERELXBRTE -
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A4 Climate change

The continuous emission of greenhouse gas leads to
climate change. In response to climate change, the Group
reference the Financial Stability Board’'s Task Force on
Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) framework to
assess climate-related risks. There are two main types of
risks, which are: (i) physical risks associated with climate
change impacts; and (ii) transition risks associated with
low-carbon economy.

The climate-related risks identified by the Group are mainly
structural damage to premises of the Group and where the
Group's construction and operating projects are held due to
the increase in frequency of extreme weather events and
flooding due to changes in rainfall patterns. Such climate
change may affect labor management and planning, and
also increase the risk of work-related injuries for the
employees. In addition, there is a risk that the Group's
infrastructure and machines may be damaged due to
climate change, and facilities damage will affect operations
and lead to an increase in operation costs.

In response to the above climate-related risks, the
Group has purchased employee injury insurances for
all employees. Such insurances cover the expenditure
coverage for employees’ injuries due to weather conditions.
The Group has also purchased relevant property insurance
for all construction projects, operating projects and the
Group's key fixed assets to cover property losses due to
weather conditions and reduce maintenance costs that may
be required.

>
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B - 4@ RERERE
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Social

The Group highly values its employees who have dedicated
themselves to the business of the Group. As a responsible
corporation, the Group commits itself to providing a decent
and healthy workplace to its employees. The Group has
formulated comprehensive employment policies. The
Group has implemented the employment principles of
“selecting people for jobs, matching people with positions,
and conducting recruitment openly and fairly”.

Employment and Labour Practices
Employee Benefits

The Group appreciates the hard work and contributions
of each employee. A comprehensive employee benefits
package is therefore in return to offer to its dedicated and
talented staff. The employee benefits are compensated
fairly according to their performance, with reference to the
market practice.

The Group performs annual staff performance appraisal
to assess the performance of employees for the year-end
bonus determination. In this regard, a transparent
mechanism is conducted by taking into account various
factors, including but not limited to the employees’
attendance performance, capability, attitude, and
contributions to the Group. With reference to appraisal on
the employees, staff promotion and salary increment are
rewarded to the contributing and improving employees.

In addition, the Group contributes to the employees’
social insurance and housing funds with reference to the
Labor Law of the PRC for its employees. Besides, high
temperature subsidy is offered for the front-line employees
of gas refuelling stations on several months within summer
season annually.
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Staff Composition BIBK
As at 31 December 2022, the Reporting Entities employed 20225128318 - |WEEEH
a total of 95 (2021: 535) staff. B95% (20214 : 536K ) B L °
a)  Employees’ Employment Type Distribution a ESEBEAS M
2022 2021
2022 E 2021 E
By employment type Male Female Male Female
REBER B Z B Z
Part-time employment 0% 0% 0% 0%
BB
Full-time employment 57% 43% 56% 44%
oy
Total 57% 43% 56 % 44%
# 5T
b)  Employees’ Age and Gender Distribution b) EEFERIEF M
2022 2021
2022 E 20215 E
Age Group Male Female Male Female
F iR 48 Bl B Z B g
0-30 5% 1% 13% 6%
0Z305%
31-50 29% 24% 32% 32%
31E505%
51-60 23% 8% 1% 6%
512608
=61/>61 0% 0% 0% 0%
615% & LA |
Total 57% 43% 56% 44%

& 5t




Kidztech Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BiR - HERERAERE

¢)  Employees’ Geographical Distribution c) ESMIESMH

Location 2022 2021

b B 20225 & 20215 E

Hong Kong 15% 0%

BE

Mainland China 85% 100%

R A b

Total 100% 100%

4T

d)  Employee turnover rate d EERKXHLEF

Employee turnover rate (Note 1) 2022 2021

BEERKL=E(HFE—) 20225 20215 E

By gender

&1 B 8l o

— Male 41% 25%

— 5

— Female 37% 19%

—

By age group

BER AR 85

— Aged 30 and below 44% 43%

— 30 AT

— Aged 30-50 39% 17%

— 30&505%

— Aged 50 and above 38% 27%

— B50B% A &

By region

% i & 8 5

— Hong Kong 33% -

— B%

— China 40% 23%

—

Note 1: The employee turnover rate by category is calculated MeE— = TRERNE DA E
by dividing the total number of employees lost BRAERTIEZAR
in that group by the number of employees in the MEBRKRBAH
corresponding group. BRUAMEEAER S IES

ABGHE -
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In the Year, the Group was not aware of any material
violations of the relevant laws and regulations relating to
the Group's compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and
welfare. The Group strictly complied with local laws
and regulations relating to employment, such as the
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Minimum
Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
the Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 480 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), the Labor Law of the People's Republic
of China, and the Production Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China. In addition, there were no material fines
or sanctions for non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations in the Year.

Employee Health and Safety

The Group treats employees’ safety and their working
environment with the highest priority. In order to ensure
the implementation of safety measures and improve
employees’ safety awareness, a production safety system
has been developed to provide education and establish
assessments for employees in different departments,
especially focusing on machine operation for employees
from the production department. Supervisors must strictly
follow the operating procedures to prevent accidents and
ensure the safety of workers.
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The Group follows fire protection policies, regulations and
technical specifications. According to the provisions of the
Fire Control Law of the People’s Republic of China and the
Regulations on the Administration of Fire Control Safety of
the Group, we have established a specialized fire protection
team to develop and implement the Group's fire safety
system. The Group has also set up an emergency response
team, equipped with special fire alarm devices and
firefighting apparatuses, and arranged special personnel
for regular inspections and maintenance. In addition, the
Group regularly organizes fire drills to enhance employees’
awareness of fire prevention and ensure a safe working
environment.

In the Year 2022, the number and rate of work-related
fatalities and the number of work days lost due to

work-related injuries are as follows:

Health and Safety

REEEEETREBEIBR
ERREMBE - RIB(PEA
B R BIH B3 07X ) AN 5 BUOH B
LEEERRENER A&EHE
BEEY—BEEHEHNIE &
A EERAKENERZ 2
BE - AKBERC R EE
=M BEEEXHEHERR
BRBAEE TLHBEATE
HmERGEE LI AEE
EHETHBEE KRR
BEHABBRERIERREL
o

R2022F E - EITHHAZ
MHEERERERIEGERIIEFRR
mE

2022 2021 2020
2022 E

20215 E 2020F &

BEEZE

Number of work-related fatalities
TTHHAZ

Lost days due to work injury
EIGHEXIRIERH

The Group believes that the health and safety of its
employees are of paramount importance. The Group
believes that all incidents are preventable and takes
a proactive approach through risk identification and
mitigation. The Group has formulated policies on
production, environment and employees’ health, outlining a
series of responsibilities and safety measures, including fire
safety systems, electrical and mechanical safety systems,
industrial hygiene management systems and work injury
accident investigation systems to ensure the highest safety
and health standards at the Group, so as to provide a safe
workplace for all employees.

In the Year, the Group was not aware of any material
violations of the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the provision of a safe working
environment and the protection of employees from
occupational hazards. The Group strictly complied with
local laws and regulations on health and safety, such as the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Law of the People's
Republic of China on the Prevention and Treatment
Occupational Diseases. In addition, there were no material
fines or sanctions for non-compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations in the Year.
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Development and Training B3 BERIZI
The Group believes that training and education are vital REBHBEEHEIRKELNA
for utilizing human resources and boosting morale among ANERERRERESEBEKLE N
the workforce to raise productivity and product quality. RIEAEENNEREEEH
The human resources department manages the training EZ-ANERBEREZIE
management system and coordinates with responsible BHE THAEEHTAE
departments to organize various training events. In the ZEEINEFY RAEAFE K
Year, the Group held five training sessions with a total SEETTOREI - BEIE
training duration of 113 hours. Trainings covered the HENINE - EEBIREE
employees’ codes of conduct, fire drills, induction training, BITRER - EBEWMEHR AR
chemical safety, hazardous waste treatment and machine B tERLTE BEEESE
operation, etc. Feedback was collected to better help MEBLMEERIEST - BHEKR
employees improve necessary skills. FEeRrRErTeENREERA
B Bk o
2022
20225 %

Male Female Total

B Z % 5t
Top management 21 6 27
BRERE
Middle management 15 8 23
FRERE
Front-line staff 32 31 63
AR BT
Total training hours 68 45 113
48 55 )| B B
Labour Standard B4 I %A

The recruitment process of the Group is subject to a
stringent internal review process that includes verifying the
personal information of applicants. For instance, the human
resources department collects proof of identification
from candidates to ensure that their age fulfills legal
requirement.
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The Group respects and complies with international human
rights principles, such as the United Nations' Universal
Declaration of Human Rights and the convention of the
International Labor Organization (ILO). The Group also
complies with the Regulations on Prohibition of Child Labor
and will not hire minorities who are under 16 years old.
The Group has developed policies against using child labor
and has zero tolerance for all forms of forced, bonded, or
imprisoned labor in our own operations and in our supply
chain. In case child labor and forced labor are found, the
Group will terminate the labor contract with them as soon
as possible and hold the responsible persons accountable.

In the Year, all employees were over the age of 18
and employed in accordance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong
Kong. The Group was not aware of any material violation
of the relevant laws and regulations on prohibiting the
employment of child labor or forced labor. The Group
strictly complied with local laws and regulations relating
to labor standards, such as the Labor Law of the People’s
Republic of China and the Regulations on Prohibition of
Child Labor. In addition, the Group did not receive any
material fines or sanctions for non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations in the Year.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has the greatest respect for the laws and
regulations that govern its business and always adheres to
international best practices and conducts fair and unbiased
procurement processes when dealing with suppliers.

The Group has set out clear requirements on selection
and management of suppliers to ensure standardized
management and proper selection of and corporation with
suppliers. In selecting suppliers, the Group will take the
following into consideration: (i) operating license granted
by and registration with the Industry and Commerce
Bureau; (ii) plant size, production capacity and technology
capabilities; (iii) stable quality of production; and (iv)
integrity and reasonableness of prices.
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The suppliers are required to provide information on
the scale of their factories, their production capacity,
quality issues and technology capabilities in the “supplier
questionnaire” prepared by the procurement department
for preliminary screening. Then the Group would establish
a specialized file to record basic information for the
suppliers who meet the requirements, conduct regular
quality inspections and maintain long-term cooperation.
In addition, the Group has worked out stringent quality
control measures to ensure that the production quality
meets customer and regulatory requirements. Quality
control managers conduct detailed quality inspections
on samples provided by suppliers from time to time,
to avoid operational risks caused by quality problems.
Further, the Group will regularly evaluate the performance
indicators of suppliers, such as the product qualified rate
and the punctual shipment, and conduct investigations on
compliance with the legal provisions on avoiding child and
forced labor.

The following table sets out the number of suppliers by
region as at 31 December 2022:
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B6 Product Responsibility
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In the Year, the Group complied with all relevant laws
and regulations in relation to product liability and no
products sold by our Group were recalled for safety or
health reasons, nor were there any complaints regarding
product or service quality issues. Products were consistent
with the requirements of the GB/T 19001-2016 quality
management system.

The Group has formulated a quality manual according to the
GB/T 19000-2016 quality management system to ensure
that it provides all customers with high-quality products
and services. The Group’s product design, production and
customer service must be carried out in strict accordance
with the quality manual. The Group has also formulated a
series of procedures and operational instructions to ensure
that employees of relevant departments observe regulatory
measures. Meanwhile, the Group has full control of its
outsourced production based on the quality manual.

In addition, the Group’s management team reviews the
quality manual annually to ensure that it is updated in
accordance with changes of operating conditions and
international standards. The Group attaches appropriate
product safety warnings to its products in conspicuous
places and on the packages, to see that the products
manufactured meet safety standards.

The Group's quality control personnel follow strict quality
assurance processes at all stages of production, from
design, raw materials and manufacturing to packaging
and storage. The Group has utilized continuous quality
assurance, planning control, improvement and other
workable plans throughout all stages of production.
More specifically, the Group places more emphasis
on quality control at earlier stages of production to
discover and resolve quality issues early on. For raw
materials, semi-finished and finished products provided by
subcontractors, random inspections and tests are carried
out by inhouse laboratories. Defective products are stored
separately and sent to the production line or subcontractors
for rework.
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The Group has both external and internal complaint
reporting systems in place. For external complaint
reporting, the Group accepts complaints online or via
other telecommunication channels, such as e-mails
and telephone. For internal complaint reporting, the
employee manual specifies the reporting mechanism and
punishments for violations. Once an internal complaint
is received, the administrative department will carry
out on-site investigation(s), collect evidence, conduct
interviews with witnesses and take necessary disciplinary
actions.

The Group highly values information security and protection
of customer privacy and strictly complies with relevant
national and local laws and regulations. Employees must
comply with all internal guidelines regarding the collection,
processing, transfer, retention and disposal of customers’
personal information in order to safeguard information
security.

The Group has established a detailed intellectual property
management system in accordance with applicable
laws and regulations. The system is composed of four
major aspects, namely (i) guidelines; (ii) institutions
and responsibilities; (iii) policies; and (iv) rewards and
punishments.

The Group was not aware of any material violations of
the relevant laws and regulations on product health and
safety, advertising, labeling, right to privacy and remedy
in the Year. The Group strictly complied with local laws
and regulations relating to product liability, such as the
Copyright Ordinance (Chapter 528 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Copyright Law of the People’'s Republic of China, the
Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China, and the
Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People's Republic of
China. In addition, the Group did not receive any material
fines or sanctions in the Year.
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Anti-corruption

Corruption, bribery or fraud in any form is prohibited. The
Group’s anti-corruption policies set out the standards of
conduct to which all employees are required to adhere
to promote integrity in the workplace. All employees are
prohibited from offering or accepting money or anything of
value by using work as an excuse or any authority granted
by the Group.

In the Year, the Group provided internal training on
anti-corruption topics to its directors and employees
with reference to the anti-corruption resource website,
to further their understanding of the importance of
anti-corruption and the legal and regulatory provisions.

The Group was not aware of any material violations of the
relevant laws and regulations on prevention of bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering in the Year. The
Group strictly complied with the local laws and regulations
relating to anti-corruption, such as the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance, the Criminal Law of the People's Republic of
China and the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s
Republic of China by implementing an effective whistle-
blowing policy for reporting fraud, corruption, bribery,
extortion and money laundering. In addition, the Group did
not receive any material fines or sanctions in the Year.

During the Year, the Group has provided 1 hours of
anti-corruption training to its staff. Also, there was no
concluded legal case regarding corrupt practices brought
against the Group or its employees.

Community Investment

The Group has mapped out policies relating to community
investment, financial contributions and donations. The
Group supports projects and plans that meet local
community demands, while aiming to align with the local
culture, heritage and morals.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

To the Shareholders of Kidztech Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Kidztech Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 97
to 179, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional MR EHZTEABERMANE ¥ H
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the K@ ZAUAPGEATERRNHE
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These T HZABEWNEH - WEEZB R
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the R BFBBHGAMERRLTEEL
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in formingour ERBEIE - KT e Y It Z £ 18
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on REEBFBHE R - M5 8888
these matters. The Key audit matters we identified are: B EEA:
1. Impairment assessment on trade receivables 1. BHRERWRIEBRENG
2. Impairment assessment on non-financial assets 2. FemEERETH
(i) Impairment assessment on trade receivables (i) BEZEWFIEREE
Refer to Notes 4(ii)(c), 5(b) and 20 to the consolidated 2B 4R & B 75 & M 5E4 (i (c)
financial statements. 5(b) %220 -
The Group tested the amount of trade receivables for EEECEREBEREM B MEE
impairment by estimation of the expected credit losses Bl EMEt BB EEEE
(“"ECL") under requirements of HKFRS 9. This impairment ([(EHEEBEDAAEZESE
test is significant to our audit because the balance of W SR ERE & & o B R E R
trade receivables of approximately RMB327,541,000 as ABREMOBFERTER R
at 31 December 2022 is material to the consolidated ReER—_T-_—F+=-A=1+—
financial statements. In addition, the Group’'s impairment ANEBESEURRBEBROAR
test involves application of judgement and is based on #£327,541,0007T ¥ 4R & BF 7% R
estimates. XMEBEZE - ki EE
B R E R R KR A A B
ERfEEHESD -
Our audit procedures included, among others: BB EFEE(HPEE)
T3 &8 :
- evaluating the design, implementation and operating - HEEEEH - WEER
effectiveness of key internal controls over credit MEREEEBERETOEA
control, debt collection and estimate of ECL; BAMEHORE - B
R EER R
- assessing the reasonableness of the Group’'s ECL - ERAREBEEEANKED
models by examining the model input used by 6 B8 F B & R = A BUR
management to form such judgements, including Fh EEBEEHEZEES
testing the accuracy of the historical default data, BERANEGEL  E4E
evaluating whether the historical loss rates are FEARABTRZOEENE
appropriately adjusted based on current economic - FEEEBEEXRR
conditions variables and assumptions used in each BIRE S 4O AR R &9 Al
of the economic scenarios and their probability BRAELEEEBESTM
weightings and assessing whether there was an AmRE kR &
indication of management bias when recognising loss THERE RIAHES
allowances; EERBEREEENRER
EEREBEREETERS
- engaging a valuation specialist to assist us to review - ZE—XZHEZERBIHE
— the appropriateness of the calculation of ECL, the M@ EREESENE
accuracy of the calculations in the model and the - ERPRHFERD
market data being adopted on a sample basis; iﬁ §é ?i (FRAMEAF )8
e FE
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Key Audit Matters (Continued) BREASZEE)
(i) Impairment assessment on trade receivables (i) BZEWRIBREFH (B
(Continued)
- checking subsequent settlements after the year end - @f*ﬁéﬁég}g ) H &
from the customers; and BE R
- evaluating the adequacy of disclosures in respect of - BREEE R Ey ﬁ\%
the impairment review in the consolidated financial BEBRTNRBERLRD °
statements.
.. . . . oo A T > N=h =T
(i) Impairment assessment of non-financial assets (i) FFemEE R AR5
Refer to Notes 4(ii)(b), 15 and 16 the consolidated financial 2 Bkr & M55 R MY 24 (b) -
statements. 15516 -
The Group tested the carrying amounts of property, plant E%i@ E*% TJ% %;J%g%ﬁ/ﬁ\”%
and equipment and right-of-use assets for impairment 36£§/—§/@2[§ %j% xWE
in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Standard A /ﬁgﬁ &:ﬁ_ﬁﬁ A EE-E E TE
36 /mpairment of Assets. This impairment test is ﬁgﬁjﬁﬁaﬂiﬁ;ﬁ DR
significant to our audit because the aggregated balance *Tﬁﬁ_ﬁg?ﬁj§§%t_ RHE
of these non-financial assets amounted to approximately R - 'izi* *i@—'—*iﬂ :—i—;
RMB178,135,000 as at 31 December 2022, which is Ho) 77 5 & 68 48 B A R
material to the consolidated financial statements. In 178r1?;_5190075)3¥¢"“7 E'Eﬁﬁi&
addition, the Group’s impairment test involves application x5 Eé 2 o It S f\ As
= 7R B R B8 K e A 0

of judgement and is based on estimates.

I ESREFER(RHRER)

Our audit procedures included, among others:

T3 &8 :

- assessing the appropriateness of management'’s - ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ?g%
assessment on identification and allocation of assets DEED ﬂiﬁi%iiﬂ
to different cash-generating units (“CGU"); égiiﬁ‘ E £ BN S

- discussing with the management of the Company - EEE BERAEREN WA
regarding the reasonableness of the valuation R EETEN SR
methodology being adopted;

- discussing with the management of the Company - B R2W %iﬂi =] &
the assumptions and inputs used in determining the Eﬁ%@i@ﬁﬁ??ﬂ&@
recoverable amounts of the CGU, respectively, and ok lalill ﬁﬁﬁg‘jﬁﬁ‘&ﬁﬁ_ﬂ
challenging the reasonableness and relevance of key ‘)\%( TJ%/_I*E%@HF?#?&\@
assumptions and inputs based on our knowledge of %ﬁ’:?ﬁiﬂ’]‘ M B E
the business and industry; ERRLBABENGIE

I*_{)Sﬂﬁﬁﬁ MR R

- engaging a valuation specialist to assist us to review - %gﬁﬁ 15@%%55 B ?;zﬁ’ ik
the appropriateness of the valuation approach and EyEﬁF%S&E/fFE}@
methodology, the accuracy of the calculations in & 13@%%439@25&
the valuation model and the market data used on a mEEAMEREESNE
sample basis; and "R
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

(i) Impairment assessment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

- evaluating the adequacy of disclosures in respect of
the impairment review in the consolidated financial
statements.

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of Kidztech Holdings
Limited for the year ended 31 December 2021 were audited by
another auditor, who expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements on 6 May 2022.

Other Information

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are responsible
for the other information. The other information comprises all
the information included in the Company's annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Responsibilities of Directors and Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee of the Company assists the Directors in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

B % B AT R

EERERZEENGAME
HRARFENEERH)

EREGAVBHRERE EFE8E
Afh BEREREKENREN Y&
ERABATHREASBERLLEEHN
FH UEREARELCERENE
B BRIEZARH EEEBEX

FEEE HATBEELBERNE R
77

i

[

ERAERZEEHHEEZEE
EEEMBERBRENEME -

RBE R BT RS BRI
B

BMOEESUSEAY B RAER
EETFHEARKFHRBERMERK
MBEARERRARSTAERE

EHEBERMNBEROZBEAES -
HfER MTUEFRER)RERM
MER RTARAEEMARE - &M
WA A RENAE B AE M EAMA
THAETANEERKEIEMER -

EERBABKERE  BITER
ERBREEBAENETHRG
EX-—BEAERRATFTER T
Boo sER BRI IRFF R AR 5l
HMEEBRMZSHRRAEBKE

EMEARETESAYBRRER
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit BREEN R B RS M B RRM
of the Consolidated Financial Statements EE(E)
(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise HBEFBEF LB ETETE - &
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism & B E X #/ - R EE ST 6712

throughout the audit. We also: FREFZEERLEERE - &M

-  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of - B ETIEHEATEREAR
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud HMFERMENE RERR
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive oy R by B RS R R
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient ARBMITERSEF O ELSRE
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The LBEBABEE EREME
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting REER BRERFFI IR
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as ERoBE HWEER ER
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, R ok %k B A ER A - B R
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. BERFEBRNRFFEKRKMNE KE

RREZEAREREFRAN
HRMEMME X HERR AR

BMES -

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to - T EZEHREE RN IBIEH -
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are NEFEAREBEABATRENSE
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose PR BYHERYE S
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the EABESNNERMEERER -

Group's internal control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used - FEFRBSBENBEER
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and EEMEG M RBEEE
related disclosures made by the directors. el -

—  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of - HEEHEBAEERLL R E
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the MEEMIELHER  LIREE
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty BMWBEAEE BERESGFL
exists related to events or conditions that may cast H BEEREBELENENE
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a REXKSEBEONSEHRBEREE
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty AT HEEERZE - WHEKMR A
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s FrEEXRTHEERAERX  KME
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated REZEMFEFRRBEREE
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, BERAVB®RERTNMEBEEE -
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the BREMBEETE  BIKRMA
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s BHREMOER - ZFMOER
report. However, future events or conditions may cause EEREEZHEMBFERBHR
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. EEMBEEFE - A KK

EMHABRAAEER EEH

TRFERLE -
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee of the Company
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the audit committee of the Company with
a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats of related safeguards applied.

B % B AT R

B BET B E T 7 & M IS R
BEE(&)

- WHESRAUBHREANEEBER -
EBELABRBREEE) N EK
EUMBREAREDTHE RBRNAH
RHRER -

- B EEEANERBHEXHKED
MPBERESTRE  BEW
BB UAGEAMBHRE
HRXRER - -BMABAEES.
EERVMTEEMNEFIE-
BMPARBMOTFSER AL

E2EEME -
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From the matters communicated with the audit committee of
the Company, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hui Chi Kong
Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P07348

24/F, Siu On Centre, 188 Lockhart Road, Wan Chai
Hong Kong, 7 July 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HREeBaREMEZEKRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-_Z -+ -_A=+—BLFE

2022 2021
—s-= T —F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
P AR®B TR AREFT
Revenue Wz 6 169,431 283,843
Cost of sales 85 & AR AR (141,101) (203,068)
Gross profit EF 28,330 80,775
Other income and other gains/ Hil A REMKE
(losses), net (E518) %8 7 1,432 17109
Selling expenses HERZ (898) (7.901)
Administrative expenses B X (76,141) (42,126)
Net impairment losses on trade and B 5 N £ #th & U 7% 18 5 &
other receivables [Ri=0CE: (24,018) (5,374)
(Loss)/profit from operation weE(FR),BR (71,295) 42,483
Finance costs B & AR 10 (10,791) (10,761)
(Loss)/profit before tax BREB A (EBR) SRR (82,086) 31,722
Income tax credit/(expenses) FrEfiEe, (AX) 1 5,428 (5,636)
(Loss)/profit for the year ERAREBAFAHEA
attributable to the owners of (&1#8) &R
the Company 9 (76,658) 26,086
Other comprehensive income/ FREMZEKE (F#E)
(loss) for the year
Items that may be reclassified to E D EEEmAIEE -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating B E @M EEE KK
foreign operations E W =58 3,842 (94)
Total comprehensive (loss)/ KATBEEAEGRFER
income for the year 2E(BR), WEHAE
attributable to the owner of
the Company (72,816) 25,992
(Loss)/earnings per share BR(ER),BF
Basic and diluted EARREE
(RMB cents) (AR 5) 14 (14.7) 5.0
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B M AR R &

As at 31 December 2022
R-ZEB-_—_F+=-HA=+—H

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
B 5 AR TR ARBT T
Non-current assets kRBEE

Property, plant and equipment M- BERFZE 15 146,887 161,814
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 16 31,248 38,346
Intangible assets mEEE 17 287 2,812
Deferred tax assets EEMIEEE 18 9,409 6,414
Prepayments T8 IR 21 30,336 52,095
218,167 261,481

Current assets REBEE
Inventories TFE 19 10,858 23,238
Trade receivables 2 5 WA 20 327,541 117,007
Prepayment and other receivables TERNRIEREMERRE 21 173,936 92,756
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 22 6,223 286,512
518,558 519,513

Current liabilities REBE
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk H At I RIB 23 168,815 144,635
Amount due to a related company P& — A B Bt R SR IB 24 962 962
Contract liabilities EHaE 25 820 1,895
License fee payable ERNEESR 26 1,867 1,769
Bank and other borrowings RAIT R H & K 27 139,834 155,278
Lease liabilities HEBE 28 2,512 4,639
Current income tax liabilities BEAFTiS T B & 18,142 19,520
332,952 328,698
Net current assets RBEEFRE 185,606 190,815
Total assets less current liabilities BEEZABERARBEESE 403,773 452,296
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

& B AR O &R

As at 31 December 2022
RZZBE-_—_F+-A=+—H

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
BT 5 AR® T ARET T
Non-current liabilities kFRBERE
Deferred revenue I IE UKz 29 502 1,029
Deferred tax liabilities EEREARG 18 2,425 3,760
Lease liabilities HEAE 28 2,496 5,646
License fee payable EAEEE 26 - 98
5,423 10,533
NET ASSETS EERE 398,350 441,763
Capital and reserves EXREE
Share capital [N 30 467 467
Reserves i 1 31(a) 397,883 441,296
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 398,350 441,763

The consolidated financial statements on pages 97 to 179 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 7
July 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

Yu Huang

RrE

Director

EF

FITEITVENHEAMBREANR_-F
¥t AtHEEESHERE
BET THMNIEFAERESFS

5B
Zhu Qiang
K08
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
MERRSDR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—"F+-_A=+—HILFE

Foreign Retained
currency earnings/
Share Share  Statutory Capital translation Merger Option (accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
HE RERA/
[ R EME EERME Exih BERK ABEE BRERE (RHER) @it
[note 31(c)(i) note 31(c)(ill) (note 31(c)iil)  (note 31(c)iv))
(Wa3e (W33
GEIC) (B 3310c)i) i) fiv)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETrn ARETT ARETn ARETR ARETn ARETT AREFn ARETR
At 1 January 2021 W-B--%-5-A 467 101,378 19174 274,282 (1,348) (22,103) = 51,692 423542
Total comprehensive income ERRENALE
for the year - - - - (94) - - 26,086 25,992
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTETRE - - 4,065 = - - - (4,065) -
Dividend paid Bith & = = = = = - - am (1771
At 31 December 2021 R-%=-%
t=R=1-H 467 101,378 23,239 274,282 (1,442) (22,103) = 65,942 441,763
At 1 January 2022 W-B-Z%5-f-R 467 101,378 23,239 274,282 (1,442) (22,103) - 65,942 441,763
Total comprehensive loss ERREERLE
for the year - - - - 3,842 - - (76,658) (72,816)
Recognition of share-based payments B A M kAt 2 8 - - - - - - 29,403 - 29,403
At 31 December 2022 it St
tZR=1-H 467 101,378 23,239 214,282 2,400 (22,103) 29,403 (10,716) 398,350
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

REREMRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—"F+-_A=+—-HILFE

2022 2021
—E-= T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR TR AR T
Cash flows from operating activities JE& EZHFFESHERE
(Loss)/profit before tax BB AT (E518) R T (82,086) 31,722
Adjustments for: FE RS
Depreciation of property, plant and M BMEREKETE
equipment 16,420 18,758
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEENE 5,758 7,026
Amortisation of intangible assets BREESN 239 4,913
Net impairment losses on trade and B 5 K& H fth & W 5K IE R A
other receivables BT 18 F 5 24,018 5,374
Written off of intangible assets MEEREE 2,286 =
Impairment losses of property, plant Y BMEMEKERESE
and equipment - 1,904
Impairment loss on/ GFERERBRE (BEEE)
(reversal of provision of)
inventories 6,586 (32)
Interest income 2 A (5) (7496)
Finance costs B 7% AX AN 10,791 10,761
Gain on early termination of lease REZIEHAEN K= (7) =
Loss/(gain) on disposals of property, HEWE BMERKED
plant and equipment BiE (k) 1,094 (38)
Loss on disposal of right-of-use HEFRHEEENEIR
assets 340 -
Amortisation of deferred revenue iR JE WY B o (527) (718)
Share-based payment expenses AR MDZN 2 RERX 29,403 =
Operating cash flows before working LELESEHINELERERE
capital changes 14,310 72,174
Change in inventories GEEH 5,794 27,064
Change in trade receivables BRI ARIEEZS (226,657) (42,383)
Change in prepayments and other T8 1 018 I H fh FE U 3R I8
receivables #H) (83,326) 42,490
Change in trade and other payables B MHEMENKIBEZH 1,851 73,782
Change in license fee payable ENEERE T - (4,815)
Change in contract liabilities EHNAEEED (1,075) 940
Cash (used in)/generated from e (A / mER$
operations (289,103) 169,252
Income tax paid AT P (111) (2,839)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BRETH (A FME8RLFHE
operating activities (289,214) 166,413
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

HEREMRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE_—_F#+-_A=+—HLEE

Annual Report 2022

FLOWS

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR TR AR T
Cash flows from investing activities REZBHHMERERE
Purchase of property, plant and BEME BMELXE
equipment - (10,005)
Purchase of right-of-use assets BETHEEE - (31)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME BMEMRBEABNRE
plant and equipment 400 157
Proceeds from disposal of right-of-use ~ H&FE AEEE SR
assets 572 -
Refund in prepayments TETRIE R R 21,759 5,920
Interest received B U F B 5 840
Change in restricted cash FRHIE S 88 - 1,035
Net cash from/(used in) investing BREFBHFRES (FFABESFE
activities 22,736 (2,084)
Cash flows from financing activities BEFEHFMERERE
Proceeds from borrowings &R AT1S KA - 103,318
Repayment of borrowings BEEX (21,701) (103,903)
Interest paid B AT A B (6,433) (9,462)
Principal and interest element of HENRH RS KA BB
lease payments (8,085) (6,820)
Dividend paid EANE - (5,222)
Advance from shareholders A% B = 5Kk 22,329 11,721
Net cash used in financing activities BEFEHFFARESFHE (13,890) (10,368)
Net (decrease)/increaseincashand HERKREZEEY
cash equivalents (R2) /18 mi%aHE (280,368) 153,961
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#R £ KRS ZEY
of year 286,512 132,424
Effect of changes in foreign HNETE RE B &
exchange rate 79 127
Cash and cash equivalents at ERRERBESEEY
end of year 6,223 286,512
Analysis of cash and cash ReRBESEBYUIN
equivalents
Bank and cash balances RITRIR S & &% 6,223 286,512
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General Information

Kidztech Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 25 October 2019
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands. The address of
its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
Company's shares (the “Share(s)”) were listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange"”) on 18 March 2020 (the “Listing”).

The Company is an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries (together, “the Group"”) are principally
engaged in manufacturing and sales of toys, raw
materials and electronic parts. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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—RER

FTEERBERAR(TEAQF])
BEREFHEQARAENZE
—NF+AZ+EBEREH
SEdMATIAEREEREE
ARl HFM P EE it s
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands ° <
~EIRMD ((RBDER =TT
F=A+N\BEEEBERH
PRAERAR (B ERET
(Teml) -

ARBABREERAGT @ ER
EMBAR(SKEBIRNER]) T
ZREDAE EMRAERETFE
HHEEREE - EWBERA
MNEZEBIRGEATBERE
B 3E37




Kidztech Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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2. Adoption of New and Revised Hong Kong 2. ZRAHFTREETEBH
Financial Reporting Standards B E2EA

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (a) ERAFHTRLETEE

104

The Group has applied the following amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2022 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds

B R RS 2R

REEBEAERBRESE
A g((E8Esma
gHEM R ==
—A—B8%Z2BBEBRZF
EHEES EBROATE
B EHREENTERY
BHREEMDEBT A MU
RERAMBHRE:

BEGHEN  MX BERRE:

before Intended Use 165 BRTBBEMA
(B3 K) E30E

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Annual Improvements
Project to HKFRSs
2018-2022

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19 Related Rent Concession beyond
(March 2021) 30 June 2021

BAECHENE BEAH - EBAS
JIHBHE)  BEBRE
RAENBRE HESEENRL
EH B3R
(BFT %)
EANBREEN AU REED
“Z-\£% R BRY
ZEZZFr BREENF
FEREBRE % BFAUEHR
ERBE6R L
AEEHENE
NEACHES!
EAENKREEY —F--EXF=T
FR(ETR)  BZBOTER
(ZZ--%= HBRERZER

A)
Amendments to Merger Accounting for Common Control SHEIAEST HERAZHAHBA
Accounting Guideline 5 Combinations (BFT %) S

The application of all new and the amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year had no material impact on
the Group’s financial positions and performance for

RAFERERBMBHITR
RETEEREENYH K
SEAFERBAEFEZ

the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures MERARMERRRE,
set out in these consolidated financial statements. RRETBREMEZE

BHEEATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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2. BRWFRIREETERY
B EER(R)

Adoption of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

(b) EHEMERRERIH
A REETT BRI R
HER
AEBEY KEFEMTI
B 28 18 8 R A 2R B0 H7 T

EBETBBEVHREE
Al :

The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or EAGHENSE AEIEARDLE
Non-current’ (B3TK) ik
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants' ERGHENZS WNEZENERDE
(BH%) &
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies? EREHENZY QHRRRR
and HKFRS Practice RERGBESE
Statement 2 AERBESR
(BHH)
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates? TG ENESE eifiHER
(BH%)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities

BREGHENZ N

HE-R5ELNE

Arising from a Single Transaction? (BI%) ERERRANE
58
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sales and Leaseback! ERUBHREENE E4AEDZAEAE
165 (T %)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between ERUBHREENE REAREBERT
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint WERESEHE FAELECHN
Venture? AEBR(BTR)  BEMEARAS
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan ERARESR(BE ERAHIEREX
(Revised) Presentation of ~ that Contains a Repayment on Demand EBREzE EEEFNEEE
Financial Statements Clause! 5 aHnE
Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts? ERUBHREENE RRAH:
(GACHES)
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 1 RZZE-_mFE—AF—H
Jan 2024 kR ZFE S HE
EX
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 R-_ZE-_=F—H—H
Jan 2023 gk EREZFEHHE

Epud

3 To be determined by the HKICPA 3 FEXLGHMASET
The Group is in the process of making an assessment AEBIFEFHZEFEE]
of what the impact of these amendments and new AEFATEANBBHRER
standards is expected to be in the period of initial ERBEANTE - 258
application. So far the directors of the Company I ARABEEER &
anticipate that the application of the new and AT REIE BB B
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact WEER G TEHAER
on the consolidated financial statements in the REWEGEETBRERE S
foreseeable future. EBALE
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3.

106

Significant accounting policies

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA,
and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgments in the process of applying the
accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgments
and areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to these consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties, to determine whether it has control. A potential
voting right is considered only if the holder has the
practical ability to exercise that right.

EXEFHE

ZEGRAVBBRREREE R
M AERMNBEVBR
SERNUARBXAES TR
Al RE B RBMEDI PR E R E
AEBEENRE -

ZERAMBRRIZE LKA
BHmE - ZEHRAVBRE
MIARBETARBDES K=
BERAIN MESEHEERE
REOTAE -

RAENEBEVBRSENN
REVBHRRECREIEZRR
Eibat - BEEBTRARERS
AREEELEAE S RE
KA B A B R 3R S fh 5T #9868
HEEMBREAMSBE X
VREEMBHRERM E4WE -

RAEZEZRAMBERERAER
MEBRAERRANTX

R

RERBHRREBEARA A
MBAREBE+_A=1—H
LW BHRER - WBLIREAR
SEHOSHEAGEREZCESE -
EAEERAS HBZERM K
BEAZ2mBzARKFARAE
Cl$fcm XAEHNEBE
HZERBZENZELETER
B AEENENZEL- B
AEBEHERAENETHE
EB(EHEBREELEEK
FENER) AIASEHZE
REEEN -

EFEEGER  AEEEZE
BRHEGCRFEENRAEMAL
FEMBEREZE®R NETH
EhBEEEHE - EERAA
EERTEEERRENBR
T e EEZLEN -




—E--—gx %iéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂn‘l\

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair
value of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii)
the Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary
plus any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary
and any related accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Separate financial statements

In the Company's statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is sated at cost less impairment
loss, unless the investment is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investments. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received or
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.
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3. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

108

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

I[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
functional currency of the operating subsidiaries
incorporated in Hong Kong is Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"), while the functional currency of the other
subsidiaries of the Group is RMB. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB, which
is the functional currency of the Company and the
operating subsidiaries and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated at the exchange rates at the end of
each reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from
this translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. The transaction date is the date
on which the company initially recognises such non-
monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary items
that are measured at fair values in foreign currencies
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

3. EXEFHHBEE)

HEBRE

(a)

(b)

hEER2INEE

AEEREERVBERE
EsRENEREEM
EZITERERRZER
THheEBDFE-&F
BEMK LN EENB R
AN EERRET(E
ED'W$%IE@WE
ﬁ%%%%%%AE%O
HAEMBRERALR
%@WE@TZ%%E%
EAEBE2INEBEARE
25 -

EERMBRRNXER
& BR

SN 325 A ) 4h HE R B IR
XHZAMERMNEZRBRE
RUMEEE - LHINEEE
MEBEERABERESER
THRNWERBRE - Z#
ERRELENKRDZMER
REBEmPER -

12 FE 2 B AN LA SN R B AL
AREMFEBEERAE
BRXZEBITHERBE -
R BEHTARRR L E
RELSHEKEEXAR
ZBEE e RN ERAFE
FREMIERHRERER
AFEEAMNERBE -

FEBHENKEXE
SR E A 2 E U S R A
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3. Significant accounting policies 3. EREFEEE)

(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued) SNEBRER)

(¢) Translation on consolidation (c) EHtRFETESR
The results and financial position of all the Group L SN D
entities that have a functional currency different from BETRAZMESEERZ
the Company’s presentation currency are translated ¥Z§ &\5\7”%# IR D/{Tﬁ
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows: ABERARAZINEY:

Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in the foreign currency translation reserve.

- BORENZHBRR
FANZEERBER
ZMBEARRARAE
WhERRE:

- WARHAXRFHIE
= 8 (BF 9F 1tk F 19
EXVIFRZAHE
ROERZ RAEE
ZEBEHE B
MT - BXERERX
SRMZERHRE):
K

- FAmMEEZER
EBEN B E B
TR -




Kidztech Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—"F+-_A=+—HILFE

3.

110

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Translation on consolidation (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in foreign
entities and of borrowings are recognised in the
foreign currency translation reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences are
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. Property,
plant and equipment are carried at costs less subsequent
depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The useful lives are as follows:

3. EXEFHHBEE)

S BE ()
(c) & OFB TR (H)

REAHKRER BES
SNERREFERERE
EZEREZEEARIINE R
BHRBER BHEBEIN
EGE - ZELZBE/N
HEOBSRR FREE
ZEHAWEKE R °

WESHINEBELEZAE
RAFEABERRDZLE
SNEBZEERBE X
REHEXR®BE -

BFI2REIMAMAE -
ME BEREKBRRRTRE
BIFERBEBRIIK -

H 1R B2 7R BOR REOE B &
BAERAASEERZER -
MZxBB 2K ANGEHA] SET &
B heFABEZEREENL
ARBLEEMSEMR) - T
BEEMEERREEBREES
ZHEARBESPER -

ME BEREBTELNER
FEEARGFAERAEHR
WSHE R AR R SR EE 2 L
RAHE - AERAFHET:

Buildings 30-35 years BF 30&E354F
Leasehold improvements 2-5 years HEWEEE 2E5F
Mould and machinery 3-10 years E A i 2s 3E104
Motor vehicles 3-10 years RE 3E10F
Furniture and office equipment 3-5 years S NS 3E54F
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and machinery pending installation,
and is stated at cost less impairment losses. Depreciation
begins when the relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases
The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and
corresponding lease liabilities when the leased assets
are available for use by the Group. Right-of-use assets
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use assets is
calculated at rates to write off their cost over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Land use right 2%-3%
Buildings 20%-50%
Motor vehicles 20%-33%

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities,
lease payments prepaid, initial direct costs and the
restoration costs. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the lease payments discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease if that rate can be determined, or
otherwise the Group's incremental borrowing rate. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability.
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3. Significant accounting policies 3. EREFEEE)

(Continued)

Leases (Continued) HEE)

The Group as lessee (Continued) AEEERAEAN(E)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the RABEHENRBER  MHE

Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease EBRENMNEHEUETE  AIK

commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the SEFAEERKBHNEE

lease is not readily determinable. To determine the BEMERFE AEETHEEE
incremental borrowing rate, the Group: A E KEH:

- where possible, uses recent third-party financing -  HERREMIBRT - AE R
received by the individual lessee as a starting point, EBATBWRINE=F
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions BEABE WETHAR
since third party financing was received; URBBEKRER KD E

=HEmERKNE L

—  uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free - HRULNERRBRF XSRS
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held MEMNE TERBREBRE
by the group entities, which do not have recent BEEHENEERRGE
third-party financing, and MY EE=FRE)ET

- makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, - HEHEMEBFEHRAE-
country, currency and security. MEEH BEXR B%K

AR o

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to fisl 18 51 2 A6 A 7] % 15 7] BB 5 BR

the individual lessee (through recent financing or market REMBEE R E(RBIIE

data) which has a similar payment profile to the lease, BENMIZEE) BEMREBER
then the group entities use that rate as a starting point to HEAEHAMN SEEEBUZ
determine the incremental borrowing rate. FERBENE T EERT

112
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Short-
term leases are leases with an initial lease term of 12
months or less. Low-value assets are assets of value below
US$5,000.

The Group as lessor

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all
the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted
for as operating leases. Rental income from operating
leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease.

Intangible assets
(a) Trademarks

Trademarks are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of 5 years.

(b) Software

Acquired computer softwares are capitalised on the
basis of costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. Softwares are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 3-5 years.
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3. Significant accounting policies BERGFBEX(E)
(Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued) B EEE)
(¢) License rights (c) H5erHE

114

License rights are stated at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. They are initially measured at
the fair value of the consideration given to acquire
the license at the time of the acquisition, which
represents the capitalised present values of the fixed
minimum payment to be made upon commencement
of the license contract and in subsequent years.

The Group amortises intangible assets with limited
useful lives of 3 to 5 years for trademarks and
software and over the terms of the license right
contracts of 1 to 3 years using straight-line method.

Research and development

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. An internally
generated intangible asset arising from the Group’s
development project (relating to the design and developing
of new or improved utility models and utility patents) are
recognised only if all of the following conditions are met:

- An asset is created that can be identified (such as
software and new processes);

- It is probable that the asset created will generate
future economic benefits; and

- The development cost of the asset can be measured
reliably.

Internally generated intangible assets are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of one to five years. Where no
internally generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an asset
is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
asset within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially recognised at fair value, plus
directly attributable transaction costs except in the case of
investments at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of investments
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets of the Group are classified as financial
assets at amortised cost.

Financial assets (including trade and other receivables) are
classified under this category if they satisfy both of the
following conditions:

- the assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the assets give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less loss allowance for
expected credit losses.

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses on financial assets at amortised cost. Expected
credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with
the respective risks of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures
the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an
amount equal to the expected credit losses that result
from all possible default events over the expected life
of that financial instrument (“lifetime expected credit
losses”) for trade receivables, or if the credit risk on that
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses
(Continued)

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a
financial instrument (other than trade receivables) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at
an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit
losses that represents the expected credit losses that
result from default events on that financial instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust
the loss allowance at the end of the reporting period to
the required amount is recognised in profit or loss as an
impairment gain or loss.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount
is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

Contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for expected credit
losses and are reclassified to receivables when the right to
the consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised if the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognizes the related revenue. In
such cases, a corresponding receivable would also be
recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of
unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method.
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments which
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’'s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is
any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer with reference to the
customary business practices and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. For a contract where
the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised product or service exceeds
one year, the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a
significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring control over a
product or service to a customer. Depending on the terms
of a contract and the laws that apply to that contract, a
performance obligation can be satisfied over time or at a
point in time. A performance obligation is satisfied over
time if:

(a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance;

(b) the Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue
is recognised by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the product or service.
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’'s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

The Group’s revenue is recognised as follows:

(i) Sales of toy cars, raw materials and electronic
parts

Customers obtain control of the toy cars, raw
materials and electronic parts when the goods
are delivered to and have been accepted by them.
Revenue is therefore recognised upon when the
customers accepted the toy cars, raw materials and
electronic parts.

(ii) Procurement and selling of raw materials and
electronic parts

Customers obtain control of the raw materials and
electronic parts when the customers received the
goods directly delivered from suppliers. There is
generally only one performance obligation which is
fulfiled when the customers accepted the goods.
Revenue is therefore recognised upon the customers
accepted the raw material and electronic parts.
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Other income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.

Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the year in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect
of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
year and are measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations in
the statement of financial position.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged in profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(d) Housing funds, medical insurances and other
social insurances

Employees of the group companies in the PRC
are entitled to participate in various government
supervised housing funds, medical insurance and
other employee social insurance plan. The Group
contributes on a monthly basis to these funds
based on certain percentages of the salaries of the
employees, subject to certain ceiling. The Group's
liability in respect of these funds is limited to the
contributions payable in each year.

(e) Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present contractual
or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain employees. Equity-settled share-based payments
are measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non
market-based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments
at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the
grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Group’'s estimate of shares that will
eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-
based vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees are measured at the fair value (excluding the
effect of non-market based vesting conditions) of the
equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’'s estimate of
shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect
of non-market based vesting conditions.
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The Group also provides employees with the ability to
purchase the Company’s ordinary shares at a discount to
the current market value. The Group records an expense,
based on the fair value of the discount related to shares
expected to vest (taking in account the post vesting
transfer restrictions), on a straight- line basis over the
vesting period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that
asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of
the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Government grants relating to the purchase of assets are
recorded as deferred income and recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Repayment of a grant related to income is applied first
against any unamortised deferred income set up in respect
of the grant. To the extent that the repayment exceeds any
such deferred income, or where no deferred income exists,
the repayment is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Repayment of a grant related to an asset is recorded by
increasing the carrying amount of the asset or reducing the
deferred income by the amount repayable. The cumulative
additional depreciation that would have been recognised
in profit or loss to date in the absence of the grant is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Company or of a parent of the Company.
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3. Significant accounting policies 3. EXEFEE(E)
(Continued)
Related parties (Continued) B A (%)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) fl“]’ ?‘f/\—l— B A ] & 14 - El]
following conditions applies: ZEREANEBERHE

() The entity and the Company are members of () ZEBRBEAQABR
the same group (which means that each parent, —SEBMKE QR (A
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the E8RQA - WBRF
others). PAGES =N Kl

] ﬁ E@@) °©

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the (i) —HAERBRS BB
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a RN AR
member of a group of which the other entity is a X(EHS—ERBAK
member). BARIKEEETK

BRAFMEE QR
EEDE)-

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MEEEHERE—F
party. AR EEDRE-

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity ivi, —HEBARE=FE
and the other entity is an associate of the third BHeEhE M3
entity. —ERARZE=FE

M E QA o

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for v) ZERBAANSEE
the benefit of employees of either the Group or rEEBEHENETR
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is ol =R VAl O
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are B A Er & o WAE
also related to the Group. B A HE A% &

Al E B A 1B £ 70
HAEERBHE -

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (Vi) ZEBXZ@FFHEA
person identified in (a). 47 ) g R A o

(vil A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) P2 (a)(i) BT &% B A L ¥
influence over the entity or is a member of the ?E%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ/gﬁi
key management personnel of the entity (or of a BZERB(RZER®
parent of the entity). MERARDEZTEER

ABKE -

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which (viii ZERBIEFMBESE
it is a part, provides key management personnel ®)fF /] 5K B A R [ A
services to the Company or to a parent of the NE 1 NN RSN
Company. REZTZEEEAER
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the Group's
most senior executive management for the purpose of
allocating resources and assessing the performance of the
Group's various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments
have similar economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and services, the nature
of productions processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and other intangible assets
except deferred income tax asset, investments, inventories
and receivables, to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

EXEFTHEE)

7 EB R &
BEDBREDHABNHL
BENZEOLE  BRAER

HRETFALEERSTRE B
EREBESERIBALEET
AL 2BRENTBEEHN
R o

M BHREMS - BRIFED A

f%*ﬁfﬁlﬁ%&@“ﬁﬁfﬂﬁﬁéuu&
RBEE - EIZZ@E'IEE~§
FBAEKEH - 7 8 E m
iR HEWMH&J«A&&M

BERMETEAEN SA&E
BREEHTEaHTE-
ERFEEANEEDBUFTA
L KRB ZEE - B A& BF 5T
g o

FERMEERE

RERESHKR AEEBRMHE
BRREMEBREECELEMRE
MEE RE HFEREERX
BHRINNEEE NEEER
THHERBETIZEEELTR
EER - MEEEABABTR
Qg EEMATKRE S 8 -
NEEEMREBENEE -
i 4B O 4 & {8 B & 2 &9 AT U =

B AEBEBIAREEM
BNRecELBUMNATKRES
B o

AlEmeBEEREAFERLE

KRAEGCABEEPNERSE °
TEEREER - B RERR
eREGRABAAIEXLIR
ZHERE ZBAMBEXRRMS
HEERHHEBENE N MST
mMRZEEFRENRR -




—E--—gx %iéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂn‘l\

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Impairment of assets non-financial
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-
generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditures expected to settle the obligation. The
discount rate used to determine the present value is a
pretax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements when material.

Critical judgements and key estimates

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements (other than those involving
estimates) that have a significant impact on the amounts
recognised and to make estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are revised on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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4. Critical judgements and key estimates
(Continued)

(i)

Critical judgements in applying
accounting policies

In the process of applying accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that
have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
(apart from those involving estimations, which are
dealt with below).

(a)

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 3, ECL are measured as
an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage
1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage
3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what
constitutes a significant increase in credit risk.
In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable
and supportable forward-looking information.
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4. Critical judgements and key estimates
(Continued)

(i) Critical judgements in applying
accounting policies (Continued)

(b)

132

Revenue recognition — principal versus
agent

During the year, the Group has commenced
the procurement and sales raw materials
and electronic parts business. With the long
established relationship with the suppliers in
Hong Kong and Mainland China, the Group
sources for and sells the raw materials and
electronic parts that suits the customers’
specific requirement. Certain of these trading
transactions are arranged in an indent basis and
the Group does not bear inventory risks but the
credit risk.

The directors of the Group considered that the
Group has not obtained the control of those
goods being sold to the customers in the
course of these transactions and concluded
that the Group is acting as an agent in these
sale transactions, and therefore, revenue from
these sale transactions are accounted as an
agency service income and the net proceeds
(sales amount less cost of sales) is recognised
as revenue. In determining whether the Group
is acting as a principal or as an agent, the
directors are required to exercise significant
judgement and to consider all relevant facts and
circumstances of these trading business.
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4. Critical judgements and key estimates
(Continued)

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are discussed below.

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets

The Group determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation
and amortisation charges for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets. This estimate is
based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets of similar nature and functions.
The Group will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives and residual values are
different to those previously estimated, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned
or sold.
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4. Critical judgements and key estimates
(Continued)

134

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(b)

Recoverable amounts of property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is determined with
reference to the present value of estimated
future cash flows. Where the future cash flows
are less than expected or there are unfavourable
events and change in facts and circumstance
which result in revision of future estimate cash
flows, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying
amounts of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets
were approximately RMB146,887,000,
RMB31,248,000 and RMB287,000 respectively
(2021: RMB161,814,000, RMB38,346,000 and
RMB2,812,000 respectively).
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4. Critical judgements and key estimates
(Continued)

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(c)

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and
doubtful debts based on assessments of the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each debtor.
Impairments arise where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. The identification of bad and
doubtful debts requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the actual result is
different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the
trade and other receivables and doubtful debt
expenses in the year in which such estimate has
been changed.

During the year ended 31 December 2022,
impairment losses on trade and other
receivables of approximately RMB24,018,000
(2021: RMB5,374,000) was recognised in the
profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying
amounts of trade and other receivables
were approximately RMB327,541,000
and RMB86,459,000 respectively (2021:
RMB117,007,000 and RMB13,881,000
respectively).
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4. BARHEREZME (&)

(i) AT TABERNEE
HR ()

(c)

RERBEEBS

AEBERBHES R
H fth, & U 3K TH 7] 1 8]
HHFBHERERE
BAWERNEERB
EA A8 FE R R
2R OREE B - N
BEEHXRBEREHRE
7R B FE AT BE O W[
B g HRBEE -
a5l R 22 BR 7R A A A
B N fh At - HERAE
RBEBINRAE G
AEHE=8ESTESR
MEAEEHFEN
B 5 & W KR
B BR (B A & R BR 7
= o

BHE-_f2-_—_F+=
A=+—HILEE -
B 5 K& H M E KR
HREBEHOAR
#24,018,0007C (=
ZE-—F:ARH¥
5,374,0007T) E R 18
HHER -

RZZTEZZZF+=A
=+t— B E3KH
fih FE W R IBE A BR T
EHRlHABEARE
327,541,000t & A R
#86,459,000 T (=&
Z—F: D AEAR
#117,007,0007T & A
R #13,881,0007T) °
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HEZ

4. Critical judgements and key estimates
(Continued)

136

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(d)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expense. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and
the historical experience of manufacturing
and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste and competitor actions. The
Group will reassess the estimates by the end of
each reporting period.

During the year ended 31 December
2022, impairment losses on inventories of
approximately RMB6,586,000 (2021: reversal
of provision of inventory: RMB32,000) was
recognised in the profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying
amounts of inventories were approximately
RMB10,858,000 (2021: RMB23,238,000).

4. BARHEREZME (&)

(i) AT TABERNEE
HR ()

(d)

FEZURRFE

FEZAZRFAER
BEEBBEPZMA
& B R fib &t 52 AR
ARHEERX - IF
B TIREBERITHNR
KBk B E R
EEmZBERLRM
EeEARERPMK
B R ST RER
TEHMABES - &
SERSHREHRE
et F b e

HE-—E-_—&E+4+=
A=Z+—HLHFE-
FEREBBEOAR
#6,586,000C (= =
T—FFEEREER
B A KR #¥32,0005T)
ERESHER -

B —+

N o &N

34 E S m

,238,0007T) °
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Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in the functional
currencies of the Group entities of HK$ and RMB.

Some of the business transactions, assets and
liabilities in a Group's entity with functional currency
of HK$, are denominated in currencies such as
United States Dollars (“US$") and EURO (“EUR").
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the risk of movements in exchange rates between
HK$ and USS$ to be insignificant since HK$ is pegged
against US$. The foreign currency risk arose with
the movements in exchange rates between HK$ and
EUR is also considered insignificant as the amounts
denominated in EUR is minimal.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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5. Financial risk management (Continued) 5. BIEEEE(E)

(b) Credit risk (b) FEREKE
The carrying amount of the cash and bank balances, FFAGE B BARR KRR
trade receivables and other receivables included e RIBITES  BIREK
in the consolidated statement of financial position RIA K H fth fE U 5RIA 89 BR
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit HEEASEBERASEEH
risk in relation to the Group's financial assets. CREEFMEYSN &S E
EREk -
The Group has significant concentrations of credit risk ArEBEBEEAREFEES
as 67% (2021: 30%) of the Group's trade receivables SNE S AR == AN S
were due from 3 (2021: 3) customers. The directors 67% (= & — — F:30%)
of the Company are of the opinion that the credit WEZRERKZKREHERAE
risk exposure in relation to these customers is not —REP(ZEZ—F:=
significant as these customers had sound financial B)  ARTBEEZRE ' H
position for whom there was no recent history of RZEZPMBRIBRE
default. B HA N M 2 40 40 8%

MEZEEFERNEE
BB OITERK -

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made & E 2§ E K AR M
to customers with an appropriate credit history. BEEEEEERHNERP
HITHE o

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited RBeERBOTEBHEER
because the counterparties are banks with high BER: LTDBHREFH
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating REBRBEETRKER
agencies. TREEFRMRT -

The Group considers whether there has been a TEBEBAIREBEE
significant increase in credit risk of financial assets RBEBBREFENENR
on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period RHE AN YE R AR E
by comparing the risk of a default occurring as at the HREK NUFHEmEE
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date WEERBMBEERERE
of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable HA R FRE E LERIRIE AN -
and supportive forwarding-looking information. rEEGERMEBEEEK
Especially the following information is used: ASREEER  LHEMEFE

BUTEE R :

- internal credit rating; - AHREEFL:

- actual or expected significant adverse changes - TEHIBHERABI
in business, financial or economic conditions EFEFgAERBERKR
that are expected to cause a significant change FENERK BB
to the borrower's ability to meet its obligations; LEMRAHER XA
and HEKXKTHMEE: &

r— PR . _ it e

—  significant changes in the expected performance EBERANBBHRERER
and behaviour of the borrower, including TENERES
changes in the payment status of borrowers. 8 R RO 8
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5. Financial risk management (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a
debtor is more than 30 days past due in making a
contractual payment. A default on a financial asset
is when the counterparty fails to make contractual
payments within 90 days of when they fall due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor
failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.
The Group normally categorises a receivable for
write off when a debtor fails to make contractual
payments greater than 360 days past due. Where
loans or receivables have been written off, the Group,
if practicable and economical, continues to engage
in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the
receivable due.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash
flows, of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows:
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5. MBEREREE)
(b) &R (&)

(c)

fif (8 75 A R & #9193
e BB B30 B @ AIR R
EERBRABBEN - Y
FHEERAHNMNKE
BOOR A X 31| - Al &
MEELRED -

BRAT 1T R AT & B
1B T) # & 5K 3SR
B 5 Bl U [ 2 5 R 0R

REBE SRR

AEENBRRABERER
EREEHARBESHR
NHERGERTEREFHE
MEEERHERERARDE

AEESREEND S
EREBBRSREAN
m -

i}

%

=

hiid

v

A

]@ R
i 2B RS
c NT MW H

Total contractual undiscounted cash flow

BENFEBRERE
On demand
Carrying  or within Between1 Between 2

amounts 1year and2years andb years Total

REX
REE Z-FR -EWER —ZIER EH)
ZBCCE RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
31 December 2022 +ZA=1-8H ARETT ARETn AR%Tn AR%Trn ARET:R
Bank and other borrowings RARAME 139,834 139,834 - - 139,834
Trade and other payables BHREMERTIE 146,362 146,362 - - 146,362
Lease liabilities REBR 5,008 2,848 2,588 - 5,436
License fee payable R HEE 1,867 1,908 - - 1,908
Amount due to a related company ER-—HEEAR 962 962 - - 962
294,033 291,914 2,588 - 294,502
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5. Financial risk management (Continued)

5. MBEREREE)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) RBELE (&)
Total contractual undiscounted cash flow
BANKERBERE
On demand
Carrying orwithin ~ Between 1 Between 2

amounts Tyear and2years andb years Total
FREE SN -EWERN ZEZRER @5t
—E-—F RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
31 December 2021 +ZA=+-H ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
Bank and other borrowings RITRE A 155,278 157317 = = 167317
Trade and other payables BOREMERNTNE 116,854 116,854 = = 116,854
Lease liabilities HERE 10,285 5,112 6,110 - 11,222
License fee payable EHEEE 1,867 1,776 132 = 1,908
Amount due to a related company FEf—MAYLF 962 962 = = 962
285,246 282,021 6,242 - 288,263

(d) Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from
its bank deposits and borrowings. These deposits and
borrowings bear interests at variable rates varied with
the then prevailing market condition.

As at 31 December 2022, if the interest rate on
cash at banks and borrowings increased/decreased
by 0.5% with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s post-tax losses/profits for the year would
have been RMB80,000 higher/lower (31 December
2021: RMB265,000 higher/lower) mainly as a result
of increase in interest income from cash at bank and
increase in interest expense from borrowings with
variable rates.

The Group has not entered into any interest rate
swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate risks.
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(d) RIZ=Ek

AEENNERERKAR
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5. Financial risk management (Continued) 5. BIEEEE(E)

(e) Fair values (e) A¥E
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the carrying A e e
amounts of the Group's financial assets and financial F+-A=Z=+—"8B" R&
liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement & B IR & T R L) R
of financial position approximate their respective fair SEaMmEERERAR
values. MEEHEEEZFNH AT
BHEE -
(f) Financial instruments by category (f) REFSsz2eMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the category of rEBz2EHEI M IA
the Group's financial instruments at the end of the REmEHARZEmMERT

reporting period are as follows:

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT ARETT

Financial assets cREE
Financial assets at amortised REEKNAT RN ESREE

cost (including cash and cash PREASEBESEEY)

equivalents) 420,223 417,400
Financial liabilities cRas

Financial liabilities at amortised BEERRINEN SR AE
cost 288,832 280,180
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6. Revenue 6. Wz
2022 2021
—EsE=-= —E -4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®B TR AR T
Revenue from contracts with REEBUBREER
customers within the scope of FBREHERANEFEYN
HKFRS 15 B9 U 2
Sales of toy cars HEBEE 130,254 283,843
Sales of raw materials and HERMBRETFEMH
electronic parts 33,155 -
Procurement and selling of REREEREMB &
raw-materials and electronic parts BEFEMH 6,022 =
169,431 283,843

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers:

KEEFPAMNNKZEDMT :

2022 2021
—EsE=-= - —4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
Segment il AR T ARBFTT
Geographical markets B 5
Mainland China AR A D 42,843 191,665
Hong Kong &% 126,588 92,178
Total ot 169,431 283,843
Major products FTEER
Smart toy vehicles BB 41,308 166,586
Smart interactive toys B g ma - 13,138
Traditional toys Bt A 88,946 104,119
Raw materials and electronic parts RV REFEMH 39,177 =
Total #Et 169,431 283,843
Timing of revenue recognition R KRS
At a point in time NE R 169,431 283,843
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7. Other income and other gains/(losses), 7. HttgARE AUz (&
net BFEE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR AR T T
Interest income F B WA 5 7,496
Government grants* I8 7T 475 BA * 864 3,915
Exchange (losses)/gains, net 5 (FiE) W F58 (1,104) 444
Rental income HEWA 721 1,104
Gains on sale of & R R I &
scrap materials 1,652 3,708
Loss on disposals of property, HEWE - HMENLREN
plant and equipment &5 18 (1,094) 38
Gain on early termination of REKIEEAENKESE
lease 7 -
Loss on disposal of right-of- LEFREEENEE
use assets (340) -
Others HAh 721 404
1,432 17,109
@ Government grants represent subsidies from Government 2 B EAEEBFNITHRE

B AR SR TR 30 %€ ) &1 81 2 1
M- RBEHKR BT
0 Bh 0 BT 00 R E KR 1 Sk
Hib sk A E

of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region under
the Employment Support Scheme. At the end of the
reporting period, there is no unfulfilled conditions nor other
contingencies attached to the government grants
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8.

144

Segment information 8. AHEH
The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and AEEBFEHEEE . RHA
sales of toy cars, raw materials and electronic parts and REFEMHEEREENANRE
procurement and selling of raw materials and electronic BERHEHERMHEREFEH -
parts. Management reviews the operating results of the EREEEMEBLEXERK
business as one operating segment to make decisions ERAB—ELEDF - MED
about resources to be allocated. Therefore, the executive BRAIEMATE - Bt - &R
directors of the Company regard that there is only one ANTESRAE EE—EA
operating segment which is used to make strategic LATEHSRBE MR EM & D EL -
decisions. Revenue and profit before income tax are W kBRI EHARNIHE
the measures reported to the executive directors of the BORERRFEMER TR
Company for the purpose of resources allocation and NEHITEENE ©
performance assessment.
The accounting policies of the operating segments are &y B = AT R BB RS 3R
the same as those described in note 3 to the financial M FEIFTAME R o o FIER
statements. Segment non-current assets do not include PEETERESBIARETE
financial instruments and deferred tax assets. MIEBEE o
Geographical information ENE
Revenue Non-current assets
g % FRBEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—Eg- = —E-—F Z—ZE¥E-C —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETR AREBFTRT AR®TR ARETFR
Mainland China FRE A D 42,843 191,665 203,078 245,324
Hong Kong aE 126,588 92,178 5,680 9,743
169,431 283,843 208,758 255,067

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there
was no single external customer that contributed 10% or
more of the Group's total revenue from external customers.

BHE_TE-_—_Fhk=_F=-—
+-—A=+—BLFE HEE
—INBREPAEAEEMINB R
FPralzam10%s A £ -
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(Loss)/profit for the year

For the year ended 31 December 2022

"=

9. FK

—E-_—F+-_A=t+—HLEE

(B8]) "&BF

2022 2021
—E-= T4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®B TR AR T
Allowance for inventories FEEE
(included in cost of sales) (FFASEE K A) 6,580 =
Raw materials and goods used EFEARMBREY 110,492 119,467
Staff costs (including directors’ 8 T k2N
emoluments) (BRESEW)
— Salaries, bonus and allowance - - EAKER 7524 36,840
— Share-based payments expenses - AR zRAE 29,403 =
- Retirement benefits scheme - R RAR N & &4 3R (B FEa)
contributions (note a) 523 1,415
Depreciation of property, plant and Y- BB R&ERGEAE
equipment, right-of-use assets and BEWEREREE
amortisation of intangible assets ok 22,417 30,697
Royalty expenses (note b) BEERZ (M iEb) 4,478 5,070
Subcontracting charges PBEEH 4,135 31,602
Freight charge and transportation EBEREHHAX
expenses 15 2,479
Auditor’s remuneration for audit % SRM 1R £ 25 1% AR 1S A Fr A
services 1,000 1,550
Notes: B 5
(a) Contributions to the defined contribution retirement (a AEBAEEBRMTEEMHK

(b)

schemes by the Group for its employees are fully and
immediately vested in the employees once the contributions
are made. There are no contributions forfeited by the Group
on behalf of its employees who leave the plan prior to
vesting fully in such contribution. Hence, there is no such
an issue whether forfeited contributions may be used by the
Group to reduce the existing level of contributions.

Royalty expenses comprised amortisation of license
rights of approximately RMBNil (2021: approximately
RMB4,663,000) and variable license payments of
approximately RMB411,000 (2021: approximately
RMB407,000) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

BARFH B R 23R R 1E
HHERREZBRAONBRBER
BE -WREZTERE X
BRRHEMER AKEY
BORWEMMER Btk - I
TEEAKBERNSERER
Yo 4 R B MR 3R B R RROKF
ZEH-

REERYPRERBZE_S==
F+-_A=ZF+—HLEFEN
WARBEZ(ZE=_—F:
4 A R #4,663,0007T) H) &
MY UROARE
41,000 (ZTE=Z—F A
R %407,0007T) /) )% ) % #

A o




Kidztech Holdings Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

Annual Report 2022

e R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—"F+-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. Finance costs 10. B & AR

2022 2021
—E-CF T —F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R AR T
Interest expenses on bank borrowings R 17 & 2 & K| B 5 X 5,597 6,193
Interest expenses on other borrowings H 4th & A F B 5 2 3,661 1,931
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEAEBENFERX 495 702

Interest expenses on license fee ERNEEENNERX
payables - 597
Others Hi 1,038 1,338
10,791 10,761

11. Income tax (credit)/expenses . BB GER) BIX
2022 2021
—EgE=-= —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR FT
Current tax — PRC Enterprise BNEAFR T - PR %
Income Tax Fr 15 %

— Provision for the year - FAEHE - 7,257
— Over-provision in prior year -BAEFEHRERE (1,180) =
(1,180) -
Deferred tax (note 18) IE JE B 18 (B 5E18) (4,248) (1,621)
(5,428) 5,636

ARRREREHE RRIAR
MeBeaMKIRERRE
RAd AHERRHAANFEE
BHEMEHR - RIZREE L
E(XBEXER] B AT A
’B-MNEABREZESEMAKL
MEBEBHMAMGER -

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as
an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of Cayman lIslands and, accordingly, is
exempted from Cayman Islands income tax. Under the
current laws of the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), entities
incorporated in BVI are not subject to income tax.
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Income tax (credit)/expenses (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group is
eligible to nominate one Hong Kong incorporated entity in
the Group, namely Kidztech Toys Manufacturing Limited
("Kidztech HK”), to be taxed at the two tiered profits
tax rates, whereby profits tax will be chargeable on the
first HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits at 8.25% and
assessable profits above this threshold will be subject
to a rate of 16.5% (2021: same). Hong Kong profits tax
of the other Hong Kong incorporated group entities has
been provided for at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profits. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax
was made as the Group’s Hong Kong entities either has no
assessable profits or has adequate tax losses to set off its
assessable profits.

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law (“EIT
Law"), the EIT rate for domestic enterprises and foreign
invested enterprises is 25%. Kidztech (Guangdong)
Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd. (“Kidztech Intelligent”,
formerly known as Kidztech Intelligent Technology Co.,
Ltd.), the Group's operating subsidiary in the PRC, was
awarded the National High-tech Enterprise Certificate
which is effective for three years commencing on 1
January 2020 with applicable income tax rate being 15%
for the years from 2020 to 2022. All the other PRC entities
of the Group are subject to EIT at a rate of 25%.

1.
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FrEB(ER) BIx (&)

REBEZZTE_ZF+_A=+—
BEFE AEBEEERRS
—EAEBEREBEMAILD
ERASTITEMAEEEAR
AE([EBELTE]D)EMAF
SHBEEGMAB R Bk &
2,000,000 Jt /9 FE 3R 15 0% ) 15
#8.25% M B BB MK M
Bz ERMER GG R
16.5% M Ft R(ZET = — F: i
B)BAT R - b & ATM
MY EBERBNGATERD
M B E16.5% M K5 &
BREHEE ARAEED
EEERTETNERTES -
NMERHREBEBRREELER
TaH T EREENNGSH
EHBEE -

BEPBEPEMEHE(EE
FEHE) BARERINE
TERNFEHE A% - N&E
BrrEEENHBART
E(ER)BENEERAR(R
TEER BT T ETER
FEBROBERAGERTFTERS
FREBEGERE RZTEZE
F—A—HEBA=ZFHR B=
TR FE_T__FHHEM
BRAAMSHEARILS KNEHE
A HE i B & EE22Db%H
MEGWNTERMSH -
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11. Income tax (credit)/expenses (Continued) 11.

The reconciliation between the income tax and the (loss)/

B (ER), B (&)

s ERBAT(EER), 8 f

profit before tax is as follows: ZHERIME
2022 2021
—E-C_F —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR AR F T
(Loss)/profit before tax BRABSHE(BER), &% F (79,940) 31,722
Calculated at applicable tax rate BEAMEGHE (13,190) 4,728
Tax effect of expenses not deductible i & 18 B & 5 -~ 7] #0 J&
for tax purpose X K7 & & 5,538 1,419
Tax effect of income that is not DEFRRMBANBRG T E
taxable (1,056) =
Tax effect of additional deduction o 2% B =2 19 B8 SN F00RL 89 B 7S
on research and development v
expenses - (855)
Over-provision in prior year BEFEBBRE (1,180) -
Effect of different tax rates of MBARMEXER ¥ &
subsidiaries 333 -
Tax effect of tax losses not WEERANHTIEBENT B
recognised 2 4,127 344
Income tax (credit)/expense FRAMEHGER) FAX
for the year (5,428) 5,636
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12. Directors’ and five highest paid 12. EERTEBREHFMAL
individuals’ emoluments <
The emoluments of each director were as follows: ZEEMEHMOT

Salaries Contribution

and other to pension
Fee benefits scheme Total
&R BikeE
he AR 5% @t
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

i ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Executive directors HITES
Mr. Pui Lik Leung Kenny AR 1 - 180 - 180
Mr. Yu Huang REEE - 840 18 858
Mr. Zhu Qiang RBEAE 2 - 116 8 124
Ms. He Minhua mMgELL 3 - - - -
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ms. Zheng Jingyun BEEqT - - - -
Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors
Mr. He Weidong MEREE 103 - - 103
Mr. Gong Lan EREE 4 77 - - 77
Ms. Zhao Weiwei BEERL 5 26 - - 26
Ms. Wang Shiling THRxt 103 - - 103
Total for the year ended 31 S

December 2022 ST-AEFEEE 309 1,136 26 1471
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Ni Yanlong REELEE 6 - 300 2 302
Mr. Pui Lik Leung Kenny P 1 - 732 14 746
Mr. Yu Huang RELE - 472 7 479
Ms. He Minhua CEE N 3 - 123 - 123
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ms. Zheng Jingyun BEExL - - - -
Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors
Mr. He Weidong R EE 108 - - 108
Ms. Liu Man fent 5 72 = = 72
Ms. Zhao Weiwei HBEELL 5 108 - - 108
Ms. Wang Shiling Tt 36 - - 36

Total for the year ended 31 HE-Z2--%1ZR
December 2021 “+-HIEFEEH 324 1,627 23 1,974
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HE-_Z-—"F+-_A=+—HILFE

12. Directors’ and five highest paid
individuals’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

1

Mr. Pui Lik Leung Kenny resigned as executive director on
23 March 2022.

2 Mr. Zhu Qiang was appointed as executive director of the
Company on 23 March 2022.

8 Ms. He Minhua was appointed as executive director of the
Company on 31 August 2021 and resigned on 31 May 2022.

4 Mr. Gong Lan was appointed as independent non-executive
director of the Company on 23 March 2022.

b Ms. Liu Man and Ms. Zhao Weiwei were appointed as the
independent non-executive directors of the Company on
13 February 2020 and resigned on 31 August 2021 and 23
March 2022 respectively.

6

Mr. Ni Yanlong retired as executive director on 27 May 2021.

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during
the year included no director (2021: 2 directors) whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
The emoluments of the remaining 5 employees (2021: 3
employees) individuals are set out below:

12. EERTBRESHMAL
< (&)

B 5 -

1. BRARZRTERZ-ZZTE-_=—F=
AZ+=HBTHRITES -

2. KRBEAWR_T-_—F=HA
—+=-BEZXEERRQRHIT
FE o

3. ([@gELLTR _T-_—%F)\A
T+ BEZITAARAH
TEBEYR_T-__FHA
=+—H&fT-

4., BREERZ=-ZZT=-_=_F=A8
—+=ZHEZETAKRRRBL
EBMITES

5. ZextRhEEHHLLIRZ
TEF-_RA+=HEZEA
RARBIIFATES I
PRAR T =—FNA=+—
BR-—ZE-—_f#=A=-+=H
BT

6. REEEENR_-_ZT-_—%1
BZ+tBEREHRTES -

TR AEBRARS FH A
TTEEERE(CE—F W
HEE) EMER EXZEIHN
AP RE - B THEZREE(Z
E-—F:=ZFREEB)NM WM
TS 8

2022 2021

—EgE=-= —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T AR F T

Salaries and other benefits ek HAMET 261 1,217
Contribution to pension scheme BIREFTEIH R 12 47
Share-based payments VARR 1D 2+ 2 3k 18 13,118 -
13,391 1,264
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Directors’ and five highest paid
individuals’ emoluments (Continued)

The number of non-directors, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

12.

e R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—"F+-_A=+—HILFE

EERAEHREFMAL
<= (%)

MenFTIIBEERNZIFES
REFHESZHBWNT

Number of employees

EBEAH
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Emolument band: e E
Nil-HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7t - 3
HK$1,000,000-HK$2,000,000 1,000,000 JT 22,000,000
BT - -
HK$2,000,000-HK$3,000,000 2,000,0007% T 23,000,000
77T 5 _

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors
or the highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the directors of the Company or the chief
executive of the Company waived or agreed to waived any
emolument during the year ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

No significant transaction, arrangement and contract in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company and the
director’s connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
ant time during the year.

Dividends

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

13.

BHE_Z-_—_FRrR-_ZF=—%
+ZA=+T—HLFE £5H
TERAEZEZEX G TMHALTE
HERBME - EAMAZNA
AEBEORBIIERLER
UHWEE B2k
—FT_—F+-A=t+—HL*F
B BMERARANESHAQA
ERITHRAEREXRERE
ERBME -

ZANYNISIR IV AN LT S
B MARREEREEHN
EATREFREBE RS
(TwEERSEEE) BRAFE
RFAF EAE B RAD A7 R
MEFREARS ZHREH -

g

EEQgUvTrTERREBEEZ
T+ - A=+—BIFEIR
NHRERE(ZEZ—F ) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—"F+-_A=+—HILFE

14. SR (E5E) BF

14. (Loss)/earnings per share

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic loss (2021: earnings) per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
loss (2021: profit) for the year attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately RMB76,658,000 (2021:
profit of approximately RMB26,086,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 520,886,000 (2021:
520,886,000), in issue during the year.

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

No diluted (loss)/earnings per share is presented as the
effect of the Company’s outstanding potential ordinary
shares in relation to share options is anti-dilutive (2021: no
outstanding potential ordinary share).

BREX(ER),&EF

RAARBEEAEMWNESRER
BE(CZE-—F: 88 HE
RAQRRBEBEABLFTFAEE
—E—F R ABPHARE
76,658,000 C (= & — — & : i
R # A R #26,086,0007T) & F
NE BT B INETS
520,886,000/% (= & = — 4:
520,886,000/ )5t & -

SREBE(BR) BF

HMRARBARBREHET
EHOMEBEEEBRARBEY
E(CE-_—F:EBRTHEIN
BEERR) RYLE2IEFR
BE(ER) &N -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—"F+-_A=+—HILFE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. Y1% - BERRE
Furniture
Leasehold Mould and and office  Construction in
Buildings  improvement machinery ~ Motor vehicles equipment progress Total
By HE£H BARER fE GERBARE ERIR #it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 AMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETm  ARETR  ARETm  ARETr ARETm  ARETR

Cost A%
At 1 January 2021 R-E--%£-f-A 30,659 17907 114,187 3524 4,486 4,999 245,662
Additions RE - 143 - - 1 9,850 10,005
Disposal e - - - (207) (26) - (233)
Exchange differences EiZE - (68) (19) (84) (1) - (18)
At 31 December 2021 and H-B=-%
1 January 2022 tZAZ1-BR
it gt 3
-A-A 30,559 17,982 114,168 3233 4,455 84,849 255,246
Transfer from right-of-use assets HRREEEEN - - - 3,303 - - 3303
Disposal h& - - (4,355) (1,485) - - (5,840)
Exchange differences EXZR - 23 62 351 55 - 700
At 31 December 2022 3k St 3
tzA=t-8 30,559 18,214 109,875 5,402 4510 84,849 253,409
Accumulated depreciation and EiRERAE
impairment
At 1 January 2021 R-%=-%-f-A 4,499 10,536 51,835 2,265 3,889 - 73,024
Charge for the year ER%H 910 2,607 14.846 M 184 - 18,758
Disposal & - - - (102 (12 - (114)
Impairment recognised for the year ERETRE - = 1,904 = = = 1904
Exchange differences EXZE - (46) 22) (57) (15) - (140)
At 31 December 2021 and Ro%z-f
1 January 2022 tZAZ1-BR
ZE-CE-F-B 5,409 13,097 68,563 2311 4,046 - 93,432
Transfer from right-of-use assets mERREEEN - - - 523 - - 523
Charge for the year ERTH 910 2,384 12,859 21 30 - 16,420
Disposal & - - 2,861) (1,485) - - (4,346)
Exchange differences EiZE - 204 83 155 51 - 493
At 31 December 2022 RoBZE
tZBzt-8 6,319 15,685 78,644 1,141 4127 - 106,522
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2022 WZE-Z
t-B=zt-8 24,240 2,529 31231 3,655 383 84,849 146,887
At 31 December 2021 RZ%=-f
tZA=t-8 25,150 4,885 45,605 916 409 84,849 161,814
As at 31 December 2022, buildings, mould and machinery RZEBEZZF+ZH =+ —
and motor vehicles with net book value totalling B REEFEBFTAOARE
approximately RMB33,736,000 (2021: approximately 33,736,000 (Z T = — F: &
RMB47,932,000) was pledged as collateral for the Group's A R #47,932,0007T) 8 1 F »
borrowings (Note 26). A R RSB ERE

BEAEBEERHEAR R E
26) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZT_—F+-_A=+—HLEFE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. M1% - MERZE (&)

(Continued)

The Group suffered operating loss during the year, as a
result, the Group assessed the recoverable amount of
items of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets by market comparable approach. Management
selected the market transaction prices of properties and
other assets based on the locations, years of usage and
other specific features which are similar to the assets held
by the Group and made comparison of such market prices
to the carrying amounts of the Group's property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets. As at 31 December
2023, the recoverable amounts of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets is higher than
the respective carrying amounts.

AEERFAEIREBR
Btk A 5= B 5% AR T 95 L BT A
AHEME- - BMERZRHUR
FERAREEBREMAKESEE -
EEERBEEAKERAENE
ERUOME ERFRIEE
EARER BEMERAM
BEMNMSRHEHE L8 Z
MEERERNSEENYE - B
FRERBAREREEENK
HEETHLE R-_FT-_=%F
tT-A=+—H XEENHY
X BEAREBALERESR
ENAREEESNEBMNEK
EfE -

16. Right-of-use assets 16. FAEEE
Disclosure of lease-related items: HEHEMBER:
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARBFT T
At 31 December: R+=—BA=+-—8:
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE
- Land use rights - T AR 26,453 27,315
— Buildings -EBF 4,495 5,999
— Motor vehicles -RE 300 5,032
31,248 38,346
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Right-of-use assets (Continued)

e R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—"F+-_A=+—HILFE

16. EAEEE (&)

2022 2021
—E-CF T —F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AR T

Year ended 31 December BE+t-B=+—HLEFE

Depreciation charge of FREEENTEER
right-of-use assets

- Land use rights — (s A 862 861
- Buildings -BF 3,655 5,109
- Motor vehicles -"=E 1,241 1,056
5,758 7026
Lease interests HEF B 495 702
Expenses related to short-term leases  H245 Hi7H & /H BF &9 B =2 42 43
Loss on early termination of lease REKRIEHENES 7 -
Addition of right-of-use assets NEFERAEEE 2,207 8,853
Total cash outflow for leases HEMRES R HEE 8,127 6,863

The Group leases various land use rights, building and
motor vehicles. Lease agreements are typically made for
fixed periods of 2 to 50 years. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants and the leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

Lease liabilities of RMB5,008,000 (2021: RMB10,285,000)
are recognised with related right-of-use assets of
RMB4,795,000 (2021: RMB11,031,000) as at 31 December
2022.

As at 31 December 2022, land use rights with net book
value totalling approximately RMB26,753,000 (2021:
approximately RMB31,647,000) was pledged as collateral
for the Group's borrowings (Note 26).

AEBEEZH L ERE -
BFhAE -HEBIENEE
HRBER2ELS0F - HERR
TIENEEETHE LB
EEETRAGREGMH - -BE
1 % 3 M 5 AN E R R % - ™A
EEETHAEERAZNE
W e

R-_E-_—_F+-_A=+—8"
A B #5,008,000t(= & = —
F: A R #10,285,0007T) #y M
EaEER AR47950005T
—ZT = —F: AR%¥11,031,000
TORHBETRAEEEERR -

RZBEZZF+Z A=+ —
H REFEALTAOARE
26,753,000t (Z & = — F: &
A #31,647,0007T) B + 1 {F
BRETEFREAAEEGRN
38 0 (M 5E26) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZT_—F+-_A=+—HLEFE

17. Intangible assets

17. B EE

Trademark Software License rights Total
[k B4 e @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETFT ARETT ARETTT
Cost BA
At 1 January 2021 R-E--%-F—-H 1,161 471 12,005 13,637
Additions NE - - 969 969
Written-off g - - (6,476) (6,476)
Exchange difference EXZ%E - - (597) (597)
At 31 December 2021and R=-Z-—-f+=-A=+-H
1 January 2022 kR=F--%-A-H 1,161 471 5,901 7533
Written-off i - - (5,901) (5,901)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZE--—f+-A=1+-H 1,161 47 - 1,632
Accumulated amortisation ZitBERAEFE
and impairment losses
At 1 January 2021 R-Z--%-8-H 446 410 5,582 6,438
Amortisation for the year FREH 214 36 4,663 4,913
Written-off g - - (6,476) (6,476)
Exchange difference EHER - - (154) (164)
At 31 December 2021and R=-Z--%+-fA=+-H
1 January 2022 k=—Z2--%-8-H 660 446 3,615 4,721
Amortisation for the year FREH 214 25 - 239
Written-off i 35 - - (3,615) (3,615)
At 31 December 2022 R=B==%+-A=t-H 874 47 - 1,345
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2022 R-ZB-ZZ#+=A=+-H 287 - - 287
At 31 December 2021 R=F=-5+-A=+-H 501 25 2,286 2,812

HE-_ZT-_—_F+-A=+—H
HFE @ HHARE239,000T(=
T —F:H ARM250,0007T)
BETHITAATER I Y
ARBEZT(ZE-_—F:4HA
R #4,663,0007T) % I 5 A 88

During the year ended 31 December 2022, amortisation
of approximately RMB239,000 (2021: approximately
RMB250,000) was charged and included in administrative
expenses and approximately RMBNil (2021: approximately
RMB4,663,000) was charged and included in cost of sales.

puE
EER ]

N
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Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and
assets recognised by the Group.

Impairment
on Deferred
receivables revenue

EhHERE  BENE
RMBIOOD  RMB'000
ARETL  ARETR

e R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—"F+-_A=+—HILFE

18. IEFE B I

AEEERANIBZREEHREER
BREEWMT °

Accelerated

Fair value tax

Tax loss gains of land  depreciation Total
Ti#

HEEE AVERE NERANE @3t

RMB000  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETL  ARETL  ARETR  AR¥TR

At 1 January 2021 R-E--%-f-A 3,143 218 1,582 (2,487) (1,467) 1,049
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss for ~ ERA/ (B E) EA

the year 802 (124) 49 47 147 1,621
Exchange difference EXZS (9) - (7) - - (16)
At 31 December 2021 and R-F=-E+ZfA=1-H

1 January 2022 R-Z-Z%-B-A 3,936 154 2,324 (2,440) (1,320) 2,654
Credit/lcharge) to profit or loss for ~ FAZFA /(B E) BE

the year 3,601 (79) (609) 48 1,287 4,248
Exchange difference EXEE I - Iy - - 82
At 31 December 2022 RZB-Z#+tZA=t+-A 7578 75 1,756 (2,392) (33) 6,984

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
for consolidated statement of financial position purposes:

AR A B B AR O R AE H RO E T

MIBHZESH AT :
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR TR ARETTT

Deferred tax assets EEMIEEE 9,409 6,414
Deferred tax liabilities EEREAG (2,425) (3,760)
6,984 2,654

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of RMB37,745,000 (2021: RMB13,114,000)
available for set off against future profits. Deferred tax
has not been recognised in respect of such losses due to
unpredictability of future profits streams.

RBEBHR AEBZ2XHH
fi1E &B B A R ¥37,745,0007C
—F=—F: AR%13,114,000
o) A EARKRFE o AR
RARFBEREEBR  hAXE
MZEBEERELHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—"F+-_A=+—HILFE

19. Inventories 19. &8
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBT ARETTT

Raw materials R 6,529 13,235
Work in progress TR 1,044 64
Finished goods 2K Gh 757 522
Packing materials and consumables BEMBRBERED 9,114 9,417
17,444 23,238
Less: allowance o B (6,586) =
10,858 23,238

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s inventories RBEBHR AEENGFET

were stated at net realisable value. BRI EIRFEIE -
20. Trade receivables 20. ESZEKRKIE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARETTT

Trade receivables B 5 W RIE 365,806 134,106
Less: provision for impairment AR E B (38,265) (17,099)
327,541 117,007
The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables, RERREZAHEINNES
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the FEWRIBREDTET
years:
2022 2021
—Es=-= T —4F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT ARETTT

Less than 30 days DR30K 217,926 62,331
31 days to 120 days 31X E120K 30,122 55,500
121 days to 1 year 121K E—F 107,566 6,681
1 year to 2 years —FEWMF 10,099 7012
More than 2 years HBiEmF 93 2,682

365,806 134,106
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—"F+-_A=+—HILFE

20. 20. EZEWFIE(E)

BFAKEBEITEXFNEEY
TERIBE -BAHEHRAES

Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group's credit period granted to its major customers is
mainly 90 days. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly

by the directors.

Reconciliation of loss allowance for trade receivables:

EHER -

BHREKABRBEFNERK:

2022 2021

—E-CF T —4F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARET T

At 1 January Hn—A—H 17,099 14,029

Increase in loss allowance for the year 4F A /&5 18 5 44 1% /i 21,872 3,224

Amounts written off 1 5E £ & (1,608) (124)

Exchange difference fE X =% 902 (30)

At 31 December R+=—B=+—H 38,265 17,099
Trade receivables that are not impaired RFENE ZEWFRIE

The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS 9

AEBRERABET BN HEEL

FORIEm T A INBLET AR
MEEZRKRREBEEBZHRE
HEBEBREARTRBANEEER

“Financial Instrument” to provide for expected credit losses
using the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade
receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade

receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The expected credit
losses also incorporate forward looking information.

BiE- -RITERMEEER
BEoRUEREERBREREE
s kafXEsE - &’
HEEBRITESMELEN -

Current or
less than 31 days to 120 121 days to Over
30 days days 1 year 1 year Total
ki 3NKE 121% %
HRI0K 120% - BE-F @i
At 31 December 2022 RZE--f+=B=1-H
Weighted average expected loss rate~ MEFHEHBER 4,61% 8.51% 14.37% 100.00%
Receivable amount (RMB'000) ThEsE(ARETT) 217926 30,122 107,566 10,192 365,306
Loss allowance (RMB'000) BRERARETL) 10,052 2,562 15,459 10,192 38,265
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ-F£+Zf=1-H
Weighted average expected loss rate~ METFHEHBER 5.94% 4.55% 20.90% 98.77%
Receivable amount (RMB'000) ThEsB(ARETT) 62,331 55,500 6,681 9,594 134,106
Loss allowance (RMB'000) BEEEBARETT) 3,700 2,527 1,396 9,476 17099
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—"F+-_A=+—HILFE

20. Trade receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables that are not impaired
(Continued)

The following significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of trade receivables contributed to the increase in
the loss allowance during 2022:

— increase in trade receivables in relation with the
new business line of procurement and selling of raw
materials and electronic parts resulted in an increase
of loss allowance of approximately RMB10,052,000;
and

— increase in trade receivables aged 121 days to 1
year resulted in an increase in loss allowance of
approximately RMB14,063,000.

At the end of the reporting period, trade receivables of the
Group are denominated in the following currencies:

20. EZEWRE(E)
Rk E R E 5 FE WK E(R)

WTESEWRREERE®AED
EAEHEHR _T - _FHiE
% 0

— BERBREERMANRE
THMHEFREERABY
B 5 R WKIEE NS
ERBEEMOARR
10,052,0007T : &

— BE®ANKEIEHB
5 FE W 3k T8 1 B K
EEBREBEMOARE
14,063,0007T °

RBEEHR AKENEHE
WHRBETRATEEE:

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT ARETT

RMB ARE
Us$ e

84,171 68,157
281,635 65,949

365,806 134,106
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—"F+-_A=+—HILFE

21. Prepayments and other receivables 21. ARERHEMEWRRIE
2022 2021

—E-= T4

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®B T ARETTT

Prepayments (note) FE A kI8 (B 5F) 117,813 130,970

Deposits e 5,331 6,103

Other receivables H fth pE Y kI8 85,424 9,928
208,568 147,001

Less: non-current portion W FE M B AR

Prepayments for properties, plant and  #1%¥ - BE ;R HEH

equipment AR A (30,336) (52,095)

178,232 94,006

Less: provision for impairment R E B (4,296) (2,150)
173,936 92,756

Note: B & -

The prepayment represents prepayments made in relation to the TERFIEEREFER  BEEA

construction of buildings, prepayment for purchases of moulds, BEMEMBZNMEMNKE -

packaging and raw materials.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, an analysis of ECL for other R-E-—FR-_FT-—F+_-A
receivables is as follows: =+—H EMEKRRENEHRE
BEEBEINET:
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
AHEREE EEAE BRER
As at 31 December 2022 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-ZZB-Zf+=-A=+-H ARETR ARETR ARBTR
Stage 1-12 month ECL E-BE—NEAEHEEER 2.75% 83,424 2,296
Stage 2 — Lifetime ECL (not credit SR — 2 HBNREEHE(EEE
impaired) ) - - -
Stage 3 — Lifetime ECL (credit E-RBR—2HEBCEBR(EER
impaired) 1) 100% 2,000 2,000

85,424 4,296
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21. Prepayments and other receivables 21. ARERH M EWRRIE

(Continued) (&)

Gross

Expected carrying Loss

loss rate amount allowance

RHERE REAE BERE

As at 31 December 2021 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

R-ZB--%+-A=+-H ARETR ARETR AR TR

Stage 1-12 month ECL E-BE—NEAEHEEER 1.89% 7928 150
Stage 2 — Lifetime ECL (not credit S£_-BR — 2 HMBEREEHE(EEE

impaired) wE) — — —
Stage 3 — Lifetime ECL (credit E-RBE—2HEBCEBR(EER

impaired) 1A 100% 2,000 2,000

9,928 2,150

The following significant change in the gross carrying amounts of HEWRBEBREDBENNUTERX

other receivables contributed to the increase in the loss allowance BEHEN T _FHERESLN:

during 2022:

— increase in other receivable resulted from deposits placed — FERERBIEMGFENR
for cancelled purchase orders amounting to approximately © BB OE A E YR IB L A
RMB61,702,000 which was refunded subsequent to the end AR #61,702,0007T © B R R
of the reporting period. EHREBIRE -

At the end of the reporting period, other receivables of the REBHR AEBHEME

Group are denominated in the following currencies: IWHIE AT E B E:

2022 2021
—==-= —E=-—
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR T AR FT
RMB AR 85,380 8,096
HK$ BT 44 1,832

85,424 9,928




—E-_FH FrEERRBBRRIA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I ERAR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—"F+-_A=+—HILFE

22. Cash and cash equivalents 22 RERBAESEEY
2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR TR ARETTT

Cash at banks RITHRS 6,109 286,399
Cash on hand FHERS 114 113
6,223 286,512
At the end of the reporting period, bank balances and cash RSB f 5 @45‘] f% T4
of the Group are denominated in the following currencies: SRR G THIRA T EHE -
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT ARETT

RMB ARE 5,987 285,100
HK$ T 203 178
Us$ e 31 1,220
EUR BX T 2 14
6,223 286,512
=k

23. Trade and other payables 23. ESRHMEMNRE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BT ARETTT

Trade payables B 5 RIE 60,974 81,560
Accrued other expenses EEAEMAX 21,159 15,958
Accrued listing expenses EEALETHRAX - =
Payroll payable ERIE 5,200 5,066
Value-added tax and other tax payables & {& % [ H th & < % 18 22,453 27,781
Other payables H M E A RROE 22,430 -
Dividend payable AR E 2,549 2,549
Amounts due to shareholders (note) FE 1 AR 3R 3R (B 3E) 34,050 11,721
168,815 144,635
Note: The amounts due to shareholders are unsecured, non- M EARRERRBERBEER %

interest bearing, and repayable on demand. AR RIREREE -
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23. Trade and other payables (Continued) 23. ESRHMESRIEE)
An aging analysis of the trade payables at the end of the R EHRREZTEHFED
reporting period, based on invoice dates, is as follows: ESRNRBERS AT :

2022 2021
—EB-—f —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®B T ARETT

Less than 30 days D30k 6,399 19,923
31 days to 120 days 31X E120K 21,759 23,849
121 days to 1 year 121K E—F 31,420 25,365
1 year to 2 years —FEWF 1,396 8,802
More than 2 years BB F - 3,621
60,974 81,560
At the end of the reporting period, trade and other payables RBEBHR AEENEZ M
of the Group are denominated in the following currencies: EMEMRIENDRATE®E
& :
2022 2021
—E-—F T4
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARETT

RMB AR 32,066 43,019

HK$ BT 172 -

Us$ e 28,507 38,517

EUR R 7T 229 24
60,974 81,560

24. Amount due to a related company 24. B —EE# ARRE
The amount due to a related company is unsecured, non- A —EEE AR REREK
interest bearing, and had no fixed term of repayment. o REERERTERBR -

aEE
SRR

N

164

a S
a -—
- L




25.

26.

T F®

BLEZERERAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities relating to sales of toys are balances
due to customers under sales contracts. These arise when
deposits were received from customers before delivery of
the goods ordered according to the contract term.

There were no significant changes in the contract liabilities
balances during the reporting period.

25.

e R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—"F+-_A=+—HILFE

BHAE

HEEMAAHENENARER
HERHNATRENEFPHER -
ZERBEDRBANBERRM
FiTET BB B9 & W0 AT {1 B P Uk B
ERESL -

RBEEDNAOAELSKE
EEARD -

Movements in contract liabilities: AHBENED:
2022 2021
—E-_F —E -4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR AR T
Balance at 1 January R—RA—RZ&#% 1,895 955
Decrease in contract liabilities as FRERNRBUTAELD
a result of recognising revenue BEMREMERENE
during the year was included in the (E-
contract liabilities at the beginning
of the period (1,895) (955)
Increase in contract liabilities as R AT PTET BE 8 B ¥ Bl
a result of billing in advance of BEREMEHAENBELE
delivery of goods ordered il 820 1,895
Balance at 31 December W+—A=+—8B2#&% 820 1,895

The amount of billings in advance of obligation performed
is expected to be recognised as income within one year.

License fee payable

RETEBIRANKESR
BABR —FRERBEA -

26. EREE

2022 2021
—EgE=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR AREFT

License fee payable ERERESR
- Current - BNER 1,867 1,769
- Non-current - 3E RN 8 - 98
1,867 1,867
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27. Bank and other borrowings 27. SRITREMER

2022 2021
—E-CF T —F

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

B 5 AREBT T AREETF T

Bank loan (secured) BITEREER) (i) 65,957 69,394
Other borrowings H &K i 73,877 85,884
139,834 155,278

The borrowings are repayable as follows:

ERER T HREE:

2022 2021

—E=-= —E-—F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR TR AR T T

On demand or within one year RERIN —FNRA 139,834 155,278

At the end of the reporting period, bank and other
borrowings of the Group are denominated in the following

RBEEHAR REEHNRITR
HMERATIHNEEGE:

currencies:
2022 2021
—E-CF - —4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AREBFT
RMB AR 120,729 128,269
HK$ BT 19,105 27009
139,834 155,278
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27. Bank and other borrowings (Continued) 27. BITREMMER(E)

Notes: Bt 5 -
(i) As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the bank borrowings (i) RZE - R T - —F
were secured by: +ZA=+—BERTEFAMN
TEEEMR:

Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) and
right-of-use assets (Note 16) with net book
value approximately RMB29,437,000 (2021:
RMB34,651,000) and approximately RMB26,753,000
(2021: RMB31,647,000) respectively; and

Personal guarantees provided by Mr. Yu Huang and
Ms. Chen Cheng and certain minority shareholders of
the Company.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the other borrowings
were secured by:

Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) with net
book value approximately RMB4,299,000 (2021:
RMB13,281,000);

Shares of the Company held by certain shareholders
of the Company; and

(i)

- EEFEINNAR
29,437,000 (=
T - F: AR
34,651,0007T) & 4 A
R 26,753,000
(ZZEZ—F:ARK
31,647,0007T) ¥ % « B
5B K &% (Kt 5215) K fF
FAEEE M6 &

= HREXRERKRBEL L
AR ARRAET L #R
REHOBEAER -

RZEZ_FR-ZZT=Z—F
+=—A=+—8 HEMERH
LANTEEHRM:

- FEFENAARE
4,299,000 (= & = —
F: A R 13,281,000
TRYME -  BMERZE
(Kt 3%15)

- ARAETHEREEH
KRR &

Personal guarantees provided by Mr. Yu Huang and - AREXERRER L
Ms. Chen Cheng and certain minority shareholders of ARARRETLEHRK

the Company.

The interest rates per annum at the end of the reporting period
were as follows:

HE

REHOBEAER -

HR®FERNEMT

Borrowing &3
variable-rate B IEES

2.25%-18.00% 2.25%-18.00%
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28. HESE

28. Lease liabilities

Present value of lease

Lease payments payments
HESR HEANEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-CE —E—fF —E-ZCE —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARET T ARETR AREFT
Within one year —F R 2,848 5,112 2,512 4,639
In the second to fifth years, F_EERF
inclusive (BRERMTE) 2,588 6,110 2,496 5,646
5,436 1,222 5,008 10,285
Less: Future finance charges W RXBEER (428) (937)
Present value of lease liabilities HENHRE 5,008 10,285
Less: Amount due for settlement 3 : + =18 A % %I £
within 12 months AEBHTIE (2,512) (4,639)
Amount due for settlement after +Z{H A% 5 H
12 months BEBENZE 2,496 5,646

ERAREHEBEOME TS
HEEERNEEHE R278% =
939% (Z&E = — F£:278% &
9.90%) °

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied
to lease liabilities range from 2.78% to 9.90% (2021: 2.78%
t0 9.90%).

RESHR AEENHE?

At the end of the reporting period, lease liabilities of the

Group are denominated inn the following currencies: BEATIEES TR :
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®B T ARBFTT
RMB NS 4,302 4,400
HK$ B TT 706 5,885
5,008 10,285
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29. EEW =

ERW S AR E YR o E
ME - BERXRBHEBNKNT
Ml ZRERNEDRERE

29. Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue represents government grants received
by the Group that are related to property, plant and
equipment. These government grants are recognised as

other income on a straight-line basis over the expected ENBEBHERASTA RAERK
lives of the related assets. ERRBEMUA o
30. Share capital 30. lRA
Number of
ordinary Equivalent to
shares HK$'000 RMB'000
HER
LERHA TER AR®TFR
Authorised: HE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each FR0.001# T LB
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, R-Z-—-F—fF—-A8-
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 “Z-—F+-fA=1+-H"
“E-ZZ§-A-HER
ZZ--f#+ZR=+—H 5,000,000,000 5,000 4,470
Issued and fully paid: CRTRME:
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, 1 R-ZE--%-A-B"
January 2022 and “E--F¥+ZRA=t+-HB"
31 December 2022 ZB-Z£-f-BRK
“E--E+ZH=1+-H 520,886,000 521 467
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31. Other reserves 31. Hibf#EE
(a) The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements (a) rEENREBLBERLEE
therein are presented in the consolidated statement ARIZINEEEE K=K
of comprehensive income and the consolidated RiZERREEBE -

statement of changes in equity.

(b) Reserves of the Company (b) ZARDTRH
Share Other Option Accumulated

premium reserve reserve losses Total

B E HitHE BRERE ZitE#B @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETRE ARETR AR®TT ARETR ARET:R

At 1 January 2021 R=%--%¥-A-H 101,378 316,030 - (37454) 379,954
Comprehensive income ERN2EKE

for the year - - - (7147) (7147)
Dividend paid BRRE - = = (7771) (7771)

At 31 December 2021 and R-Z=-§

1 January 2022 +ZA=+-0EK
—E--¥-f-H 101,378 316,030 - (52,372) 365,036
Comprehensive income ERNZ2EKE
for the year - - - (36,286) (36,286)
Recognition of share-hased BRURMZA 2 HE
payments - - 29,403 - 29,403
At 31 December 2022 R-E--%

+=A=+-AH 101,378 316,030 29,403 (88,658) 358,153




31. Other reserves (Continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves of the
Group

(i)

(i)

Statutory reserve

In accordance with relevant rules and regulations
in the PRC and the Company's Articles of
Association, companies incorporated in PRC
are required to transfer no less than 10% of
their profit after taxation calculated under PRC
accounting standards and regulations to the
statutory reserve fund, until the accumulated
total of the fund reaches 50% of their registered
capital. The statutory reserve fund can only be
used, upon approval by the relevant authority, to
offset previous years’ losses or to increase the
capital of respective companies.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve
comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

—eo—i% éiggﬁﬁmﬁﬁ\\\‘

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—"F+-_A=+—HILFE

31. HAtbfk 8 (&)
(c) AEERBHEERA

=7

(i)

(ii)

EEREE

1R 3% R B A B 45 B &
HENMRAEEREAE LS
A - R R AR
SH) A R)ZE 5 AR B AR
B & &t 2 R & AR T AT
EOHERAT DR
10% 8 & = )% F &
B HEESZRT8
HEINFMELAD
50% c A EREE S
45 FE B e B HE 1R
FARRBEHAET
EREExENEA
RAMER °

SR E A

INEREFRERER
BRINRBG I RE
BELWMBINEE
B REIRERS
BF 15 R K MY RESPT &
METRREE -
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31. Other reserves (Continued)

172

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves of the
Group (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Merger reserve

In preparation for listing of the shares of
Kidztech Intelligent on the National Equities
Exchange and Quotations (“"NEEQ"), a
reorganisation was conducted in 2015 among
certain group entities. Such reorganisation
resulted in combination of Kidztech Intelligent
and two other group entities which were
majority owned by Mr. Yu and Ms. Chen Cheng
("Ms. Chen”). The difference between the
consideration paid for the acquisitions and the
share capital of the two group entities were
recorded as merger reserve.

Option reserve

Option reserve represents the fair value of the
actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to employees of the Group
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for equity settled share-based
payments in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

31. Ht ek (&)

(c) AEERBHEERA
= (%)

(iii)

(iv)

Bt

EBETLEDTREN
BhEZ2BEHNEE
BihrEzEAR(2E
ROEEROERR
mhHLtmi 5T&%
BERERN_T—AHF
ETTEHEH -FHE
HERT LT EERE
MAHMEEER(E
EHRATERRELX
T(RZEDHER) A
BF - BRI E R
ZMAEMEEERE
ARz HEHZ8EE L
ABHEE -

BRERE

BREREERTA
SERBEZARITER
BEBRB ZERNKG
HRAYE RESES
B 75 3R R BT a3 A B
A4 B DA B A S
Z R A g R
REER -
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Share-based payments

The Company conditionally adopted an share option
scheme on 13 February 2020 (the “Share Option
Scheme”), so as to grant options to selected participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the
Group. Given that the Directors are entitled to determine
any performance targets to be achieved as well as the
minimum period that an option must be held before an
option can be exercised on a case by case basis, and
that the exercise price of an option cannot in any event
fall below the price stipulated in the Listing Rules or
such higher price as may be fixed by the Directors, it is
expected that grantees of an option will make an effort
to contribute to the development of the Group to bring
about an increased market price of the Shares in order to
capitalise on the benefits of the options granted.

The Directors may, at its absolute discretion, grant options
to any of the following classes of participants: (a) any
employee (whether full-time or part-time including any
executive director but excluding any non-executive director)
of the Company, any of the subsidiaries or any entity (the
“Invested Entity”) in which any member of the Group
holds an equity interest; (b) any non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors) of the
Company, any of the subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;
(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; (d) any customer of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (e) any person
or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (f) any shareholder of any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
(g) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to
any area of the business or business development of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; and (h) any
other group or classes of participants who have contributed
or may contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance
or other business arrangement to the development and
growth of the Group.

e R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—"F+-_A=+—HILFE

32. IR F 2 FRIE

ARBR=ZE_ZTEF_-_A+=H
Bl HEM—TBERET S ([
RESFED UEgEkhEn2
HEREERE  AHEFHk R
BHREHAEEFMEER - A
REZAZRMBENBERLEEEMA
BEINHRBREERBERE
TERARENREEE
FTERENTEEEEMANER
THABEREMBRAEENE
BREBJREETNESER
WL TEHEREARABES
BRAEEMNBERELE B - #
MEROMELF NiBEBE
BHEBREMSE -

EXZTEEBBRERTIME
MAERIM 2 EER L ERE : (a)
AR EMHEBRARAE
BEMKE QA RFARENE
MER(HMREBRBDMNEM
ERAFKBERE(BRITAANT
EX EBEABRREEMFERTE
) (O ARA [ E QA
HAE TR B B 88 M I 3F#
TEZ(BREBIUNFNTES):
CIAKEETMMKE AR LM
REERBNEMERARE
HER: AKETRAKER
AXEMAREEENTAE
F o) E A & A & B & (E A &
BRAEMMTREEREH
M RABEXEMARMEN
ATHER: OAKEERAKE
RBARERAREEBNEM
BRI AEBEERKE QA K
TAAREEBRMETEME
FHRAEAN QAKBEOTH
KERRIKEMMAREERRE
THEFRBEAXHERNE
MBEXEREMAFALTHER
EhEREKAEZERELE -
EGBBEAEMET LN Y
AEENBERAERELTR
B ER A B A E R 2 R
2




Kidztech Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZT_—F+-_A=+—HLEFE

32.

174

Share-based payments (Continued)

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of ten years from its effective date to 12 February 2030.

Particulars of the Share Option Scheme of the Company
are set out in Appendix IV to the Company’s prospectus
dated 28 February 2020.

Pursuant to a resolution of the board of directors passed
on 21 June 2022, it was resolved to grant an aggregate
of 52,000,000 share options with an exercise price of
HK$1.17 per share entitling certain employees to subscribe
52,000,000 Shares of the Company. Details of the
Company's share options are set out below:

32.

BAUR 2 344 2 7RI (4R)

B T BB A
HE-—F=THE-A+-AL+
FHBESH AN -

AAAEREAENFBEIHIR
AXRARIBHA_ZT_ZTF_H1
“TNEHNERERWEM -

BRER-_ZE-__F~A=+—
HEBHNEEZGRAER &
RFH A $£52,000,0001 B A
B TFEEARERINTE T
HBYFETEEEFNRE XA A
52,000,0008% & 3 & 2 7] iE
PRERFFIBEHI BT :

Granted
Date of On  during the On Exercise
Name of grant of the 1 January reporting 31 December Vesting  Exercise price per
grantee share options 2022 period 2022 period period share option
R-B=-=%
BRESRE R-Z--F RESHH +=A SHBRE
ARAZE ABHE —-B-8 Rit =t-H BEH TEH TEE
HK$
BT
Employees 21 June 2022 - 52,000,000 52,000,000  N/A 21 June 2022 to 117
20 June 2032
== —E-C i A —E-C
NE=T-E KAZT-AZ
—T=F
~NAZTH

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no share option
granted was exercised, lapsed or cancelled.

All outstanding share options are exercisable at the end of
the year. As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding share
options represents approximately 10% (2021: Nil) of the
issued ordinary shares of the Company.

B 2-_—_##+-_A=+—H
HFE BECERNERE
FEATHE « KRS -

FrEMKRITEBRESITRE
RKITE - R_BE__F+=A8
=t B MARTEBREN
ARABEBETEBERDAI0% (=
T_—%:F)-
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Share-based payments (Continued)

The above share options at the end of the year have an
average remaining contractual life of 9.5 years (2021:
Nil). The estimated fair value of the share options are
determined using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The
estimated fair values and significant inputs of the model
were as follows:

Option pricing model

HEEEER

e R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—"F+-_A=+—HILFE

32. AR 324z FE ()

FRBEBRERFRNFHHT
BHERRISF(ZT-_—F:
) BREMNMGBFAFETIR
AR EERLERE -
BRHAFERERENEREH A
BEHEIWT

Binomial

—AR

Estimated fair vale at the measurement date
Rt ERHNEHAFE

No. of options granted

ERHEREHE

Estimated fair value of each option
BHERENMGGTATE

Weighted average share price at the measurement date
Rt 2B MEFHRE

Exercise price

TEE

Exercise multiple

TR &

Expected volatility

T8 Hi % 18

Expected life

78 H & 5

Risk free rate

[, f A =X

Expected dividend yield

TEHI R B X

The expected volatility was determined by using the
average of annualised standard deviation of daily return of
the Company's historical volatility quoted by Bloomberg.

Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited, an independent
firm of professional valuer, was appointed by the Company
to carry out the fair value of the share options granted
during the reporting period.

The expenses of share-based payments recognised in profit
and loss during the reporting period was RMB29,403,000
(equivalent to HK$35,141,000) (2021: Nil).

HK$35,141,000
35,141,000 7T
52,000,000
52,000,0001%
HK$0.676
0.67678 T
HK$1.15
11678 7T
HK$1.17
117738 7T

2.86

2.86

63.81%
63.81%

10 years

104F

3.02%

3.02%

Nil

3

BHREDERZBAEAR
AESLRENFHFLEAK
HIREZEE -

ARAEZERBLEXMERM
XAFERRANERABDEBS
HARLOEREQIFEET
ftfE -

HKEHARARBESERONUR
BEXNFzZHEBERAITAARE
29,403,0007T (1€ 735,141,000
BILNZBEZ—F: &)
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33. Notes to the consolidated statement of 33. MEBRERERKT

cash flows
Changes in liabilities arising from financing MEETBHEENEEEH
activities
The following table shows the Group’s changes in liabilities TREINAEEFAREFE
arising from financing activities during the year: EXHNBEES:
Lease Amounts due to
Borrowings liabilities shareholders
&% HESE EMRRZE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETT
At 1 January 2021 R-E-—-%#—-8—H 155,890 7991 -
Net changes in cash flows Rens28FE (10,047) (6,820) 11,721
Non-cash changes FREEH
- Addition of lease liabilities -HEaBEEM - 8,481 =
- Interest expenses -FfBAX 9,462 702 =
- Currency realignment -ERXRE (27) (69) -
At 31 December 2021 and R-B=--F
1 January 2022 +tZA=+—-HK
—2--%¥-8-H 155,278 10,285 11,721
Net changes in cash flows ReRne2HFR (28,134) (8,085) 22,329
Non-cash changes EREEEH
- Write-off due to early -MERBRIEEMR
termination ] - (272) =
- Addition of lease liabilities -HEEEEM - 2,207 =
- Interest expenses -FERZ 10,296 495 =
- Currency realignment -EHAE 2,394 378 =
At 31 December 2022 R-BE-Z
+=ZA=+-—H 139,834 5,008 34,050
34. Capital commitments 34. EREIE
The Group's capital commitments at the end of the REBRBEBHRNE REE
reporting period are as follows: wmR
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR F T
— Property, plant and equipment ME - BERKZE
- Contracted but not provided for - BRIAE R ERE 17,440 17,482
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35. RATB AR R E

Company
2022 2021
—EgE=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR AREFT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in a subsidiary KE—HHB2AR 316,417 316,417
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H fh fE U 3k I8 879 573
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG 80,431 74,279
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 6 25
81,316 74,877
Current liabilities RBEE
Accruals expenses FEETR X 25,670 5,342
Other borrowing H b 18 3K 13,443 20,440
Amounts due to subsidiaries M B AR RIE - 9
42,203 25,791
NET ASSET EEFHE 358,622 365,503
Capital and reserves BAREE
Share capital RN 467 467
Reserves & 358,153 365,036
TOTAL EQUITY EaEm 358,620 365,303

Contingent liabilities

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the
Company did not have any significant contingent liabilities
(2020: Nil).
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37. ARAEEWMBARFE

37. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company

TREINEERBRYUAFEE
REEEXESAEAKNAERY
Bk £ B E o o AR A R
RAE-EERA - EHEMMK
BRAAMNFREERATERTT

The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the financial position of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

The Group’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2021

and 2022 are set out below.

£ o

AEEBR_ZE-_—FR_ZT=_—

F+_A=+—"HBWEEWNER

AT o
Place of incorporation/ Percentage of the
registration/operation and Issued/ Company's indirect Principal
Name Note  nature of legal entity paid-up capital ownership interest activities
ERAR
HMaYL/ 2R/ 2811/ BRETR
tR Wi EEMEREREEME HRRA BENAEAL IEED
Direct  Indirect
-3 B
Kidztech (BVI) Limited BV, Limited liability company Uso1 100% - Investment holding
FIEERRAHBAERDA SRENHES AREAEAR %% REZR
Kidztech (Chinal Intelligent Technology Hong Kong, Limited liability HKS1 - 100%  Investment holding
Co, Limited company 1B RERR
FLEME)BRHRERAA Fh BRELAT
Shantou Kidztech No. 1 Technology 3 The PRC, wholly foreign owned - - 100%  Investment holding
Consulting Co., Ltd. enterprise REER
AETRLE-SRERATEERAD T ONEBELR
Shantou Kidztech No. 2 Technology b The PRC, domestic enterprise RMB1,103,254 - 100%  Investment holding
Consulting Co., Ltd. hEERLE ARE1103 264710 RERR
NETHTE-FHREATEERLA
Kidztech Intelligent The PRC, wholly foreign owned ~ RMB78,000,000 - 100%  Manufacturing and sales of
BTERY enterprise AR %78,000,0007 toys
hE O HEBELE NARERKE
Kidztech HK Hong Kong, Limited liability HKD500,000 - 100%  Export of toys
FETLE company 500,000% 7T natn
BE BRELAT
Shenzhen Kidztech Internet Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC, Limited liability RMB5,000,000 - 100%  Sales of toys through
FIETEEEBRHERAR company AR %5,0000007 e-commerce channels
nE - ERELAT RETTERREHENE
Shenzhen Kidztech Internet of Things Technology Co., The PRC, Limited liability RMB5,000,000 - 100%  Research, development, and
Ltd company AR 5,000,000 sales of smart hardware
RFLENRBRRERLT hE - EREEAT BUERAEREE
- Kidztech Infotech c The PRC, domestic enterprise RMB83,340,000 - 100%  Dormant
ALEREHR nE - ERLE AR 83,340,007 EE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

Notes:

(a)  Shantou Kidztech No. 1 Technology Consulting Co., Ltd. is
a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC
with registered capital of RMB1,000,000, which was yet to
be paid up as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

(b)  Shantou Kidztech No. 2 Technology Consulting Co., Ltd. is a
domestic enterprise established in the PRC with registered
capital of RMB111,428,571. As at 31 December 2022 and
2021, RMB110,325,317 of the registered capital was yet to
be paid up.

(c) Kidztech Infotech is a domestic enterprise established in the
PRC with registered capital of RMB96,000,000. As at 31
December 2022 and 2021, RMB12,660,000 of the registered
capital was yet to be paid up.

Contingent liabilities

During the course of business, the Group has been involved
in litigations initiated by various suppliers, customers and
lenders concerned with contract disputes and repayment of
debts. Some of the litigations have been concluded by the
court and/or settled, while some of the litigations are still
pending judgement. Since the Group has already accounted
for these payables in the consolidated financial statements
the directors are of the view that these litigations will not
have any significant financial impact to the Group.

Approval of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 7 July
2023.
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(%)
B i

(@ WEmHTE—REEER
BERABGR—RKEHRBEK L
MIIEBELE FMER
A A R #1,000,0007T © & &
—TE - CERE-—F+ =
A=+t—HHAHBE -

b) JWEMHFLTE_HKEREZENR
BERABR—RERBEK L
HIERGE FMEXRAEA
R ¥111,428,56717c - A = &
¥R FTE=-_—%+=H
=+—H ' AR#%¥110,325,317
THEMERE KRB R -

(0 FITEEFEERHEE—XREH
BRYHMEANTE: &
N B A R #96,000,0007T °
RZDBZZF R T = —
F+-_A=Z=+—8B AR¥
12,660,000 T M +F fit & &N &
KER -
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FAEEREEBRERESZ (@
&V@% EFRERARA
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g DFRBDBFEOR ©
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REAEMBERRBDAR WE
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T FEMBEBE
Year ended 31 December
BEZ+t-A=+-HLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—Z=-= —E-—F —T-FTF —T-AF —T-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE AREBTT ARBTT AR®TT ARET:R
Results E¥
Revenue U 2% 169,431 283,843 295,913 325,800 278,717
(Loss)/profit before B BT 15 % A
income tax (B#R)/&EH (82,086) 31,722 32,947 48,380 41,577
Income tax credit/ FE®EE,/
(expenses) (A%) 5,428 (5,636) (8,804) (12,935) (8,824)
(Loss)/profit for the year X (E518) /% 7 (76,658) 26,086 24,143 35,445 32,753

As at 31 December

R+=B=+-H
Assets and Liabilities EER&E
Total assets EEBE 736,725 780,994 670,546 524,722 570,680
Total liabilities BERE (338,375) (339,321) (247,004) (223,825) (204,499)

Net assets EEFE 398,350 441,763 423,542 300,897 366,181
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